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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good morning.  I

          3  am Council Member Jim Gennaro, Chair of the New York

          4  City's Council Committee on Environmental

          5  Protection.  I welcome you here today as the Council

          6  holds its first hearing on Intro. 397, Mayor

          7  Bloomberg's proposed amendments to the City's Noise

          8  Code.

          9                 There is absolutely no question that

         10  controls on noise are certainly essential to life in

         11  New York City.  Whether it be about the stereo in

         12  the apartment above yours, the neighbor's barking

         13  dog, the jackhammer too early in the morning, or an

         14  overdose of horn honking, I think that each of us

         15  here today has an anecdote involving noise in our

         16  City.

         17                 While these stories are often about

         18  an irritant or a nuisance, as we will hear from

         19  witnesses later, noise is not always about a problem

         20  that simply threatens to diminish New Yorkers

         21  quality of life.  Noise, like other forms of

         22  pollution, can also lead to serious, chronic, and

         23  sometimes debilitating health impacts.

         24                 As important as noise controls

         25  clearly are however, we, as a City, and we, as the
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          2  City Council, need to make sure that we get these

          3  controls right.

          4                 And Alan Gerson's cell phone is going

          5  off, he gets a demerit right here.  Okay.  DEP, you

          6  want this, you got this guy here?

          7                 In other words, we need to find the

          8  right balance between controlling unnecessary excess

          9  and harmful noise, and the realities of life in the

         10  most vibrant, vital city in the world. Getting it

         11  right is very important, because any way you look at

         12  it, New York City's noise restrictions touch the

         13  lives and the livelihoods of millions and millions

         14  of people.

         15                 For example, New York City is a labor

         16  town with a history of protecting the rights of

         17  working families.  Do we get it right, if the City's

         18  Noise Code can be used by employers against unions

         19  that are participating in strikes, informational

         20  picketing, or demonstrations?  Is it getting it

         21  right, if the Code stifles the voice of working

         22  people?  I don't think anyone believes that the

         23  Noise Code restrictions should curb free speech.

         24  And I am not indicating that they do, but we have to

         25  be very mindful of that.
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          2                 One other example, do we really get

          3  it right by silencing Mr. Softee, threatening the

          4  livelihoods of some of the best engines of our

          5  City's economy, small business owners and

          6  entrepreneurs.  With Mr. Softee's cooperation, and I

          7  know for a fact they are eager to provide it, I am

          8  confident that we can find a way to speak to these

          9  matters in a much more balanced way.

         10                 I am certain that we will hear many

         11  more examples in the course of today's hearing.

         12  Protecting the health and quality of life of New

         13  Yorkers through the City's Noise Code is critical.

         14  But in crafting these health and welfare protections

         15  it is also critical that we don't end up harming the

         16  lives and livelihoods of the millions of other New

         17  Yorkers affected by the Code.  That is why it is so

         18  important that we get it right when it comes to

         19  revising the City's Noise Code.

         20                 It is also why today's public hearing

         21  is so important.  It is this Committee's and this

         22  Council's opportunity to directly hear your thoughts

         23  on how close the Mayor's proposed Noise Code

         24  revisions are to, once again, getting it right.

         25                 And before I call upon our first
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          2  distinguished panel, the good people from DEP, I

          3  would like to describe how I am going to run today's

          4  hearing.  It is obvious that there are many here

          5  today eager to be heard from on the Noise Code, and

          6  I certainly assure you that is my goal to hear from

          7  each and every one of you today.  However, we have

          8  about four hours allotted for today's hearing.  At

          9  2:00 p.m. We have another hearing to be held in this

         10  Chamber, so we need to be finished by then.  So, in

         11  order to have any chance of hearing from every one

         12  who wishes to speak today, I am going to request,

         13  much more accurately, I really have to insist some

         14  cooperation from the witnesses and my fellow Council

         15  members in following some ground rules.

         16                 So to my colleagues, I ask you, well,

         17  only Alan is here for now, and Peter Vallone, I'm

         18  sorry, Peter, you know to keep your questions as

         19  short.  I will try to do the same.  I think it is

         20  very important today's hearing that the information

         21  goes that way to this way, and we will have plenty

         22  of ample opportunity and other hearings to ask very,

         23  very probing questions as we shape and craft this

         24  legislation.

         25                 And to all witnesses, I ask you to
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          2  keep your testimony as brief as possible, and to the

          3  extent that you cannot repeat what other's before

          4  you have said, that would be great. Because I don't

          5  want anyone to go home today without having been

          6  heard.  And so this is the way that we have to do

          7  it.

          8                 And I thank you all very much, in

          9  advance for going by these ground rules.

         10                 So without further ado, I will

         11  recognize my colleagues.  Once again, Council Member

         12  Peter Vallone from Queens, a valued member of this

         13  Committee; Council Member Alan Gerson from Lower

         14  Manhattan, not a member of this Committee, but

         15  certainly a champion on noise issue.

         16                 And I welcome today's first panel,

         17  representatives of the DEP, it is certainly a

         18  pleasure to have you with us here today.  This has

         19  been a monumental and comprehensive effort on the

         20  part of the Bloomberg Administration and DEP, and

         21  all the other involved agencies to put together

         22  this, you know, sweeping proposal.  I thank you for

         23  your diligent hard work on behalf of the people of

         24  the City of New York.  It is always an honor and a

         25  pleasure to have you with us.
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          2                 Notwithstanding that, we are going to

          3  swear you in, as we always do.  And so, I will call

          4  upon Donna De Costanzo, the Counsel to the Committee

          5  to give you the oath.  I would like to thank the

          6  staff of the Committee, and all those who were

          7  involved in putting this hearing together.  And

          8  Chris Manning from the Mayor's Office always helps

          9  us out in getting these hearings done.  And Donna

         10  will swear you in, and then you can state your names

         11  for the record, and proceed with your good

         12  testimony.

         13                 Thank you.  Donna.

         14                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  In the testimony

         15  that you are about to give, do you swear or affirm

         16  to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

         17  the truth?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  I will.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank

         21  you, you may proceed.

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  Mr.

         23  Chairman, good morning, Committee members, good

         24  morning.  I am David Tweedy, Acting Commissioner,

         25  New York City Department of Environmental
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          2  Protection.  And on behalf of Mayor Bloomberg, I

          3  thank you for giving us the opportunity to discuss

          4  the Administration's proposed changes to the New

          5  York City Noise Code.  Seated with me today, seated

          6  on my left, is Robert Avaltroni, Deputy Commissioner

          7  for the Bureau of Environmental Compliance at DEP,

          8  and on my right is Gerry Kelpin, Director of

          9  Environmental Policies.

         10                 Intro. 397 is the first comprehensive

         11  piece of legislation designed to overhaul the New

         12  York City Noise Code in over 30 years.  At the time

         13  of the City's past adoption of a comprehensive Noise

         14  Code, New York was seen as a leader in the area of

         15  noise control.  Over time, the Code has been shown

         16  to be outdated and not reflective of modern acoustic

         17  technologies and standards.  The Administration

         18  intends to continue its goal of being a leader in

         19  noise policies that strike a balance between

         20  encouraging development and improving the quality of

         21  life of the citizens of New York.

         22                 Today, noise is the number one

         23  complaint to the City's 311 citizen hotline,

         24  averaging nearly 3,500 calls a month that are

         25  received by DEP, alone.  This proposal provides a
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          2  flexible approach to address the number one quality

          3  of life complaint, and it balances the need for

          4  construction, development, and nightlife with the

          5  need for peace and quiet enjoyed by our City

          6  residents.

          7                 Intro. 397 is a comprehensive

          8  document that removes outdated code sections and

          9  replaces them with more flexible and reasonable

         10  enforcement mechanisms.  While each amended

         11  provision contained in Intro. 397 deserves a

         12  detailed discussion, I have focused this testimony

         13  on five key areas that are essential to our

         14  proposal.  And there is a board behind us that

         15  displays, in summary, some of the information I will

         16  be covering this morning.

         17                 The areas we will be talking about

         18  are:

         19                 Reducing sound from construction.

         20                 Reducing sound from commercial music

         21  sources.

         22                 Closing a loophole in the current

         23  code that governs circulation devices, and by that,

         24  we mean air conditioning devices, generally.

         25                 And making noise enforcement simpler
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          2  by using, what we are calling a "plainly audible"

          3  standard, instead of the conventional decibel

          4  limits, which require use of a noise meter.

          5                 Finally, the fifth point, we will be

          6  focusing on providing in conjunction with the

          7  unreasonable noise standard that already exists,

          8  legislatively determined limits for certain kinds of

          9  noise sources where appropriate.

         10                 The mission, what is the mission of

         11  the Noise Code?  Our vision is aimed at reducing

         12  overall sound levels through noise management

         13  strategies that allow commercial, cultural, and

         14  manufacturing activities to continue at volumes that

         15  are less intrusive to residents.  I want to

         16  emphasize to the Council that Intro. 397 does not

         17  seek increased enforcement in pure numbers as its

         18  primary goal, but rather to give the enforcement

         19  officers the tools for better, smarter enforcement

         20  of the areas that we already regulate.

         21                 Let's talk about construction first.

         22  Noise from construction was the number one complaint

         23  during the first six months of Fiscal Year 2005.  We

         24  are fully cognizant that it is difficult to control

         25  noise from construction in a City of eight million
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          2  residents, while at the same time encouraging the

          3  construction and development that are essential for

          4  the City's economic survival.  The challenge becomes

          5  how to regulate construction noise, when it is

          6  inherently noisy activity that by necessity occurs

          7  near residences.

          8                 Construction activity ranges from the

          9  small job of opening a street to installation a

         10  private service utility line to large- scale

         11  developments of hundreds of thousands of square

         12  feet.  Each can have attendant quality of life noise

         13  issues.

         14                 Although the existing Noise Code

         15  contains certain device- specific decibel standards

         16  applicable to equipment used in construction, noise

         17  form construction sites has generally been regulated

         18  by the unreasonable noise standard.  However,

         19  because construction activities and equipment,

         20  almost by definition are loud, the unreasonable

         21  noise standard has proven to not be an effective

         22  tool for addressing the control of construction

         23  noise.              As a way to regulate the overall

         24  level of sound emanating from construction sites,

         25  without relying exclusively on rigid decibel
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          2  limitations, or on a catch as catch can enforcement

          3  basis.  We propose to create a best management

          4  practices type standard for all construction

          5  activity.

          6                 A best management practices approach

          7  would control noise by prescribing noise mitigation

          8  strategies, methods, procedures, and technology that

          9  would be used at construction sites where certain

         10  types of construction activity takes place. This

         11  activity ranges from using devices, which include

         12  air compressors and power tools to construction

         13  devices with internal combustion engines.  These

         14  devices often emit impulsive sounds, impulsive

         15  sounds are regular beating sounds.  Anyone living in

         16  New York knows what we are talking about, the pile

         17  drivers, for instance, that cause vibration.  To

         18  remediate the sound from this equipment various

         19  mitigation methods would be engaged, depending on

         20  the equipment and its proximity to nearby residences

         21  and businesses.

         22                 In the proposed local law, DEP would

         23  be required to promulgate rules prescribing noise

         24  mitigation procedures and technology for different

         25  types of construction equipment. Persons doing
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          2  construction work would be required to create and

          3  implement a construction noise mitigation plan, or

          4  CNP, in accordance with DEP rules prior to

          5  commencing work.  We want to emphasize that this

          6  proposal for a mitigation plan does not set up any

          7  new regulatory roadblocks to commencing

          8  construction.

          9                 Rather the proposal is meant to

         10  integrated modern acoustic methods into the

         11  traditionally noisy activity of construction, while

         12  being mindful of the importance of the development

         13  and real estate industry to the City's economy.

         14  Where construction work is proceeding according to a

         15  CNP that conforms to the requirements of the DEP

         16  rule, that construction work is deemed to be

         17  compliant with the Noise Code.

         18                 We have, and we will continue to seek

         19  input from all concerns of the construction industry

         20  during the rule- making process.  We in government

         21  are mindful of the fact that government, itself, can

         22  be the biggest noisemaker of all, as it must

         23  construct and repair critical infrastructure and

         24  provide services for the public safety.

         25                 Next I am going other address
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          2  circulation devices, and again we have a board.  Air

          3  conditioning units, and particularly clusters of

          4  them, are a large and growing source of noise

          5  complaints.  Although the current code has a

          6  standard for air conditioning units of 45 decibels

          7  as measured in a residence, that standard has been

          8  interpreted to apply to a single unit. Due to this

          9  loophole, a residential complainant could be 15 feet

         10  away from multiple units of A/C equipment where each

         11  individual unit is in compliance, but with an

         12  aggregate noise level in excess of the 45 decibels,

         13  and there would be no violation unless a single unit

         14  is creating more than 45 decibels.  So, there is

         15  presently no enforcement remedy for this condition.

         16                 In response to this weakness, we have

         17  fashioned our proposal in such a way that recognizes

         18  new computer and hi tech industries need to expand

         19  in the City, and with those expansions comes

         20  increased equipment.  But it also recognizes that

         21  existing industries should not be injured by the

         22  proposed changes.  For circulation devices installed

         23  before the effective date of this section, DEP

         24  proposes a standard of 42 decibels applicable to an

         25  individual device, and 50 decibels for multiple
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          2  devices.  However, DEP is proposing that if multiple

          3  devices that preexist the effective date of this

          4  section exceed the aggregate standard of 50

          5  decibels, the building owner and/or the owners of

          6  the devices must achieve a 5 decibel reduction

          7  within 12 months of the effective date of the

          8  proposal.

          9                 By creating a standard applicable to

         10  prospective installations of multiple circulation

         11  devices, and requiring reduction in existing

         12  clusters of circulation devices, the proposed Noise

         13  Code will offer relief to the many residents whose

         14  complaints about multiple circulation devices could

         15  not be addressed under the existing Code.

         16                 The third area I want to focus on in

         17  my testimony, relates to commercial music

         18  establishments.  In the City that never sleeps, a

         19  vibrant nightlife is equally important to the City's

         20  economy, as those economic activities I described

         21  earlier. Keeping this in mind, DEP proposes a new

         22  standard that is not overly burdensome to the New

         23  York City nightlife, while still reducing the

         24  overall volume of the music from commercial

         25  establishments.

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 The existing Code regulates sound

          3  from commercial music establishments based on a

          4  standard of 45 decibels as measured in a nearby

          5  residence.  That standard fails to capture intrusive

          6  bass- level music, which is usually too low- pitched

          7  to be captured by a conventional decibel scale.

          8  Furthermore, vibrations that are generated by music

          9  are also intrusive, but cannot be captured by a

         10  conventional standard either.  Creating standards to

         11  regulate both amplified music that is plainly

         12  audible as well as less audible, but equally

         13  intrusive bass sounds, is the most complex aspect of

         14  our proposed Code revision.

         15                 The existing Code prohibitions on

         16  noise from commercial music establishments employ a

         17  standard, which is not designed to capture low-

         18  pitched musical tones.  Even loud bass tones may

         19  fail to violate a standard that uses a conventional

         20  decibel scale.  To remedy this defect in the current

         21  Code, DEP is proposing to prohibit commercial music

         22  establishments from creating sound in a residence

         23  that exceeds the ambient sound level by 6 decibels

         24  on the C scale or more.  Creating a C weighted

         25  decibel standard along with the existing
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          2  conventional decibels on the A scale will improve

          3  DEP's ability to regulate bass-level sounds from

          4  sources that can be very disturbing, but which do

          5  not exceed the standard scale decibel limits that

          6  are employed currently.

          7                 For music originating from a

          8  commercial establishment, DEP proposed to create a

          9  prohibition on sound that is plainly audible as

         10  measured at a distance of 15 feet or more on any

         11  public right-of-way.  This standard is necessary to

         12  prevent noise that spills out onto streets and

         13  sidewalks.

         14                 To promote compliance with the new

         15  provisions for commercial music, and with the

         16  understanding that industry greatly adds to the

         17  character that make the City what it is, DEP

         18  proposes to amend the enforcement provisions

         19  applicable to this section so that a zero penalty, I

         20  repeat, a zero penalty may be given for a first

         21  offense, if liability is admitted, and the

         22  respondent certifies there has been compliance

         23  within 30 days after the issuance of the violation.

         24  This is a significant departure from previous

         25  enforcement policy and it balances the needs of both
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          2  businesses and the nearby residences.

          3                 These comments are directed at what

          4  we are referring to as plainly audible standard, a

          5  new mechanism that we are proposing for the Code.

          6  Where the existing Code defines a decibel limit for

          7  a particular source, enforcement requires use of

          8  handheld decibel meters.  Although decibel meters

          9  are useful at obtaining acoustic measurements, they

         10  have drawbacks; they require frequent calibration;

         11  operating them successfully requires frequent use;

         12  they have a 3 decibels plus-or-minus margin of

         13  error; and they are cumbersome for our personnel who

         14  do the inspections.

         15                 We are proposing to adopt a plainly

         16  audible standard for commercial music, sound

         17  reproduction devices, a defined term that includes

         18  personal audio devices and what is known as

         19  boomcars, and for vehicle mufflers and exhausts,

         20  which when used improperly on motorcycles can

         21  disturb blocks and blocks of city streets and

         22  residences.  For each source, the standard proposed

         23  is a standard that is plainly audible at a specified

         24  distance.  Compliance is determined by the

         25  enforcement officer being able to clearly and
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          2  plainly hear the sound of that source at, or beyond,

          3  the specified distance.  By creating a plainly

          4  audible standard for these sources, enforcement will

          5  not be constrained by the need for a meter.

          6                 Some comments on the unreasonable

          7  noise standard, which is included in the current

          8  Noise Code:

          9                 In many different sections, the Code

         10  prohibits noise that is unreasonable to a person of

         11  normal sensitivities. DEP proposes to add, where

         12  practicable, legislatively determined criteria as to

         13  what constitutes unreasonable noise in certain cases

         14  to make enforcement simpler, and consequently, more

         15  effective.

         16                 For sources not covered by a specific

         17  section, DEP proposes to prohibit sounds caused by

         18  certain devices, that would increase the ambience

         19  sound level by more than a specified number of

         20  decibels as measured at a specified distance from

         21  the source. The decibel limit would be scaled higher

         22  during daytime, and lower during nighttime hours,

         23  reflecting the different tolerances of people for

         24  day and night activities.  To enforced against loud,

         25  impulsive noise, the type created by large
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          2  mechanical devices, or, for example, sound created

          3  by dropping a 30 cubic yard dumpster on a narrow

          4  crowded city street, that is not accurately measured

          5  using the normal noise meter settings.  DEP proposes

          6  to include in the prohibition of unreasonable noise

          7  any source that contributes more than a specific

          8  number of decibels using an alternative meter

          9  setting.

         10                 In summary, we are proposing

         11  revisions to the Noise Code that respond to the five

         12  key issues that we have discussed today; removing

         13  dated or unenforceable provisions; and, modifying

         14  standards for certain prohibitions where the

         15  existing standard is not protective enough.

         16                 Mayor Bloomberg said when he

         17  announced the proposal that this "Overhaul...will

         18  maintain our City's vibrancy by balancing the need

         19  for construction, development, and an exciting

         20  nightlife with New Yorkers well deserved right to

         21  peace and quiet."  I hope we have demonstrated that

         22  goal to the Council today, and we look forward to

         23  working on this important legislation with you in

         24  the coming days.  DEP hopes for the earliest

         25  possible enactment of this legislation.
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          2                 Let me just summarize by saying that

          3  the process of getting the Noise Code amended has

          4  been complex.  There will never be, from my point of

          5  view, and I think most here, a perfect Noise Code

          6  because that would mean everyone in New York City

          7  would have to be perfectly happy with it, that is an

          8  impossible task.  But the process of improving the

          9  current Noise Code has been very inclusive and

         10  collaborative.

         11                 I want to thank Mayor Bloomberg for

         12  his support and leadership.  Our prior Commissioner,

         13  Christopher Ward, who put a great deal of time and

         14  his wisdom into this difficult process, and the key

         15  stakeholders who have already play a very, very

         16  important part in this.  They include Frank McArdle

         17  of the GCA, Rob Bookman, Bob Zuckerman, The

         18  Nightlife Association, Nancy Nadle, Hard of Hearing,

         19  Marilyn Davenport and Steven Spinola, the Real

         20  Estate Board.  Our staff, Bob Avaltroni, our Deputy

         21  Commissioner and his staff that work very, very hard

         22  on this. And other advocates, such as Annette Zaner

         23  and Arline Bronzaft have been invaluable.

         24                 I think the reason the Noise Code

         25  hasn't been changed for 30 years is how difficult it
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          2  is.  To do it, you have to balance competing public

          3  goods.  Freedom, the freedom to make a lot of noise

          4  versus order, and that process is difficult.  So, we

          5  look forward to working with the Council on

          6  continuing this process.

          7                 And finally, I would also like to

          8  thank, for the record, Mr. Softee for participating.

          9  DEP is on the record of wanting a good and balance

         10  Noise Code, but I ensure everyone DEP likes ice

         11  cream.  So, thank you, thank you, Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         13  Commissioner Tweedy, I appreciate your testimony,

         14  and it is always good to work with Bob Avaltroni and

         15  Gerry Kelpin, who I have known and respected for

         16  many years.

         17                 Before I start, I will just, you

         18  know, mention, I think I would be remiss if I

         19  didn't.  When you were talking about the activities

         20  of City agencies, and sometimes their need to make

         21  noise and do repairs, I guess it was a couple of

         22  months ago, directly in front of my house an R1- 2

         23  single- family zone and you know, no commercial

         24  streets anywhere around.  And you know, a DEP crew

         25  came out and it was, they wanted to replace a
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          2  manhole, at 12:15 in the morning.  So they unloaded

          3  all the stuff, and they got the jackhammers out, and

          4  I came out, my neighbor across the street came out.

          5  My neighbor came out first, I figured I had to come

          6  out, when he came out.  And you know, his question

          7  to DEP, before I got there, was is this an

          8  emergency?  Is there a reason why we are taking

          9  jackhammers out after midnight, replacing a manhole,

         10  if it is not an emergency.  They said, well, it is

         11  not an emergency, but we have a lot to do, and this

         12  is like when we are doing it.

         13                 Oh, I'm sorry, I just want to mention

         14  that we are joined by Council Member Barron of

         15  Brooklyn, and Council Member Comrie of Queens.  A

         16  pleasure to have you here with us.

         17                 And so, clearly, part of what we want

         18  to do in balancing, you know, getting a quieter city

         19  is to completely eliminate all, you know, acts like

         20  that, where you have jackhammers out in single-

         21  family neighborhoods in the middle of the night for

         22  no apparent reason, other than the fact that, you

         23  know, a job has to get done, but that is not a good

         24  time to do that.

         25                 I will just let that statement stand,
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          2  unless you want to speak to that.  You know, is it

          3  part of what?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  I would

          5  say that gets right at the issue of balancing,

          6  competing public goods.  You get a lot of work done

          7  fast in the evening without dealing with traffic

          8  mitigation and other issues.  But the problems you

          9  cause are the ones you described.  It is a matter of

         10  priority and balancing.  We save money and get more

         11  work done, and believe me, if people want the cave-

         12  ins in the streets fixed as much as they want to

         13  sleep at night.  So, I agree with you, but it is

         14  tough.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         16  Just some general questions.  What did you get from

         17  the regulated community and others in putting

         18  together Intro. 397?  I know you tried to reach out

         19  to some of the effected sectors.  Could you describe

         20  that process, and which people you got on board, and

         21  how you worked with them to develop the product that

         22  we have today.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Mr.

         24  Chairman, as you suggested, and as Commissioner

         25  Tweedy has suggested, this was a very monumental
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          2  task.  And obviously, we did not have all the

          3  answers.  And what we attempted to do, was try to

          4  look at things with balance as the Commissioner has

          5  alluded to in his testimony, and we brought in

          6  people from all walks of life.  You know, it was

          7  often said that it would be impossible to get

          8  advocates that are looking for more peaceful

          9  environment, and those that do construction work, as

         10  an example, I will use that as an example, or the

         11  nightlife folks, or others, to come to a forum to

         12  make suggestions and come up with a constructive

         13  remedy that has balance and will actually reduce the

         14  amount of noise in our city, while again, not losing

         15  the city's vibrancy.

         16                 So we were able to meet, and we will

         17  continue to meet with all stakeholders involved in

         18  the Noise Code.  And as I said, it is wide spectrum.

         19    The Commissioner alluded to some of the people,

         20  and complimented some of the people, and there are

         21  others.  And we will never turn our back to an

         22  individual.  When we mentioned Mr. Softee, as we

         23  said before, you know, obviously what happened, I

         24  think, the announcement came in June of last year,

         25  when the Mayor made the announcement, with yourself
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          2  present, as well as Council Member Vallone, and a

          3  Mr. Softee truck happened to beckon by.  Well,

          4  obviously, as we suggested the Mayor wants the kids

          5  to have ice cream, but it showed that something

          6  could be done.  And I respect the Mr. Softee people

          7  for coming out and saying, we can do something to

          8  reduce the noise, and yet, provide the service that

          9  we have.

         10                 And we have had that type of

         11  cooperation and atmosphere as we have met with all

         12  stakeholders.  And where you think it is almost

         13  impossible to achieve that balance, because people

         14  have self- interest, I think we don't give the

         15  credit to the citizens of New York, the people who

         16  work here, and the people that have business in the

         17  City.

         18                 A coalition was formed, it is a firm

         19  coalition with all involved, each one will have a

         20  seat at the table, and we are proud of the document

         21  that we have presented.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         23  Thank you.  With respect to the definition of

         24  unreasonable noise contained in Intro. 397, how

         25  would you determined what the ambient level of sound
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          2  is; and how would one ensure that a particular sound

          3  source increased the ambient level by a certain

          4  amount?  That has always been sort of a pitfall

          5  because there is the quandary of you have the

          6  ambient sound and then you have a difference created

          7  by whatever noise source that you are going after.

          8  And you know, to what extent are, you know, noise

          9  meters and decibel meters ever used?  You know, part

         10  of this, you know, gets to enforcement, what is

         11  going on now?  But particularly, my first part of my

         12  question about, how do you determine what the

         13  ambient level of sound is, and then measure that

         14  increment?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  Sorry,

         16  Gerry Kelpin and her staff deal with this type of

         17  issue day-in and day-out, I am going to let her

         18  respond to that.

         19                 MS. KELPIN:  Good morning.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Hi, Gerry.

         21                 MS. KELPIN:  The way that we identify

         22  the total sound, as well as the ambient, we sort of,

         23  from a practical point of view, we work in the

         24  reverse.  We go out and we have isolated by visual

         25  line of sight, what the source is that we think is
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          2  creating the noise.  The noise meter is pointed at

          3  that source, and we take the total reading at that

          4  point.  We then go and turn that source off, and the

          5  reading that we get without the source on, becomes

          6  our ambient.  The ambient can change based on, you

          7  know, time of day.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  If I could just

          9  interrupt for a second, I would like to have the

         10  Sergeant close the back door, please, too much

         11  noise.

         12                 MS. KELPIN:  You got it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  If you can

         14  laugh, it is okay, it is like a noise hearing.

         15                 MS. KELPIN:  Well, some people don't

         16  appreciate it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well, what can

         18  I tell you.

         19                 MS. KELPIN:  So it is very much a

         20  measurement of what is happening at the time that

         21  the inspectors are out there. There will be times

         22  when it will be to our advantage to come back when

         23  certain sources are not in use, and be able to have

         24  a better isolation of the source that the person is

         25  actually hearing in their apartment.
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          2                 There are different situations where

          3  we take readings.  It is easier when we are within

          4  someone's apartment to use a noise meter.  There are

          5  situations on the street where it is also easy

          6  because we can visually identify the source that we

          7  are taking the reading from.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How many people

          9  currently know how to use noise meters?  Because it

         10  seems that this legislation is sort of taking us

         11  down the track of, you know, relying more and more

         12  on people having to use noise meters.  And how many

         13  police officers have that ability; have many

         14  precincts have noise meters?  You know, this is, and

         15  so, if we are going down the track of, you know,

         16  using more noise meters, we have to have them

         17  available, have people being able to use them.  And

         18  you know one measure of that is, what is going on

         19  right now.  How many summonses, for example, have

         20  been issued by, you know, professionals, you know

         21  whether they be with the Police Department or DEP

         22  where a noise meter was used?  What kind of record

         23  do we have in using these noise meters?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         25  Actually, Mr. Chairman, what we are doing, and I
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          2  think the flexibility that the new Noise Code will

          3  allow, is that we will have less use of noise

          4  meters.  Where we look at plainly audible, again, we

          5  are talking about a common sense perspective.  For

          6  instance, I will use the Police Department as an

          7  example, when they see a situation with one of

          8  Council Member Gerson's favorite issues with regard

          9  to motorcycles, they will be able to do certain

         10  things out in the field from a common sense

         11  perspective.  So, in fact, the person that is

         12  violating the Noise Code will not be able to do so,

         13  and there are other areas as well.

         14                 So, I think what we have done is

         15  allow more discretion from a common sense

         16  perspective, and not be totally committed to decibel

         17  levels and noise meters, where there will be a time

         18  and place for everything.  But I think this allows

         19  us more flexibility.

         20                 MS. KELPIN:  If I could just add one

         21  other thing? Currently, we do have to take sound

         22  level readings when we use the provisions that deal

         23  with unreasonable noise.  We still have to

         24  demonstrate with meter readings.  So, we aren't

         25  actually increasing the use of the noise meters, we
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          2  are making it more accurate.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, help us

          4  out, help us all out.  You have the current paradigm

          5  that we are living under, and there are noise meter

          6  uses for certain applications.  And then you have

          7  Intro. 397, that, you know, creates a whole new

          8  world.  Where do we, you know, rely on noise meters

          9  now, in what specific instances do we rely on the

         10  noise meters, and in what instances will we rely on

         11  noise meters, if 397 becomes a reality? That is it.

         12                 MS. KELPIN:  Okay.  Currently for

         13  circulation devices, commercial music within a

         14  residence, we use a noise meter.  We will continue

         15  to do that.  It is the same, we have made it, we

         16  have enhanced our ability to deal with those two

         17  issues.

         18                 For construction noise, the current

         19  standard is unreasonable, that requires us to take

         20  sound readings.  The change that we are proposing

         21  will take that entire arena out of having to take

         22  sound level meetings.  Currently the Code requires-

         23   -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  With regard to

         25  construction noise, it will take it out because you
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          2  will have the noise mitigation plan.  As long as

          3  they are following noise mitigation plan - -

          4                 MS. KELPIN:  Because essentially we

          5  will have built-in reduction - -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Fine, okay, I

          7  don't want to throw up people's chance, okay, keep

          8  going.

          9                 MS. KELPIN:  For vehicle noise,

         10  motorcycles, as well as cars, exhaust systems from

         11  these, currently the standard is using a meter.  We

         12  are moving away from that by introducing the plainly

         13  audible standard.

         14                 Sound, music that is heard on the

         15  street where we would have to measure it under sort

         16  of certain circumstances, we moving to just the

         17  plainly audible standard.

         18                 A situation, in some cases, where we

         19  still need to measure the sound level, let's say,

         20  other than commercial music type business, instead

         21  of using just unreasonable, we have created a number

         22  that is more accurate that people can understand.

         23                 I'm sure I left out some stuff, but.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It is okay,

         25  first hearing, we will have more time.  And this is
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          2  going to be my last question for now.  At the outset

          3  of the hearing, those members who were not here at

          4  the outset of the hearing, I indicated that I wanted

          5  to keep my questions brief.  I wanted to ask you to

          6  keep your questions brief, because we have a limited

          7  amount of time to get this hearing, than we want to

          8  get all of the witnesses on.

          9                 I will use this opportunity, before

         10  my next question to indicate that we have

         11  Councilwoman Margarita Lopez, a member of this

         12  Committee, here with us, and Council Member Bill

         13  DeBlasio, a member of the Committee, and Alan

         14  Jennings from Queens, a member of the Committee.

         15  Thank you all for joining us.

         16                 Section 24- 223 of Intro. 397

         17  provides that after hours work authorizations may be

         18  issued for City construction projects that are

         19  judicially mandated or the subject of Consent

         20  Orders.  Does that mean that work on such projects,

         21  such as the Croton Filtration Plant, to work on

         22  wastewater treatment plants, would happen at night

         23  or on the weekends?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  If they

         25  follow the regulations laid out in the Code, then
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          2  that kind of work would be possible, yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          4  Thank you, Commissioner.  I recognize Council Member

          5  Peter Vallone for questions.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair. Thank you, Acting Commissioner, Mr.

          8  Avaltroni, for all the work you have done on this

          9  Code.  I know it is taking a long time.

         10                 Let me, quickly, get the Mr. Softee

         11  thing out of the way.  Obviously, that jingle evokes

         12  memories of childhood, the one played incessantly,

         13  it is just played annoying.  The original proposal

         14  would have banned it.  And then I know, I worked

         15  with Mr. Softee, as did you, and they have made

         16  offers to limit the duration, limit the time of day,

         17  limit the decibel level.  What is the present

         18  situation?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  It seems

         20  to be a work in progress, I read the paper this

         21  morning, and I will be intrigued to read the

         22  testimony that it said to only be given today about

         23  turning off the jingle in parking mode.

         24                 I think the point is as Mr. Avaltroni

         25  said, we have an open door policy, we want to hear
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          2  all good ideas.  As I said earlier, there is no such

          3  thing as a perfect Code.  To create an orderly

          4  process around this and limit noise, you are

          5  limiting someone's ability to do something, and that

          6  has to be, by and around that, and there has to

          7  inclusion.  So, this is an ongoing process, and we

          8  will certainly look at whatever proposal is coming

          9  forward.  We don't have a fixed position on that, we

         10  think there is, as I think Bob said, room for a

         11  solution here.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  As do we, on

         13  the City Council.  So, we hope you work that out.  I

         14  know it is tough to take a guy talking about Mr.

         15  Softee with a big Sponge Bob Band Aid on his finger,

         16  seriously.

         17                 But I have two more questions,

         18  because the Chair wants me to keep it short.  The

         19  audible noise standard, thank you for including

         20  that.  That was something that I introduced a bill

         21  over a year ago.  We held off on it here, because we

         22  understood that you were incorporating it, and that

         23  is the way government should work.  So, I think the

         24  days of police officers standing next to loud car

         25  radios and loud motorcycles, not being able to do
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          2  anything because they don't have a decibel meter

          3  will be over soon.

          4                 Can you explain to us what some of

          5  those distance levels are, the distant standards

          6  that you said, and how those were determined?

          7                 MS. KELPIN:  We have set a plainly

          8  audible 200 feet for motorcycles, and for cars 150

          9  feet.  What we did was realizing that the motor

         10  vehicle law sets limits that a vehicle, either a car

         11  or motorcycle has to meet at a certain distance from

         12  the center line on the street, we had an idea of

         13  what those were. And we did some work to translate

         14  what that sound would be at distances from that

         15  source, and we tried to make sure that if we could

         16  hear a motorcycle at, let's say 200 feet, it would

         17  be exceeding the Motor Vehicle standard.  We

         18  recognize that anywhere within that is certainly

         19  going to be louder.  But from an enforcement

         20  perspective we felt that if we could identify it at

         21  200 feet that that bike was plainly audible, we

         22  would have a solid case to say that it was making

         23  noise that was unreasonable and not meeting the DMV

         24  standard as well.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:   Okay, you
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          2  also talk about a horrible noise standard when it

          3  comes to commercial establishments.  But directly

          4  before that, on page 10, you mention the development

          5  of a C scale.  I'm a musician, the only C scale I

          6  know has nothing to do with measuring base levels.

          7  So you will be using both the C scale and the

          8  audible noise standard, how will that work?

          9                 MS. KELPIN:  The plainly audible

         10  standard is actually for commercial music

         11  establishments that may play where doors open and

         12  close, or they have a window open where it can be

         13  heard on the street.  And prior to this, it was

         14  essentially zero tolerance that any sort of leakage

         15  of music from a club or a restaurant would be deemed

         16  in violation.

         17                 But we recognize that that is a

         18  little bit aggressive, so we have set a distance

         19  where this intermittent or occasional music might

         20  leak out onto the street and be acceptable.  You

         21  know as long as we can't hear beyond the distance

         22  that we have established, that we suggested.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So it is

         24  acceptable up to a certain distance from the

         25  establishment.
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          2                 MS. KELPIN:  Correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And when you

          4  pass that distance, what is the purpose of the meter

          5  then, if you can hear it pass that distance?

          6                 MS. KELPIN:  There are two provisions

          7  that deal with commercial music.  The one where we

          8  are using a meter is established within the

          9  residence.  So if the music is generally loud, not a

         10  strong bass tone, we would use measurements based on

         11  the A scale, which is sort of general hearing range

         12  of the - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  But if it is

         14  plainly audible?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  No, but

         16   - -

         17                 MS. KELPIN:  No, no, plainly audible

         18   - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I must be

         20  missing something.

         21                 MS. KELPIN: - -  does not apply.

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  Let me

         23  try it.

         24                 MS. KELPIN:  Go ahead.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  If you
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          2  are in an apartment upstairs from a bar, and night

          3  after night the music is driving you crazy, we will

          4  come out and use meters, both A scale and this other

          5  scale that allows you to capture intrusive bass

          6  sounds.

          7                 The audible standard applies to when

          8  noise is being heard in the street, and where we are

          9  applying this 15- foot standard.  So they apply to

         10  different circumstances.  The meter is for within a

         11  residence being affected by commercial music.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Astoria has

         13  a thriving nightlife, which is great.  But I get a

         14  good deal of complaints about that.  So if there is

         15  a residence across the street, and they can hear the

         16  music coming through the window, that would not be

         17  enough of a fact that they can hear it, you would

         18  have to measure it, if they were across the street?

         19                 MS. KELPIN:  Well we would have two

         20  approaches, we could simply issue a notice of

         21  violation because we would be hearing it on the

         22  street.  If they can hear it across the street, it

         23  is greater than the distance that is set by the

         24  Code.

         25                 The penalty structure for on the
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          2  street violation is much less severe than the

          3  standard, the penalties that are established for an

          4  actually loud sound within somebody's residence, you

          5  know the intrusion of it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay, I am

          7  still a little confused, but I will go through it

          8  with you later.

          9                 Who is authorized to determine this

         10  audible noise standard, just police officers and DEP

         11  officers, the public, who is allowed to do that?

         12                 MS. KELPIN:  Currently the way that

         13  the Code is structured, it would be PD and

         14  ourselves.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay, again,

         16  thank you, all three of you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         18  Council Member Vallone.  Council Member Lopez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I am

         20  interested in two items that had to do with noise.

         21  And I want to tell you, I congratulate the Mayor for

         22  trying to deal with this issue.  But trying to deal

         23  with this issue have implications and damage, also,

         24  to communities.  My community have only economic

         25  development when people, entrepreneurs, decide to go
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          2  there and start putting businesses that are

          3  primarily bars.  They are great neighbors, they are

          4  good people, they are great business for New York.

          5                 Now you come in with this Code and it

          6  is a threat to the economic development of my

          7  community.  And I want to ask you, very clear, when

          8  you are trying to put this in place, did you

          9  understand that you are threatening the fiber of a

         10  community, unless that is mine, in which if this

         11  business go out of business, my community will be,

         12  again, in the place where it was before by this

         13  Noise Code that you want to put in place?

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON TWEEDY:  Our

         15  intention, obviously, in amending and attempting to

         16  improve the Noise Code is not to put anyone out of

         17  business.  We think we have struck, DEP feels with a

         18  lot of inclusion and work and collaboration from, as

         19  Bob said, the stakeholders, like the Nightlife

         20  Association, we think we have struck a reasonable

         21  balance.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That is not

         23  what I keep talking with them.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON TWEEDY:  And we

         25  are now about to undertake through hearings a
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          2  further look at these issues, and we will be working

          3  with you staff to staff.  But that is our opinion

          4  that it is, again, I understand bars are a critical

          5  part of the economic vitality of the City.  But

          6  noise is also an issue for the neighbors of the

          7  bars, we are looking for a balance.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  But you

          9  created those noise when you put people to smoke

         10  outside on the streets, and that is part of the

         11  problem we have, and that is the truth.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         13  Councilwoman Lopez, also, I think one of the

         14  niceties, it is complaint driven. So, for instance,

         15  your constituents, if there is a problem, if they

         16  call us, we will come out and respond.  We are not

         17  going to be going out and seek something, because no

         18  one hears a problem.               So, what we have

         19  attempted to do, as the Commissioner, again,

         20  suggested, is that we are striking a fine balance

         21  here.  There is no intent or objective, obviously,

         22  to put people out of business.  That is important to

         23  your community, as it is too many other communities

         24  as well.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That may not
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          2  be your intention, but I am going to make this very

          3  clear to you.  I have to put a piece of legislation

          4  here to stop the false complaints against all of

          5  those businesses, because people want those

          6  businesses to go.  And are false complaining that

          7  through your Police Department, when the Police

          8  Department the complaint was false.  I had to put a

          9  piece of legislation to deal with that.

         10                 And with this Code that you are

         11  trying to put in place, what you are doing is

         12  increasing the label of tools to harass those

         13  businesses.  I don't see this as a tool that you are

         14  putting in place to bring everybody together, at

         15  this point.  And this, I am voting against this,

         16  that is as this right now.

         17                 Now the second issue I want to

         18  mention to you, is the construction.  My community

         19  has a problem with construction where the Building

         20  Department give permits to contractors to build at

         21  one o'clock in the morning, at two o'clock in the

         22  morning.  Then if we are going to talk about noise,

         23  let's talk about the Building Department not giving

         24  those permits. Sometimes the permits have been given

         25  to start at five o'clock in the morning.
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          2                 And you forgive me, but if we want to

          3  control noise, you know where you need to begin, by

          4  stopping those permits at five o'clock in the

          5  morning that do not allow people to sleep.  What is

          6  going to be done about that in connection to this

          7  Noise Code?

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  Those

          9  exemptions for normal construction hours are the

         10  responsibility of the Department of Buildings, and

         11  I, as Acting Commissioner, will be meeting with

         12  Commissioner Lancaster, this is a hot issue right

         13  now.  We have been getting complaints, and I share

         14  your concern about it.   Again, it is a balance, you

         15  have got very large development projects, I am not

         16  saying about your community necessarily.  And for

         17  them to be able to work these hours is often more

         18  safe because they are out of sidewalks.  But I hear

         19  your issue, and it is a real issue.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I am going to

         21  tell you this, NYU have the audacity to begin

         22  building a building on 14th Street and 13th Street,

         23  and they were constructing in there, at the time, at

         24  four o'clock in the morning, at five o'clock in the

         25  morning.  You know how I was able to stop them from
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          2  harming the neighbors?  By threatening with a

          3  lawsuit.  The Code Enforcement Unit for Noise did

          4  not respond, did not help.  The Department of

          5  Buildings did not do nothing about it.  Then when I

          6  see this being more enforced and moved to be

          7  proactive, I want to see you be proactive not

          8  approving permits at five o'clock in the morning for

          9  construction, or one o'clock in the morning, that is

         10  insane, and it is unacceptable.

         11                 Then if you are going to be seriously

         12  talking to us about noise, let's start there.  Let's

         13  start with the Building Department not issuing these

         14  special permits, when that is the timing which

         15  people have to go to sleep.  Although, this is the

         16  City that never sleeps.  Some people sleep at that

         17  time, perhaps half of the population.

         18                 And what I see from this noise

         19  control legislation, I see something good.  But I

         20  don't see you addressing problems that have been

         21  serious, that are big, that need to be addressed,

         22  like the one that I mentioned to you with the

         23  Building Department, and the one that I mentioned

         24  about people on the street.  Because they no longer

         25  can smoke inside of the bars.  Those two things, you
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          2  need to address them before you past this.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  I would

          4  just point that the proposed Code as amended, is

          5  actually less stringent. What we are providing more

          6  flexibility for these nightlife establishments than

          7  the current Code that exists today.

          8                 The smoking issue is a different

          9  issue that has created urgency, perhaps, around it.

         10  But in our changing the Code, it is actually an

         11  improvement in terms of providing more flexibility.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Well I need

         13  you to know that the organizations in my area who

         14  are going to be affected by this, they are not

         15  happy.  And if they are not happy, I'm not happy,

         16  and nobody is going to be happy.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         19  Council Member Lopez.  Council Member Gerson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         21  very much, Mr. Chair.  Let me thank you for allowing

         22  me this opportunity.  I am here as a guest, not a

         23  member of the Committee.  But as our Chair knows and

         24  the Department knows we have been working together

         25  on noise issues for quite a while.
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          2                 I just want to personally

          3  congratulate and thank you, Mr. Chair, for once

          4  again, your outstanding leadership for improving the

          5  environment for all of us in New York.  And I want

          6  to congratulate the Department, this is a step

          7  forward. Commissioner Avaltroni, this is something

          8  that we have been looking forward to for quite a

          9  while, and I am glad we are taking this step.  And I

         10  want, in the interest of time, reiterate all the

         11  noise, but I congratulate you on your selection of

         12  the person with whom you consult.

         13                 This is a step forward, but my job is

         14  to push you and the Administration to take as giant

         15  a step forward as we possibly can at this moment

         16  when for the first time in decades we are revising

         17  the Noise Code.  New York will never be the quietest

         18  spot on earth, but it could be a lot quieter, and

         19  noise is much more than a quality of life issue.

         20  Though it is that, but it is a health issue, it is a

         21  personal, privacy issue.  Excessive noise is the

         22  trespasser, which invades our homes and robs us of

         23  what makes, what is very special to residential

         24  living and human life. And it is a constant assault

         25  where it is allowed.
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          2                 So, therefore, I am concerned over

          3  what appears to me from my preliminary reading

          4  several significant omissions. So, I just want to,

          5  and I am going to follow it as best I can, my

          6  Chair's lead in just being reaped and then we will

          7  follow- up with detail.  But I would just like to go

          8  through to make sure that I am not missing anything.

          9    To see, if in fact, what I see as omissions are

         10  omitted.  You know you can answer yes or no, and

         11  when necessary, you know, add any more detail.  And

         12  then we will follow- up to see what we can do to

         13  include them.

         14                 But is there anything, and I will

         15  just go through the list, and it is a no special

         16  priority order.  But I will pick up where my

         17  colleague, Council Member Lopez left off.  Is there

         18  anything in the Noise Code, which addresses

         19  standards in this Noise Code, which addresses

         20  standards for evening or weekend street or building

         21  construction?  And when I say standards, well, go

         22  ahead.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         24  we have addressed it, and it is not construction,

         25  you know, it is not limited to construction as we
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          2  know it.  For instance, the redevelopment of Lower

          3  Manhattan would be a perfect example, and it is on

          4  your mind.  What we are attempting to do, again, is

          5  to allow the construction to continue, because we

          6  have to rebuild the City.  We also have to have

          7  people in residences to be able to do work at

          8  certain times.  But there will be, obviously, time

          9  periods and time constraints taken into

         10  consideration that we will respect the ability for

         11  people to have peace and quiet.  And we will work

         12  with the people in the construction field, we will

         13  make sure we get out to people who do work on the

         14  weekends, for instance, in there residences to make

         15  sure that they understand, fully understand what is

         16  in the Code, what you can do, what you cannot do,

         17  what limitations there are.  As Commissioner Tweedy

         18  said, we will certainly touch base again with the

         19  Buildings Department, we will address Council Member

         20  Lopez's issues.  And I think if some of it was read

         21  a little, you know, with more in depth, in an in-

         22  depth fashion, I think, you would see that we did

         23  address those issues.  But - -

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well why

         25  don't you tell me the section?  Let me rephrase or
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          2  restate my question.  Is there anything in this

          3  Noise Code which prescribes standards for when

          4  evening or weekend construction permits may be

          5  issued?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  On

          7  24- 223 had limits on after hours and weekend

          8  construction.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, hold

         10  on, what is that section again?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  It is

         12  24- 223.  And if you will notice, Council Member

         13  Gerson, our agents may issue permits for work before

         14  7:00 a.m., 6:00 p.m., going on a lot, you know, it

         15  goes on and describes what we are proposing to do.

         16  So I think we have addressed those issues.  And as I

         17  said, it is not limited to major construction.  It

         18  is, again, a common sense approach that it is almost

         19  like neighbor- to- neighbor that you respect your

         20  neighbor while accomplishing what you need to

         21  accomplish to, let's say, do work on your house or

         22  whatever the case may be.

         23                 So we have tried to cover this

         24  comprehensively, and I do also, going back to your

         25  point, we do share out of respect that we have with
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          2  some of the people that work, like Doctor Bronzaft,

          3  and I am sure you are alluding to, and we have taken

          4  those things into consideration.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I suggest the

          6  omission from this section is that it does what you

          7  and the Commissioner described in the Commissioner's

          8  earlier remark, and that is, it codifies what you

          9  described as the balancing approach.  I suggest that

         10  is a glaring omission.  I suggest that it is not

         11  acceptable to the people of this City to have a

         12  balancing approach for construction, which prevents

         13  them from sleeping.  It is incorrect.  And I am a

         14  little concern when I hear our Chief Environmental

         15  Protection Officer of the City speak in terms that

         16  people are equally concerned with quiet as they are

         17  with getting a pothole fixed or something like that.

         18                 It seems to me the only type of noise

         19  that should be allowed from construction activity

         20  during evening hours or most weekend hours should be

         21  either true emergencies, power, gas, et cetera, or

         22  if construction which really, because of a

         23  transportation situation, can only be done during

         24  that time.  And the fact that you have not included

         25  that standard, it shouldn't be a balancing standard,
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          2  it should be an exception to the rule standard for

          3  true emergencies or true traffic exigencies  And the

          4  omission of that, I suggest is a glaring omission

          5  from this. Because it is not acceptable to have, and

          6  people, by the way, if I may correct a statement, I

          7  can assure that people of this City do not want to

          8  be kept up for weeks or months at a time in order to

          9  get a construction project finished a little bit

         10  earlier, even a year earlier.  That is not the type

         11  of balancing people are seeking.  People are seeking

         12  a limitation of construction work only for true

         13  emergencies or true traffic exigencies.

         14                 So I think we should go back and

         15  correct that omission.

         16                 MS. KELPIN:  If I may?  We have put

         17  certain language in that we feel reflects your

         18  comments.  With everything that we write, we are not

         19  100 percent sure that what we have written captures

         20  it correctly.  But the intent that you are

         21  describing is the intent that we have tried to

         22  incorporate in 223.  For instance, Section (d) tries

         23  to deal with it, (e) tries to deal with it as well.

         24                 I think the detail really, if we may,

         25  rather than prolong this, that we would really like
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          2  to sit down and go over the specifics.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Good.  Well I

          4  will look forward to that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And if I could,

          6  let me just- -

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I was

          8  following your lead and your example - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Quite all

         10  right.  Let me just jump in here a little bit.  I

         11  think, you know, part of the, you know, if I can

         12  just try to crystallize it.  You got  Section 24-

         13  219, that states the noise mitigation strategies for

         14  construction, private or public, would be developed,

         15  you know, pursuant to future rule- making.  So that

         16  gives the Department discretion during rule- making

         17  to figure out what those things are going to be, you

         18  know, leaving the construction industry, Council

         19  Member Gerson, myself, Vallone and others, figuring

         20  out, you know, what kind of paradigm we are going to

         21  be working on there. And I think that is the lapse,

         22  or whatever you want to call it. And so, you know,

         23  to the extent that we can get further insight into,

         24  you know, what the noise mitigation strategies would

         25  be, and not leave it to rule- making - -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: - -  would make

          4  us feel a little bit better about what we are going

          5  to be walking into here.  So we are not going to

          6  give you, like the blank check to do this all during

          7  rule- making.  And so I think that is the thing, so

          8  you know there is always a balance between how much

          9  you do in the bill, and how much you do after the

         10  bill in rule making, and you cut yourself a pretty,

         11  you know, big project for yourself after when you do

         12  the bill.  And I think we have to move in the

         13  direction of putting some of the stuff in the bill,

         14  so that we all know what we are getting into.  So

         15  maybe that can be the last word on that.  Okay?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  On that, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you have

         18  much more?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Not much

         20  more, for this hearing.  We will have much more

         21  after the hearing.  But for this hearing, is there

         22  anything in the Code that addresses helicopters, the

         23  location of helicopter landing pads in proximity to

         24  residences?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We
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          2  are proposing to do a study over a 12- month period

          3  with regard to air traffic.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Including,

          5  well, I would suggest that we follow up on that.  I

          6  think there have been sufficient studies to, with

          7  respect to helicopters that we should be able to

          8  have rules at the same time as we implement this

          9  Noise Code.  Maybe other air traffic would require

         10  study.

         11                 Is there anything in the Noise Code

         12  which gets to, with respect to motorcycles, - -  I

         13  just have two more questions, briefly.  Anything in

         14  the Noise Code which gets to the source - -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Quickly,

         16  quickly.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Quick answers,

         19  quick questions, quick answers.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Yes or no,

         21  will do, and then we will follow up.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, fine.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Is there

         24  anything in the Noise Code which addresses, either

         25  by prescription or by penalty, depending the source
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          2  of noise for motorcycles, i.e., straight pipes or

          3  engines designed to generate the excessive noise,

          4  which many motorcycles generate?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

          6  think when we spoke about plainly audible and common

          7  sense approach that that would cover that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, but it

          9  doesn't explicitly mention straight pipes or

         10  engines.  And the problem is that the Police have

         11  testified they will not chase motorcycles, because

         12  of the safety hazards.  If they are not going to

         13  chase motorcycles, it is going to be very hard to

         14  enforce a 200- foot rule on a moving motorcycle, and

         15  I understand why the Police will not chase

         16  motorcycles, which is why we need the ability to

         17  inspect parked motorcycles and get at this

         18  equipment.

         19                 My last question, on the issue of

         20  multiple- source circulation devices, and actually

         21  it is the last, but a two- part question.  One is

         22  does the definition, but briefly, the definition of

         23  circulation devices, would that cover in place

         24  generators or other sound generating devices which

         25  do not serve air conditioning purposes, but which
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          2  generate noise and contribute to the cumulative

          3  impact you say you want to get at? And secondly, you

          4  have a grandfathering clause, which you describe for

          5  existing businesses, and will there come a time

          6  though, where existing businesses are required to

          7  comply with standard, sometime in the near future

          8  beyond just a 5 decibel reduction?  So that if we

          9  have a source that hypothetically, you know, is at

         10  100 decibels over, we don't just leave them alone at

         11  95 decibels over.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON TWEEDY:  The

         13  answer is yes to your first question.  And the

         14  answer is, when they replace the equipment, to the

         15  second question as it is currently proposed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So as

         17  currently proposed, until they replace the

         18  equipment, they could remain indefinitely over the

         19  limit, with the exception of this 5 decibel

         20  reduction? I just want to make sure that I

         21  understand it correctly.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  But,

         23  Council Member Gerson, as you know, I think the life

         24  span of certain equipment, you know, I think it

         25  addresses your issue.  And I guess we will have
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          2  further follow- up on it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  But I take

          4  that as a yes. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.  And

          5  we will get at the other omissions in the future.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          7  Council Member Gerson.  Council Member Barron.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you

          9  very much.  I just want to say that you and the

         10  Mayor are very bold taking on Mr. Softee.  You are

         11  going to traumatize millions of children in this

         12  City.

         13                 But I wanted to ask you, first of

         14  all, what is the economic impact of this, how much

         15  will this cost, any impact at all?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         17  Obviously, we could not state the economic impact,

         18  but I can tell you this. When I said we had a

         19  coalition of various entities involved in the

         20  process, if it were a severe economic impact we

         21  would have heard that loud and clear, no pun

         22  intended.  So I think what we have is a reasonable

         23  approach to reduce the sound levels in the City

         24  without causing a major hardship on people that do

         25  business here.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Okay.  The

          3  other piece I wanted to ask you, this is a very

          4  serious one for me. Enforcement, enforcement,

          5  everybody wants some peace and quiet at the same

          6  time creating a balance that you speak of.  But we

          7  have a real enforcement problem in our communities.

          8  In Sunset Park when the Police pulled out a cord

          9  from a family, the Acosta Family was playing music

         10  and a police officer was cruising around and just

         11  pulled out the cord because it was, to him, too much

         12  noise.  It created a real problem.  The family was

         13  brutalized, a lot of, just a mess.  And they are in

         14  court now, they are charging the Police, the Police

         15  are charging them.

         16                 I am just concerned that when we have

         17  more interaction with law enforcement trying to

         18  enforce these kinds of measures, that what will we

         19  do to ensure that we don't have incidents that

         20  occurred with the Acosta Family in Sunset Park, a

         21  65- year- old grandmother was also roughed up by

         22  Police around noise.  And I am one who wants it

         23  quiet at night, just like everybody else.  But not

         24  at the expense of being brutalized or over

         25  aggressive enforcement.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

          3  Council Member Barron, I agree with you.  But I

          4  think we should step back, obviously, that incident

          5  is something that is obvious more than unfortunate.

          6  But let's take a step back, and look, we are very

          7  fortunate the Mayor had the foresight to have, Ray

          8  Kelly is the Commissioner of the Police Department

          9  in New York City.  They do a great job, not only did

         10  they reduce crime, but they do it in the area of

         11  sensitivity, and I think you would agree with that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  No, we don't

         13  agree with that, there is some debate on that.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Okay,

         15  then maybe we would differ there, because I feel

         16  that this Commissioner does do that job.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  We differ

         18  very much on that.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  And

         20  again, this Noise Code is intended to improve the

         21  quality of life.  And in improving the quality of

         22  life, you are dealing with respecting people in

         23  every walk of life. And I think we are accomplishing

         24  that, and I think PD will certainly come through

         25  again.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  But that is

          3  my concern, Sir, because we do differ on your view

          4  of Ray Kelly and the Police Department, we are not

          5  here to debate that, but we do differ very much.

          6  And I think that that is what this, what you are

          7  overlooking is that there is a relationship that is

          8  amicable in our community with the Police, and it

          9  just does not exist.

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:

         11  Councilman, let me just say, - -

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Well let me

         13  finish.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  I'm

         15  sorry.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  It just

         17  doesn't exist.  So any time we have, believe me, I'm

         18  for quiet like everybody else. But any time we put

         19  in more legislation that is going to create more

         20  interaction in Black and Latino communities with the

         21  Police Department, no matter how well intended the

         22  law is, the consequence of that sometimes is very

         23  severe for our community. And I think people take it

         24  lightly and talk about the glowing statistics on

         25  crime and Ray Kelly, when that is not the issue. The
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          2  issue is we have real problems in our community.

          3                 And I just want to know what we can

          4  do to make sure that when we go about enforcing this

          5  that we do it courteously, with respect of people,

          6  and not create more problems in another area as we

          7  solve this one.

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  I will

          9  say I understand the issue you are raising.  I think

         10  the purpose of DEP working on this Code is to

         11  provide a better code to improve the quality of

         12  life.  I think the issue you are raising transcends

         13  that responsibility on DEP's part, and it has to be

         14  directed to who is doing the enforcement.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Well I do

         16  hope you have some conversation with the Police

         17  Department.  I am sure the agencies work together,

         18  collaborate on things.  And raise that I am very,

         19  very concerned about that.  I would appreciate it if

         20  you and the Mayor would raise that with the Police

         21  Department, because I think it is very critical.

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  Okay,

         23  Sir.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you

         25  very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Council Member

          3  Recchia.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yes, Sir.

          5  Good morning. There is one issue that I just want to

          6  go through with this Noise Code and stuff, and

          7  issues.  I believe that we have to give some

          8  authority, you know, to the Park Rangers.  Because I

          9  represent the beaches in Coney Island and large

         10  parks area.  And let me just tell you something, on

         11  Saturdays, on the beaches and on parks you have

         12  blasting music, okay.  And no one knows, you know,

         13  the Police come, they say we can't do this, the Park

         14  Rangers say, no, we can't do that.  What is the

         15  issue, does the Park Rangers, you know, could they

         16  give out summonses for noise, could they, you know,

         17  see to it that the noise is turned down?  Because I

         18  think, we need to get the Parks Department more

         19  involved as far as the beaches, parks, and

         20  playgrounds, where music is blasting, especially

         21  sometimes on Saturdays.

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  The

         23  answer is as the Code currently and will exist, the

         24  DEP Commissioner has the discretion to delegate

         25  enforcement beyond DEP inspectors and the NYPD.  We
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          2  would review that.  But remember that this is a

          3  complaint driven process, so we would be looking as

          4  with all of this enforcement, for these complaints

          5  to be coming in from people at the beach.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  You know

          7  what?  I hear the complaints all the time about the

          8  beaches, you know.  Because I represent the beaches

          9  all in Brooklyn, where a lot of parks go, I receive

         10  all the complaints.  But I am just trying to see to

         11  it that I think we have to get the Parks Department

         12  involved to see how we are going to deal with this

         13  issue.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER TWEEDY:  We can

         15  review that with you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         18  Thank you, Council Member Recchia.

         19                 And my last question for the

         20  Administration will be the last question of anyone

         21  here.  I made reference in my opening statement to

         22  this being a labor town and the need for people to

         23  participate in labor protests.  And how would the

         24  Noise Code impact revisions, have any impact on

         25  unions that might be engaged in strikes and
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          2  demonstrations, and tell us what that impact would

          3  be?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

          5  don't think it has any negative beyond what we

          6  currently look at.  As you mentioned in your earlier

          7  statement, obviously, free speech is very important,

          8  we want people to have that.  Again, it goes back,

          9  Chairman Gennaro, it goes back to, again, striking a

         10  balance, allowing the City to go about its business

         11  in a normal fashion, allow people to articulate

         12  their concerns where necessary, and in a

         13  respectfully manner.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         15  thank you. Certainly, we will have more to talk

         16  about on the labor issues and all of the points that

         17  were brought up by my colleagues today.  For me,

         18  certainly, the rule- making item that I mentioned

         19  about, you know, the need for this to be more

         20  specifically laid out is critical.  Again, I

         21  certainly appreciate all of the good work that has

         22  been done by so many for so long on this very

         23  important issue.  So, thank you all for coming, I

         24  appreciate the work of the Administration on this.

         25                 And we will call our next witness,
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          2  Robert Altman, who is representing the Queens

          3  buildings.  And thank you, thank you.

          4                 And I am temporarily turning over the

          5  control of the hearing for the next couple minutes

          6  to Peter Vallone, Jr.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Mr.

          8  Altman, if you would please have a seat.  Mr.

          9  Altman, we are going to have you sworn in, which is

         10  the custom of this Committee.

         11                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         12  right hand? In the testimony that you are about to

         13  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         14  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         15                 MR. ALTMAN:  I do.

         16                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank

         18  you for coming down.  The floor is yours, turn on

         19  the mic.

         20                 MR. ALTMAN:  Members of the

         21  Committee, good morning.  My name is Robert Altman.

         22  I am the Legislative Consultant to the Queens and

         23  Bronx Building Association, and the Building

         24  Industry Association of New York City.  The two

         25  associations, together, represent four out of the
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          2  five counties who do business under the New York

          3  State Builders Association.

          4                 I would like to first start off,

          5  because I heard some of the names that the

          6  Department of Environmental Protection consulted

          7  with on this legislation, and our association

          8  represents, as I said, the builders in four out of

          9  the five counties of New York City.  And we do

         10  predominately one- and two family homes, although,

         11  we also do multiple dwellings in those counties, and

         12  also, some development, mostly in Northern

         13  Manhattan.  No one ever consulted us.

         14                 To that end, I would like to read

         15  from our written statement.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We invited you,

         17  though, right?

         18                 MR. ALTMAN:  Yes, you did, and I have

         19  consulted with the Council in the past on this.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         21                 MR. ALTMAN:  We understand that the

         22  proposed legislation is viewed as a major initiative

         23  of the Administration.  To that end, before the

         24  introduction of 397, we expected to see a major

         25  initiative informing our industry on how it would be

                                                            71

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  expected to act on future projects.  We then saw the

          3  bill and saw absolutely no guidance to our industry.

          4                 Intro. 397 provides no rules with

          5  respect to what the industry must do to reduce

          6  noise.  Instead, it simply says that those in charge

          7  of construction must have noise reduction plans in

          8  accordance with rules for the Department.  But the

          9  elements of that plan are unknown.  Intro. 397 does

         10  not provide our industry with a single idea of the

         11  intent of the Department with respect to the

         12  elements of a plan.

         13                 Moreover, what little specifics are

         14  provided are also incomplete.  I can provide one

         15  problematic example, all projects are not

         16  necessarily grandfathered.  If you need the file

         17  alternative plan, this be approved by the

         18  Department.  Now you can continue work while waiting

         19  for the departmental approval. However, the

         20  legislation does not state what happens if the

         21  alternative plan is rejected.  Does work stop

         22  immediately, does it stop even if you file an

         23  appeal, how do you file an appeal? The legislation

         24  provides no answer.

         25                 Another point to make is that we
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          2  don't know how much this is going to cost our

          3  builders as they build one- and two- family homes.

          4  One of the things we would all like to do, in terms

          5  of whether we support or actually oppose what

          6  eventually happens is to be able to cost out what it

          7  would be to take the steps and measures that are

          8  designed under the bill.  We can't do that right

          9  now.  And without that, we can't really provide any

         10  comments.  We cannot even say that the bill will, in

         11  fact, definitively add to the cost of construction,

         12  because we don't know what we are supposed to do.

         13                 Additionally, the Council should be

         14  concerned of the fact that if a major cost are

         15  added, this is another cost of constructing

         16  affordable housing.  We don't know how much, because

         17  we don't know what is in the bill.

         18                 Additionally, there is another set of

         19  regulations that have to, in fact, be enforced.

         20  Another thing for the Department to learn, and

         21  frankly, the City's record on enforcement is not

         22  necessarily good as it currently is.  So we are

         23  concerned on that level, as well.

         24                 This is the most expensive City in

         25  America to do construction.  And we are obviously
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          2  concerned that in doing construction this will add

          3  another major cost.  However, you should also be

          4  alarmed that ultimately that cost is not necessarily

          5  paid for by the builder.  That cost, in the one- and

          6  two- family home will ultimately be paid for by the

          7  buyer.  So, in considering the cost of middle- class

          8  housing in the City, is another cost that eventually

          9  gets passed along.

         10                 I would be happy to answer any

         11  questions that the Committee might have.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Speaking

         13  about costs, what about the cost of your equipment,

         14  and changing equipment to fit into the Code?

         15                 MR. ALTMAN:  The one thing the Code

         16  does say, I think in part of the section is that, if

         17  we have a noise mitigation plan, as I said, we don't

         18  know what is in that noise mitigation plan.  We are

         19  not necessarily bound by other sections. So, we have

         20  no idea what the costs are yet.  I cannot estimate

         21  it, because I have not seen what is in the

         22  regulations. Ultimately, some of it may be a one-

         23  time cost absorbed over time. Some of it may be a

         24  constant cost, which has to be done again and again

         25  and again.  I cannot tell from the legislation, I

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  don't know, I have not seen any regulations that

          3  might or might not be promulgated.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I am

          5  amazed that you have no idea, that you have never

          6  spoke to the Administration about this, and you have

          7  no idea what a noise mitigation plan might entail.

          8                 MR. ALTMAN:  No.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Is that

         10  correct?

         11                 MR. ALTMAN:  No, no, nobody has ever

         12  approached us.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well

         14  their representative is still here, and I would

         15  suggest that they actually do meet with you and

         16  other representatives.  Perhaps they have met with

         17  other representatives of your industry, well, maybe.

         18                 MR. ALTMAN:  We are not aware of any

         19  meeting with anybody from our associations.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well

         21  that is a good point.  Well that is a complete

         22  oversight, and that should not happen.  Because the

         23  Council will not be approving any bill such as this,

         24  without knowing what those noise mitigation plans

         25  are either.  So, we are in the dark also.

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Council Member Jennings.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Good

          4  morning, Mr. Altman.

          5                 MR. ALTMAN:  Good morning,

          6  Councilman.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  A few of my

          8  colleagues have raised an issue of permits being

          9  issued at five o'clock in the morning, and

         10  construction being taken place at five o'clock in

         11  the morning.  What are your thoughts in regard to

         12  those issues?

         13                 MR. ALTMAN:  It really depends on

         14  what the permit is issued for.  It is, obviously,

         15  the Administration is trying, instead, it is trying

         16  to balance the needs of a community with the needs

         17  of a builder.  It really has to determine is that

         18  the only time that something can take place,

         19  reasonably take place, and that is a balance that

         20  has to get struck, and not everybody is going to be

         21  happy with that balance, either the community, or

         22  sometimes the builder.  But somebody does have to be

         23  the judge, and it is never going to satisfy

         24  everybody.

         25                 It is important to strike a
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          2  reasonable balance, and it is important for the

          3  Administration to have some leeway there.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I am just

          5  trying to get a position from your organization that

          6  builds one- and two- family homes.  And do you see a

          7  need, and under what circumstances would a builder,

          8  who is building residential property would have to

          9  start at five o'clock in the morning?

         10                 MR. ALTMAN:  It is very rare that we

         11  will be starting at five o'clock in the morning.  It

         12  is just very rare. But I am not going to say that

         13  there isn't a circumstance out there where that

         14  might not be necessary,  because each project is

         15  different.  But if it is just for a normal set of

         16  construction, obviously, that could be problematic.

         17  But if there is an issue that requires something to

         18  be done at five o'clock, it might require to be done

         19  at five o'clock, and there is no other alternative.

         20  So, I am not going to discount the fact that there

         21  may be a reason for that to occur.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  And just my

         23  final question, what is a reasonable time, do you

         24  think, to start construction in a residential

         25  community?  What do you believe as an industry would
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          2  be a reasonable time to start construction?

          3                 MR. ALTMAN:  Well, I think the

          4  current rules talk about 7:00 a.m., some legislation

          5  talks about 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.  It is something

          6  which occurs at the early part of the day. Most

          7  people are up, going to work, getting ready for work

          8  and things such as that.  And I think 7:00 a.m. Is a

          9  reasonable hour, and 6:00 p.m. is a reasonable.  I

         10  think, at least, what the current standard is a

         11  reasonable situation.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Thank you,

         13  Mr. Altman.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank

         15  you, Council member.  Thank you, Mr. Altman, and I

         16  am sure, I know this Council Committee will be

         17  working with you, and I hope the City works with you

         18  also, as we move forward on this through the hearing

         19  process.  So thank you for coming down.

         20                 MR. ALTMAN:  I appreciate that, thank

         21  you.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We will

         23  be taking a five minute break, and then reconvene.

         24                 (Recess taken.)

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, I am
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          2  pleased to call our next witnesses.  We have James

          3  Conway, a.k.a. Mr. Softee.  Is that my daughter out

          4  there clapping?  And Hillary Guishard. Okay, I

          5  appreciate the opportunity to hear your views on

          6  this. Certainly, your situation has gotten a lot of

          7  attention, and you kind of emblematic of the

          8  balancing act that we are trying to do between

          9  making this a quieter city, and preserving the

         10  fabric of life that we all enjoy here in New York

         11  City.

         12                 So without further ado, I would like

         13  to welcome you here.  And Donna De Costanza, the

         14  Counsel to the Committee will swear in Mr. Softee,

         15  and you can state your name for the record and

         16  proceed with your testimony.

         17                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         18  right hand?

         19                 In the testimony that you are about

         20  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

         21  the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         22                 MR. CONWAY:  I do.

         23                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         24                 MR. CONWAY:  My name is Jim Conway,

         25  and I am - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Mr. Conway, if

          3  you could, if you could speak right into the

          4  microphone, just like I'm doing, like the closer,

          5  the better.

          6                 MR. CONWAY:  Okay.  My name is Jim

          7  Conway, and I am the Vice-President of Mr. Softee.

          8  With me today is Hillary Guishard, our distributor

          9  in Brooklyn.

         10                 I would like to thank Mr. Gennaro and

         11  the Council for the opportunity to come and present

         12  our story.

         13                 We are here today to share with you

         14  some very serious concerns about Intro. 397, as

         15  currently written, and hopefully to begin work with

         16  the New York City Council towards a rational

         17  resolution.

         18                 Before I get to my specific issues

         19  with the bills, I would like to tell you a bit about

         20  Mr. Softee.

         21                 The company was started by my father

         22  and my uncle in 1956, and Mr. Softee has since

         23  become the largest franchiser of soft ice cream

         24  trucks in the United States.  We have franchisees in

         25  each borough of the City, with a total of about 350
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          2  trucks.  Mr. Softee New York Franchisees are the

          3  definition of small business owners.  And the vast

          4  majority of them are New York City residents.

          5                 The ethnic composition of these

          6  franchisees are reflective of the City's distinct

          7  diversity. About 34 percent are Hispanic, 20 percent

          8  are African-American, 32 percent are white, and 14

          9  percent are a mix of other ethnics.

         10                 Mr. Softee trucks contribute

         11  significantly to the local economy.  Our supplies

         12  are purchased from Mr. Softee distributors located

         13  in the Bronx, Brooklyn, Queens, and Staten Island.

         14  The ice cream mix we buy is bought from the City's

         15  only remaining dairy, Boston Mix and Cream.  As

         16  other examples, we use approximately 380,000 gallons

         17  of milk, and almost a million bananas, all of which

         18  are purchased locally.

         19                 Additionally, Mr. Softee trucks buy

         20  an estimated $2 million in fuel each year from New

         21  York City gas stations.

         22                 Finally, Mr. Softee employs, on a

         23  seasonal basis, approximately 500 people in New York

         24  City.

         25                 Unlike other ice cream trucks that
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          2  you may see in New York, some of which may even be

          3  painted blue and white, Mr. Softee provides our

          4  franchisees with operational and safety training,

          5  and they are bound by their franchise agreement to

          6  code of conduct that ensures the sustained integrity

          7  of the "Mr. Softee" name.

          8                 Council members, we are very proud of

          9  Mr. Softee, and our company's role in New York City.

         10  Unfortunately, if Intro. 397 is allowed to pass in

         11  its current form, all of these small businesses may

         12  be destroyed.

         13                 Section 24-231, which bans commercial

         14  music, may as well ban Mr. Softee by name.  To get a

         15  sense of this and what this would do to us, remember

         16  when you were a kid, you heard the jingle, you

         17  grabbed your money, and you ran to the truck.  The

         18  way that you knew Mr. Softee was in the neighborhood

         19  was the song.  So without the jingle, our sales will

         20  plummet.  Our franchisees will suffer, and the

         21  estimated 120,000 customers who patronize Mr. Softee

         22  trucks each day, will be disappointed.

         23                 The stated purpose of the legislation

         24  as written in Section 24-202 is to control and

         25  reduce excessive and unreasonable noises, which were
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          2  said to effect the prosperity of the City's

          3  citizens.  However, banning the Mr. Softee jingle

          4  will have an immediate effect on the prosperity of

          5  hundreds of small business people and the families

          6  that depend on them.

          7                 Moreover, the jingle can hardly be

          8  classified as unreasonable noise that affects the

          9  public health, comfort, and welfare of the City's

         10  residents.

         11                 Does it get stuck in your head?

         12  Depending on your view, that can be good or bad.

         13  Certainly we hope it does.  But the Mr. Softee song

         14  as a threat to the welfare of the citizens of New

         15  York?  I don't think so.

         16                 In the few and rare instances that we

         17  hear complaints about the jingle, it is virtually

         18  always related to a truck continuing to play the

         19  song after it is parked and serving customers.  This

         20  is a violation of our own internal policy, and we

         21  recognize, though, that it does happen.  And that is

         22  why we would be happy to work with the Council to

         23  craft a compromise that would address this issue in

         24  a proactive manner.

         25                 For example, technology currently
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          2  exists that would block a Mr. Softee truck's music

          3  from playing whenever the truck is put into park.

          4  Again, while the ability to play the jingle while

          5  the truck is moving is integral to our business, we

          6  would be happy to work with you to develop a way to

          7  ensure that it stops when the truck is stopped.

          8  This is exactly the kind of reasonable solution that

          9  we look forward to developing with the Council.

         10                 In closing, Mr. Softee is an integral

         11  part of the City's landscape and economy.  We are

         12  fixtures in the fabric of New York City

         13  neighborhoods, and we are all small business owners,

         14  the quintessential New York entrepreneur, and we are

         15  largely immigrants.  We are the microcosm of New

         16  York's rich and racial diversity.  In a nutshell, we

         17  are the American Dream.

         18                 Thank you very much for your time and

         19  this opportunity.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 Do you have a statement?

         23                 MR. GUISHARD:  Yes, my name is

         24  Hillary Guishard, and in case you hear an accent, I

         25  am from the Island of Nevis.  I came here in 1978 to

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  realize the American Dream.

          3                 My first experience with Mr. Softee

          4  is as a helper on an ice cream truck.  I

          5  particularly liked this position because it afforded

          6  me the flexibility of work in the summer and

          7  full-time college in the winter and spring.

          8                 On completion, I was afforded the

          9  opportunity to purchase my first franchise, and I

         10  became a businessman, a proud businessman at that.

         11                 Through hard work and perseverance, I

         12  saved a few pennies, and decided to ask a beautiful

         13  woman for her hand in marriage.  We were able to

         14  purchase a home, and subsequently had two beautiful

         15  daughters, both of whom are presently in college,

         16  and both of whom depends heavily on my success as a

         17  businessman, and their summer jobs as helpers on the

         18  ice cream truck to subsidize their tuition.

         19                 I am presently the distributor for

         20  Mr. Softee in Brooklyn.  My depot house 82 Mr.

         21  Softee trucks, with a workforce of 110.  Permanently

         22  silencing Mr. Softee will not only have a negative

         23  effect in my ability to earn and pay taxes, but my

         24  chances of fulfilling the American Dream.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          3  Thank you both. I appreciate the opportunity to hear

          4  your views, and to work with you, and even to work

          5  with the Administration to craft a compromise that

          6  would allow my daughter to hear Mr. Softee as he is

          7  coming down the street.  And so I will do everything

          8  I can to, as I will in all areas of the bill to sort

          9  of, you know, come to a solution, so that we can do

         10  what we can, as appropriate, to quiet the City down

         11  in certain areas, and you know, preserve certain

         12  that we all love and make us a little chubby

         13  sometimes. But you know, that is me, not my

         14  daughter.

         15                 Council Member Vallone has a

         16  question, to be followed by Council Member Recchia,

         17  who has a question.  Council Member Vallone.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you.

         19  My daughter is in the same CCD class as Jim's

         20  daughter, and they are united in their opposition to

         21  banning Mr. Softee music, you should know. I thank

         22  you.  I think I am quoted in your release that was

         23  handed out here as saying that this portion of the

         24  bill seems excessive, and I believe it is.

         25                 What is the compromise you can live
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          2  with here?

          3                 MR. CONWAY:  Well, as I had mentioned

          4  in my testimony, just to maybe back track a little,

          5  at our company, all emails, all letters, and all

          6  telephone complaint calls come directly to me.  And

          7  so I get to hear and see every single one of them.

          8  And with virtually no exception, they all center

          9  around trucks being parked and playing music for too

         10  long in one spot. And I believe that if we have the

         11  opportunity to work with the City on this, and we

         12  can put in place, it is a very simple matter to have

         13  a cutoff switch that activates when the truck is

         14  placed in park.  I think that it is a very simple,

         15  easy, resolution to the problem.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I agree.

         17  What about potential time limitation, such as not

         18  being able to go past a certain hour in the evening?

         19                 MR. CONWAY:  Well, the Commissioner

         20  had mentioned this before, that I think there are a

         21  lot of common sense things. I don't believe that a

         22  Mr. Softee truck should be playing its music, there

         23  are certain areas in the City, for example, at Times

         24  Square where maybe you could serve ice cream late

         25  into the evening, but there is no need to play the
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          2  music.  And I would think that in the summer when

          3  the children are out of school and weekends, you

          4  have a nine or ten o'clock cutoff, to me that would

          5  be perfectly reasonable.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  It sounds

          7  like we will be able to a compromise, at least, you

          8  and the Administration.  We are, or at least I am, I

          9  cannot speak for the whole Committee, believe that

         10  the jingle should not be banned, but we should

         11  absolutely modify, as you said, the time and the way

         12  that it is being played.

         13                 And I also thank you, one of the most

         14  important things I learned today, I think, is the

         15  fact that the Mr. Softee jingle has lyrics.

         16                 MR. CONWAY:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I did not

         18  know that.  I am not going to attempt to sing them,

         19  but I will take them home and take a look.

         20                 MR. CONWAY:  I thought you said you

         21  were a musician?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  You don't

         23  want to hear me try to sing the Mr. Softee jingle.

         24  But thank you for coming down today, and we look

         25  forward to working with you.
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          2                 MR. CONWAY:  Thank you, I appreciate

          3  it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          5  Council Member Vallone.

          6                 Council Member Recchia.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yes, first

          8  of all, I want to thank you for buying a lot of your

          9  products in New York, and supporting the small

         10  businesses.  I was the Chairman of the Small

         11  Business Committee up until last week, but now I am

         12  Cultural Affairs, but I have a heart for Small

         13  Businesses, and that, you know, we also want to

         14  support our small businesses, because Mr. Softee

         15  trucks are small businesses.  And what we have to do

         16  is make sure that they do not go out business.

         17                 And what I think is important here is

         18  when the trucks are standing still, that the song

         19  goes off like maybe twice, and then it should be cut

         20  off, that is number one.

         21                 But number two, there are certain

         22  areas of the City in the summertime where people,

         23  except certain parts of my district, where people

         24  stay out until like two, three in the morning, you

         25  know?   And I don't want to see Mr. Softee trucks
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          2  not going in those areas.

          3                 MR. CONWAY:  Right.  Well, I agree

          4  with you.  I think that the issue, again, just comes

          5  to common sense that you can have a truck in an area

          6  where people congregate late into the evening.  I

          7  know you had mentioned your district includes Coney

          8  Island and the beaches.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Right.

         10                 MR. CONWAY:  And that might be

         11  perfectly reasonable to have a truck there without

         12  the music playing. Because obviously if people are

         13  congregating and they see the truck, there is no

         14  reason to attract them.  The whole purpose of the

         15  music is to bring people from their homes and to

         16  advertise the presence of the ice cream truck.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  One issue

         18  that I just want to bring up to you is that, I think

         19  you have to make your drivers, I don't know if you

         20  did this already, be sensitive when they are around

         21  school buildings during the school days, like you

         22  know, early summer, in June, okay?  Like they

         23  should, if it is on school days, maybe they should

         24  lower their music as they, you know, if they are

         25  around school areas.

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MR. CONWAY:  Right, I agree with you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  That is the

          4  only thing I request.  Thank you.

          5                 MR. CONWAY:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          7  Thank you, both. So, I promise to do everything I

          8  can to come to a solution, to preserve Mr. Softee in

          9  this town, and there will be no need to name a

         10  flavor after us or anything, City Council Swirl, it

         11  will not be necessary.

         12                 MR. CONWAY:  Gennaro Sundae.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We are happy to

         14  do it. I am doing it for my daughter.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Not if they

         16  want to make money, they won't.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So, thank you.

         18  Thank you all very much.

         19                 MR. CONWAY:  Thank you very much.  I

         20  appreciate your time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you for

         22  your good product, and we will be in touch

         23  constantly.  Take care and God Bless.

         24                 I am proud to call my next panel, we

         25  have Peter Ward, President of the Hotel and Motel
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          2  Trades Council, and we are very, very grateful to

          3  have Brian McLaughlin the President of the New York

          4  Central Labor Council with us today.  And so we

          5  greatly appreciate having you here with us.  Peter

          6  Ward is a friend for a long time, and you know,

          7  Brian McLaughlin, not only do I have admiration and

          8  respect for him for all that he does as President of

          9  the Central Labor Council, but he is also a friend

         10  and a colleague.  And his district overlaps my

         11  district to a large degree, so we are together all

         12  the time.

         13                 And as I said in my opening statement

         14  for the benefit of the panel here, I did make

         15  reference in my opening statement to the need to

         16  preserve the rights of working men and women, to get

         17  on the street and say what they have to say.  But I

         18  certainly want to get the benefit of your views on

         19  this, because I have already giving my pledge that I

         20  will do everything within my power to preserve and

         21  protect the rights of your members to say what they

         22  have to say as appropriate.

         23                 So with that said, I will ask the

         24  Counsel to the Committee, Donna De Costanzo to swear

         25  you in.  And then after that, in which ever order
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          2  you wish to go, you could state your names for the

          3  record, and you know, present your good testimony.

          4                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

          5  right hands? In the testimony that you are about to

          6  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          7  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          8                 ALL:  I do.

          9                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         11                 MR. WARD:  Good afternoon.  My name

         12  is Peter Ward, and I am the President of the New

         13  York Hotel Trades Council, a union that represents

         14  26,000 hotel and restaurant workers in New York

         15  City.  I would like to thank the Committee, and

         16  particularly, Councilman Gennaro and Addabbo, for

         17  allowing me here to testify today on these issues.

         18                 All of us take pride in living in a

         19  city known for its tolerance, yet, free speech in

         20  the form of labor protests is too often found to be

         21  intolerable under our City's current, noise statute.

         22    I speak from experience on this issue.

         23                 Our union's picket lines have been

         24  adjourned a number of times because striking workers

         25  were said to be making too much noise.  The Tavern

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  on the Green Strike in 1989 is a perfect example.

          3  Workers at the Tavern voted by a margin of more than

          4  9:1 to become union, and yet, management refused to

          5  recognize us.  The picket line was crowded, active,

          6  and yes, it was loud, that led to a swarm of media

          7  coverage and to many, many people choosing to

          8  support the workers by boycotting the Tavern on the

          9  Green.

         10                 But then the Police, acting on

         11  complaints from management said the picket line was

         12  too loud, and efforts were made to not only silence

         13  workers, but to restrict the number of workers on

         14  the picket line.  Can you imagine workers being told

         15  that they could not picket their own employer who

         16  refused to recognize their 9:1 vote to unionize?

         17                 In 1994, Local 6 members went on

         18  strike at the Harvard Club.  The club's management

         19  complained about the noise on the picket line, and

         20  workers ended up in court.  The noise that

         21  management was complaining about was not music, it

         22  was not air horns, it was not drums, it was not

         23  bells and whistles.  It was workers' voices chanting

         24  in unison, "no contract, no work."

         25                 Can you imagine striking workers
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          2  being dragged into court for shouting, "no contract,

          3  no work," in front of their employer's place of

          4  business?  And while it is true that the attempts of

          5  the Harvard Club management to silence its striking

          6  employees, it elicited ridicule from the New York

          7  press and brought wide support for the workers.  No

          8  one can deny that Harvard Club management used the

          9  City's Sound Ordinance to make an absolute mockery

         10  out of the supposed right of freedom of speech.

         11                 There have been other times when our

         12  union and its members have been adjourned for making

         13  noise on picket lines, or at rallies, or at

         14  demonstrations.  Yet, picket lines, rallies, and

         15  demonstrations are among the few weapons provided to

         16  workers by current labor law.  That means that

         17  without amending the City's Sound Ordinance we are

         18  removing some of the very tools that labor law

         19  supposedly provides workers.  New York City should

         20  never be ashamed of its reputation for tolerance of

         21  free speech.

         22                 The workers who are voicing their

         23  complaints on picket lines are taxpayers and voters

         24  who are merely exercising the rights they are

         25  supposed to be afforded under the law. Picketing
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          2  workers are not crying fire in a crowded theater,

          3  they are letting the public know that their employer

          4  is treating them unfairly.

          5                 Silencing, or even reducing their

          6  message should never be acceptable anywhere in the

          7  United States, but especially here in New York,

          8  which is known and praised for its social

          9  progressiveness.

         10                 On behalf of 26,000 members of our

         11  union and more than two million other union members

         12  in our City, I respectively urge the Council to

         13  amend the Noise Ordinance to guarantee that workers

         14  have the true right to get their message out to the

         15  public.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  We

         18  will just have Brian's statement, and then we can

         19  engage in questions and answers.

         20                 And Brian, I just, you know, I really

         21  appreciate the opportunity to hear from you at this

         22  hearing.  You know, I value your partnership with us

         23  on this effort.  And I thank you for being here.  I

         24  ask that you proceed with your statement.

         25                 MR. MCLAUGHLIN:  Thank you very much,
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          2  Councilman, to you, your staff, your Committee for

          3  allowing both Peter Ward and myself to offer our

          4  testimony this morning.

          5                 For the record, my name is Brian

          6  McLaughlin, and I am the President of the New York

          7  City Central Labor Council, AFL CIO.  The Central

          8  Labor Council is an umbrella organization of

          9  approximately 400 labor unions in New York City that

         10  collectively represent more than 1.5 million working

         11  men and women.

         12                 The 1.5 million union members in our

         13  City are a diverse group of hardworking New Yorkers

         14  in nearly every sector of the economy.  We represent

         15  actors, and zookeepers, firefighters, and flight

         16  attendants, bartenders, and nurses, and as you

         17  heard, the many men and women who work hard and do a

         18  great job for our City in the hotel industry.  We

         19  are brought together by our common struggle to help

         20  working New Yorkers achieve the American Dream.

         21                 I want to begin first and foremost

         22  this morning, for commending Mayor Bloomberg,

         23  Speaker Gifford Miller, and yourself, Mr. Chairman,

         24  and all the members of the City Council for

         25  recognizing that New York City's antiquated Noise
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          2  Code should be updated to address the modern needs

          3  and demands of our city. The proposed legislation

          4  before the Council today, offers the first

          5  comprehensive overhaul of the City's Noise Code in

          6  nearly 30 years.

          7                 If properly enacted, this legislation

          8  will enhance New York City's vibrancy while still

          9  protecting the quality of life issues so important

         10  to New Yorkers and their families.  Our membership

         11  understands why these changes are necessary,  but we

         12  are concerned, as Peter Ward indicated a moment ago,

         13  about an issue the legislation fails to address.

         14                 As you may or may not know,

         15  unscrupulous employers have used the current Noise

         16  Code to shut down picket lines and deprive working

         17  people for their Constitutional rights to assemble

         18  and speak.  Peter Ward outlined several of the

         19  situations that he and his members have been

         20  confronted with.  We believe that the rights of

         21  trade- union picket lines must be protected and that

         22  the Noise Code should codify these protections.

         23                 These very real life struggles of

         24  workers trying to form or join a union, or merely

         25  defend themselves and exercise their rights, are
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          2  what we stand up and speak out for today.  We urge

          3  the Council to ensure that the final legislation you

          4  adopt recognize the legitimate rights of labor

          5  unions to organize, to rally, and to demonstrate

          6  throughout our city.  The New York City Central

          7  Labor Council believes that this legislation should

          8  include clear language exempting actions taken by

          9  labor unions and their members during disputes,

         10  including, but not limited to, picket lines and

         11  protest demonstrations, from the plainly audible

         12  standard proposed in this legislation.  We would

         13  like assurances from this City Council and the

         14  Administration that the Constitutional Rights of our

         15  members will not be lost in your efforts to preserve

         16  the quality of life for New York City residents.

         17                 Once again, as Peter Ward indicated,

         18  we both thank you on behalf of his members and all

         19  the members of our Central Labor Council.  I want to

         20  thank you, in particular, Chairman Gennaro, for

         21  listening to our concerns.  I hope that you will

         22  join with us to ensure that the laudable goals of

         23  this legislation recognize the realities faced by

         24  struggling, working people in our city.

         25                 And again, thank you, Mr. Chairman
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          2  and the Committee.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you both

          4  very much.  I really appreciate the partnership that

          5  we have shared over the years on many important

          6  issues.  And certainly, you have my assurance to do

          7  everything I can to make sure that we protect the

          8  rights of working men and women to make their voices

          9  heard as appropriate.  And just to indicate to the

         10  folks here, I have certainly appreciated the

         11  conversations and consultations that we have had

         12  leading up to this hearing.  They have been

         13  substantial, they have very helpful to us.  And we

         14  very much wish to continue to work with you and your

         15  representatives, paragraph by paragraph, sentence by

         16  sentence, line by line, punctuation point by

         17  punctuation point, to make sure that whatever

         18  product we have is as protective as possible to the

         19  working men and women who not only built this city,

         20  but who continue to make it grow and prosper.  So,

         21  you certainly have my assurance of that.

         22                 And is there anything else that you

         23  wish to add on what you have heard before, you came

         24  to testify from other people who may have testified,

         25  just any closing thoughts that you may have?
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          2  Because we are going to continue our, you know,

          3  dialogue, as we have over the last couple of days.

          4  And we will continue into the future.  But anything

          5  further that you wish to put on the record, at this

          6  point, I would be happy to have you add it on.

          7                 MR. MCLAUGHLIN:  I think we have said

          8  it.  We think this legislation is laudable, it has

          9  been 30 years since we have re- examined the Noise

         10  Code and regulations.  We live in the City, both

         11  Peter and I.  We recognize how important the quality

         12  of life is for the people who live here, and for the

         13  people who work here and have their businesses.  But

         14  certainly, I think what we want to do, is we want to

         15  find the common thread that allows people to

         16  exercise their Constitutional Rights to speak up, to

         17  speak out, and to have that carved out exemption

         18  recognized in the law.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  I

         20  also would like to thank your representative, thank

         21  the Speaker and the Representative of Speaker's

         22  Office who have been working with us on some of

         23  these consultations with regard to this legislation.

         24  Certainly, that will continue, you have my word on

         25  that, and I value your, once again, I value your
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          2  partnership in this very, very important endeavor.

          3  And thank you, for being the great advocates that

          4  you are on behalf of the working men and women that

          5  make this City great.

          6                 Thank you, and God Bless you.

          7                 MR. WARD:  Thank you.

          8                 MR. MCLAUGHLIN:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And the next

         10  panel, we have a representatives if the Nightlife

         11  Industry here.  I would like to call, I will tell

         12  you what, I will have the Counsel to the Committee

         13  call the panel, while I just take the opportunity to

         14  say good- bye to our guests.  Call the panel.

         15                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  E. Charles Hunt

         16  from the New York State Restaurant Association,

         17  David Rabin and Robert Bookman of the New York

         18  Nightlife Association.

         19                 Please raise your right hand?  In the

         20  testimony that you are about to give, do you swear

         21  or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth, and

         22  nothing but the truth?

         23                 ALL:  I do.

         24                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,
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          2  thank you so much for being here.  We look forward

          3  to hearing your views.  We heard from the

          4  Administration that they are sort of working with

          5  you. We wish, of course, to work with you as well.

          6  And so, in whatever order you wish to proceed,

          7  please state your names for the record and proceed

          8  with your testimony.

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         10  My name is Robert Bookman.  I am Counsel to the New

         11  York Nightlife Association, and your Committee staff

         12  has, indeed, already reached out to us, and we have

         13  worked with them.  We hope this is an ongoing

         14  process, and we will continue to work with them.

         15                 On behalf of New York City's world

         16  famous bars, lounges, and clubs thank you for the

         17  opportunity to appear before you today.  Not to be

         18  done by Mr. Softee, I must throw in some of our

         19  economic statistics.  We employ, in the aggregate,

         20  over 20,000 people in the City of New York, over 90

         21  percent of whom are New York City residents.  New

         22  York's Nightlife pays over $700 million a year in

         23  City and State taxes.  Our establishments had 64

         24  million admissions last year.  To put that in

         25  context, that is more all of Broadway and all of New
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          2  York City's sports teams combined.  It is a multi-

          3  billion dollar economic engine for the City of New

          4  York.  So, I guess with all those people we generate

          5  some noise as well.

          6                 The Nightlife Association does

          7  support the effort to modernize the Noise Code, and

          8  we appreciate DEP and Mayor Bloomberg for reaching

          9  out to us for input.  Everyone is entitled to a good

         10  night's sleep.  That is our Association's and

         11  industry's position.  Unfortunately, while at times

         12  taking a step in the right direction, this proposal

         13  often takes two steps backwards.  We must reach a

         14  balance with the needs of New York's small

         15  businesses to survive in an already over- regulated,

         16  over inspected, and over- fined environment.  We

         17  need more objective and easy to follow standards,

         18  not less.  We need more focus on working together to

         19  solve noise issues before they develop into

         20  complaints, not increasing fines on legitimate tax-

         21  paying businesses.  And we need to pay more

         22  attention to the majority of noise complaints,

         23  residents complaining about other residents, which

         24  this proposal ignores.

         25                 Let me be more specific.  According
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          2  to the 3- 1- 1 complaint data as published last year

          3  in the Daily News, the single, most frequent noise

          4  complaint far and away were residents complaining

          5  about loud fellow residents, especially parties and

          6  music.  This accounted for over 56 percent of all

          7  noise complaints City- wide.  In some boroughs, like

          8  the Bronx, it was 65 percent of all noise

          9  complaints.

         10                 The second largest category was noise

         11  from vehicles, other than car alarms, at about 11

         12  percent, and then clubs and bars at 8 percent.  But

         13  it must be pointed out that 3 1- 1 combines all

         14  complaints about bars and clubs into one category,

         15  and it doesn't separate those complaints, which this

         16  Code would address of music emanating from our

         17  establishments, which we have control over, and we

         18  must control.  And complaints about people outside

         19  on the street that may be patrons, as you have heard

         20  from Councilwoman Lopez, that has become an

         21  increasing problem because of our enforcement of the

         22  smoking ban.  So, it is our guess that that 8

         23  percent is really somewhere 50/50, as how many are

         24  really street noise complaints, which have nothing

         25  to do with this Code, that we have no control over,
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          2  and how many are complaints that we do have some

          3  control over.

          4                 Commercial music is specifically

          5  singled out for the harshest treatment of any noise

          6  issue in the Code.  Yet, this proposal does nothing

          7  new to address the cause of the overwhelming

          8  majority of noise complaints.  Commercial music is

          9  defined as music coming from a fixed, commercial

         10  establishment. The proposed fine for music being too

         11  loud in a residential unit is $2,000 to $8,000 for a

         12  first offense.  The same music being too loud coming

         13  from a motor vehicle passing in the street has a

         14  penalty range of $150 to $525, and the same music

         15  coming from a fellow resident, if ever fined at all,

         16  is 50 bucks.

         17                 So the fine structure is the exact

         18  opposite of the number of complaints received.

         19  Residential music and vehicles, most complaints, but

         20  smallest penalty.  Commercial music fewest

         21  complaints, largest penalty.

         22                 Then there is the catch- all, you are

         23  not in violation of the Noise Code, but we have a

         24  complaint so we have to give you a violation for

         25  something section, known as plainly audible, 15 feet
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          2  away.  Also known as, we don't have to prove

          3  anything for you to be found guilty section of the

          4  law.

          5                 Honestly, Mr. Chairman, this section

          6  is there so that the Police could have a summonses

          7  to issue to our establishments.  It is an harassment

          8  tool, pure and simple, and has been used that way

          9  for years.  You get a violation not because you are

         10  the loudest on the streets, not because you were

         11  even loud, and not because your music is even

         12  producing a certain decibel level on the street, but

         13  simply because it can be heard. And generally, it is

         14  issued after an inspector goes into a residential

         15  unit and finds you are in compliance with the Noise

         16  Code.

         17                 Is silence on the street the new

         18  standard that we are passing?  Because if so, it is

         19  physically impossible for New York's thousands of

         20  bars and lounges with the standard glass door front

         21  to meet the standard of silence.  And there is no

         22  legitimate reason to have such a standard as it

         23  relates to fixed businesses.  We can understand when

         24  we are talking about moving vehicles that they want

         25  to move away from sound meters.  But when you have a
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          2  fixed business that is there seven days a week, you

          3  don't need a plainly audible standard.

          4                 I am plainly audible to you right

          5  now, because I am the largest sound that you are

          6  hearing.  But you can hear other conversations going

          7  on at the same time.  That is plainly audible.

          8  Should it be a violation of the law?  We think not.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That would

         10  depend on what they are saying about me, you know

         11  what I mean, that would be my standard.

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN:  Well in my case, they

         13  would definitely say it is a violation.

         14                 And a point, concerning the last, you

         15  know, the last, very interesting testimony from

         16  Brian McLaughlin and the union group, frankly, the

         17  more you move away from objective noise levels,

         18  which do need meters, the more you move towards a

         19  plainly audible standard, the more problems you are

         20  going to have with unfair enforcement and

         21  subjectivity in enforcement.  That is the nature of

         22  plainly audible.  And we have some concerns about

         23  that, certainly, as it relates to our industry.  But

         24  in the Code, in general, how the concept that, you

         25  know, we cannot prove that you are too loud, so we
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          2  are just going to get rid of any standard, and just

          3  say that I heard you, and therefore, you are guilty.

          4                 I think we ought to look carefully at

          5  this whole concept, which I think is not standard

          6  nationwide, of moving away from objective criteria

          7  and moving more towards subjective criteria.

          8                 You know I can go on, I don't want to

          9  take up too much of your time.  There are many

         10  sections here that are really not acceptable and

         11  must be carefully revised.  The 6 decibel, 24 231

         12  (a) (iii), the 6 decibel above ambient regardless of

         13  the level of sound in the apartment, we have a lot

         14  of problems with and concerns.  We, frankly, think

         15  that will discourage businesses from soundproofing

         16  their neighbor's apartments so that they do not hear

         17  the music.  Currently, when we do that, that would

         18  resolve the problem, because now our music is below

         19  you know legal violation levels.  But by adding this

         20  other possibility, by soundproofing that apartment,

         21  we have lowered the ambient in that apartment.  So

         22  now while our music may only be producing 30

         23  decibels in that apartment, and previously it was

         24  45, if that 30 decibels is 6 above the new ambient

         25  created in that soundproofed apartment, there is now
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          2  a new section of the law that we can get a violation

          3  under.  There is no, it creates a spiraling process

          4  that there is never solution to.  The more you

          5  soundproof, the more likely you can get a violation

          6  under the new section.  I don't think that is where

          7  we want to go, and I don't think that is where DEP

          8  wants to go.

          9                 The definition of ambient, an

         10  extraneous sound, is frankly designed to make it

         11  easier to issue violations, and there were a couple

         12  of Council members asked questions about how you are

         13  defining ambient.  I think you will be hearing from

         14  a panel of experts who will tell you that they are

         15  defining it in a way that does not reflect the

         16  reality of the street, which is what ambient is

         17  supposed to be.

         18                 The new vibration standard, while it

         19  makes sense, we are concerned that it is not

         20  something that we can soundproof against.  And when

         21  most people are complaining about vibration, what

         22  they are really complaining about is bass.  And this

         23  does have a new bass standard, and we support having

         24  a bass standard. People should live upstairs from a

         25  bar or a club, should not have to deal with bass, no
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          2  question about it.  This vibration, I think, we need

          3  to look a little bit more carefully and it is much

          4  too dense, and I don't understand it, but I think we

          5  need to look at it very carefully.

          6                 A section that was not mentioned, 24-

          7  207 (d), where they are allowing their inspectors to

          8  come into premises in the middle of the busiest time

          9  of the day or of the night of the business to

         10  conduct their inspection and disrupt business in

         11  prime time, when the same inspection can be done on

         12  off hours, is a major concern.

         13                 And lastly circulation devices, this

         14  change may, in fact, be the most far- reaching of

         15  the entire Noise Code is what they are proposing on

         16  circulation devices.  Not only are they not

         17  grandfathering in a permanent way, but only up to

         18  two years the existing circulation devices that

         19  exist on thousands and thousands of rooftops

         20  throughout the City.  But they are proposing that

         21  you now combine air conditioned units perhaps owned

         22  by different businesses in the same building to

         23  equal some new violation.  As an attorney, I don't

         24  know how that could possibly work, how you were

         25  going to attribute that.
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          2                 If I have a restaurant or a bar and

          3  my circulation device is fine, and we are in

          4  compliance with the current law. And my landlord

          5  rents the clothing store next to me and it converts

          6  to another restaurant, and they need to put another

          7  circulation device, somehow I am now in violation of

          8  the law because a new business has opened up?  You

          9  know, it really needs to be looked at carefully.

         10                 Does anybody have any clue of how

         11  many tens of millions of dollars we might be talking

         12  about, just for the entire industry to come into

         13  compliance with this one section?

         14                 Which leads me to my conclusion that

         15  this is, frankly, complicated material.  It is not

         16  just public policy that we can all agree on that

         17  things should be quieter.  It is very technical in

         18  nature, and we are going to have to live with the

         19  results of the next 30 years.  That is why the Noise

         20  Code is not change that often, because if done

         21  right, it is a huge undertaking.  The Nightlife

         22  Association agrees that it needs to be done, but we

         23  are not there yet.

         24                 We call on this Committee, the

         25  Administration, frankly, to establish, to go
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          2  forward, a Noise Code Review Committee consisting of

          3  government, independence sound experts, industry,

          4  and private community Leaders to go through this and

          5  develop a more balance code.  We thank you for

          6  allowing me this extra time.  We thank DEP for

          7  reaching out to us.  We need to continue to work

          8  together to get this right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         10  Bookman.  The other witnesses have statements, as

         11  well.  Okay, Mr. Hunt, a pleasure to see you.

         12                 MR. HUNT:  Good afternoon.  My name

         13  is Charles Hunt.  I am the Executive Vice- President

         14  of the Greater New York City Chapters of the New

         15  York State Restaurant Association.  I am very

         16  pleased to be here with my colleagues from the

         17  Nightlife establishments because we share members

         18  and we share concerns.

         19                 The New York State Restaurant

         20  Association is a statewide, not- for- profit trade

         21  association representing approximately 7,000

         22  establishments in New York State, approximately

         23  3,000 of which are located within the five boroughs

         24  of New York City.  Our New York City membership

         25  consists of all manner of food establishments, large
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          2  and small, which play a vital part in the City's

          3  economy, contributing jobs, taxes, and ambience to

          4  our City.

          5                 You may have heard or read lately

          6  that our industry is thriving after several rough

          7  years recovering from the economic down- turn and

          8  the effect of the September 11, 2001 terrorists

          9  attacks.  What you may not have heard is that even

         10  though the level of sales have increased, the

         11  difficulties of running a successful business in New

         12  York City have multiplied. Increases in product

         13  costs, fines, fees, taxes, non- controllable

         14  operating expenses, all have made operating a

         15  profitable restaurant business more difficult than

         16  ever.  Much of the increase costs cannot just be

         17  arbitrarily passed onto our customers through menu

         18  price increases.  You should realize that our

         19  industry's customers have an alternative to eating

         20  out; if our prices are too high, they can just stay

         21  home.

         22                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         23  comment and express the restaurant industry's

         24  concern with the proposed legislation regarding

         25  amending the City's Noise Control Code.

                                                            114

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 While we do not question the purpose

          3  of this legislative proposal, we feel that it goes

          4  far beyond controlling excessive and unreasonable

          5  ambient sound levels,  and will cause hardship to

          6  our businesses resulting from testing procedures

          7  that could necessitate lengthy shut- downs of vital

          8  equipment during business hours.  Could you imagine

          9  if the procedure that is outlined in this, if they

         10  came in at lunchtime when you are cooking and your

         11  restaurant is full of people, and they ask you to

         12  shut your air conditioning off for half an hour,

         13  while they shut the air conditioners off in the

         14  adjourning business to determine what the ambience

         15  sound was?  It would be incredibly damaging to a

         16  restaurant, and in some instances dangerous.

         17                 In addition to the shut- down of this

         18  vital equipment, we are concerned about cost to

         19  replace equipment that is in good working order, and

         20  previously may have met all of the standards, as

         21  well as the cost and time and money to support

         22  possible litigation to determine the situation that

         23  Mr. Bookman outlined where you have to determine the

         24  degree of responsibility for violations where there

         25  is more than one source, more than one business that
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          2  contributes to the noise level.

          3                 Our industry's principal areas of

          4  concern are not so much music, but have to do with

          5  the sounds created by air circulation devices, such

          6  as exhaust system, make- up air devices, and

          7  compressors, and noises created by circumstances

          8  beyond a restaurant owner's control.  For example,

          9  as cited before the noise outside a restaurant

         10  created by congregations of smokers on the adjacent

         11  sidewalk.  And what about the noises created by

         12  deliveries of product or pickup of trash and

         13  garbage, in most cases we have no control over those

         14  things.

         15                 Responsible restaurant operators

         16  strive to be good neighbors, and frequently make

         17  repairs, adjustments, replacements, and other

         18  actions on their own in direct response to

         19  complaints that are heard from their nearby

         20  residents and their customers.

         21                 Having read through the 47 pages of

         22  Intro. 397, and also reviewing a critique prepared

         23  by a very knowledgeable acoustical engineer, and

         24  hearing other testimony being given here today, we

         25  feel that as presented this proposal needs serious
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          2  revision.  We urge this Committee to carefully

          3  consider what is being said today by the industries

          4  that will be affected.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

          7  Hunt, thank you.

          8                 MR. RABIN:  Good afternoon.  I am

          9  David Rabin, President of the New York Nightlife

         10  Association, and co- owner of Lotus.  Never good to

         11  follow these two guys, because they cover almost all

         12  the territory, but I will try to be brief and fill

         13  some more stuff in.

         14                 In the real world, the current code

         15  is a joke, and this is worse, I have got to tell

         16  you.  We get fined --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Say what you

         18  really think.

         19                 MR. RABIN:  That is what I really

         20  think.  I told Lisa Coangelo I was going to tell her

         21  what I was going to, so. You know we get fined for

         22  stuff that is beyond comprehension, and then it gets

         23  held up by Administrative Law Judges, and we sit

         24  there dumbfounded.  No cops show up to testify, we

         25  show up with charts, maps, managers to testify, and
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          2  an ALJ just says, oh no, the fine is good.  And we

          3  walk out of there scratching our heads.

          4                 Plainly audible, although DEP seems

          5  to think I is a better standard, in my opinion it is

          6  a worst standard, it is going to give them cover to

          7  fine us whenever they would like to. We are already

          8  screwed without a metering system.  Nightlife

          9  establishments are sitting ducks.  Unlike

         10  motorcycles or cars, which I understand are

         11  difficult to meter, it is easy to meter us, they can

         12  come and stand right 15 feet from our door and say,

         13  you are X amount above ambience street noise, and

         14  that is a problem that you have to correct.

         15                 I don't have any comprehension why we

         16  cannot be metered, we would like to be metered, we

         17  don't mind complying with the law.  If you stand in

         18  front of my business, if you stand on 9th Avenue or

         19  14th Street, you can certainly at 15 feet make out

         20  the fact that there is a stereo playing somewhere,

         21  but you don't have to raise your voice to hear or

         22  speak, but it is plainly audible.  And so then, we

         23  would be subject to a fine.

         24                 The relationship with the smoking

         25  ban, when I testified here many times about the
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          2  smoking ban, my chief concern was street noise, and

          3  what it was going to do.  It was not an economic

          4  concern, it was street noise.  I think that has been

          5  born out at City Council meetings all over the City,

          6  not City Council meetings, Community Board meetings

          7  all over the City, where neighbors come to complain

          8  about street noise at every meeting.  What this does

          9  is it causes the Police to show up, they show up,

         10  they cannot give us a fine for the street noise.

         11  So, what they do is they fine us for the sound or

         12  something else.

         13                 The other couple of problems I have

         14  with this law, and I don't want to upset Chuck here,

         15  but you know there is no differentiation here

         16  between customer noise and sound system noise.  If

         17  you have one restaurant that has Open French Doors

         18  and 500 customers screaming at the top of their

         19  lungs, that is not a violation.  But if you have

         20  three doors down, a restaurant and you can barely

         21  hear their sound system coming through the door,

         22  that is a violation.  That makes no sense.  I mean

         23  what is disturbing the public more, the slight noise

         24  you are hearing from down the block, or the wide

         25  open doors.  I don't think either should be a
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          2  violation, but it certainly makes no sense the way

          3  it is written.

          4                 And lastly, there doesn't seem to be

          5  any consideration in the Code for different areas

          6  and how they have been zoned.  The City has sort of

          7  pushed Nightlife to far west Chelsea, to the meat-

          8  packing district, precisely because there are no

          9  residents in those neighborhoods.  So, we do the

         10  right thing, we go to those neighborhoods, because

         11  we do not want to disturb anybody, and then we get

         12  held for to the same standard as a quiet, sleepy,

         13  block in Greenwich Village, that makes no sense.

         14  Noise on a quiet block in Greenwich Village is a

         15  very different issue than in the middle of the meat-

         16  packing district.

         17                 I have been fined by an officer who

         18  claimed that she could tell that it was my noise on

         19  14th Street from around the corner on 9th Avenue,

         20  150 feet away on a major thoroughfare in New York

         21  City.  And that held up be an ALJ.  So, you know,

         22  the fact that this law calls for plainly audible

         23  doesn't help my situation at all.  I don't think it

         24  is going to help us, and I think it needs to be

         25  revisited.
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          2                 MR. BOOKMAN:  On additional point I

          3  wanted - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Quickly,

          5  please.

          6                 MR. BOOKMAN:  Yes, we wanted to talk

          7  about, was, I know it is the Building Code, and we

          8  often get said, well that is not this Committee, but

          9  sometimes, something like this impacts, in the meat

         10  market district where he is located, which is M- 1-

         11  5 zoned now, or West Chelsea which was M zoned, and

         12  is now to be rezoned, and there is going to be

         13  mixed- use development in the next five years, and

         14  there is going to be million- dollar apartments,

         15  residential buildings opening up against existing

         16  multi- million dollar nightclubs.  Where right now

         17  it is a factory, there is no recognition that that

         18  developer is moving into an area with pre- existing

         19  nightlife, and that it needs to have tougher

         20  Building Code requirements.  It needs to have

         21  triple- window requirements, it needs to have

         22  thicker wall requirements.  That does not exist now.

         23

         24                 You pass this, without passing that,

         25  and every time a garage gets converted into a

                                                            121

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  residential unit, when there is a night club next

          3  door, we become law violators when we have done

          4  nothing different than what we have always done.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          6  thank you.  I will have to apologize that the, you

          7  know, lateness of the hour and the need to get on

          8  the many witnesses that have not testified yet is

          9  going to preclude my ability to ask you substantive

         10  questions on the many good points that you raised.

         11                 But I think one of the things that I

         12  wanted to accomplish with this first hearing, is

         13  kind of just getting to know each other, finding out

         14  like what is your basic issues are, and you know,

         15  set up a partnership.  And so that has been

         16  established.  We have the Counsel to the Committee

         17  who will be working with you, as we, you know, take

         18  this effort down the tracks, and I appreciate your

         19  patience in waiting to testify, and giving us the

         20  benefit of your good views.  And look forward to a

         21  fruitful collaboration as we do this, and good luck

         22  to all of you.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN:  Thank you.

         24                 MR. HUNT:  Thank you.

         25                 MR. RABIN:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  The next

          3  witness is Frank McArdle of the General Contractors

          4  Association, and William Ryan Director of Safety for

          5  Tully Construction.  Yes, but before the witnesses

          6  are sworn in, time is going to preclude me from

          7  being able to ask substantive questions of our

          8  witnesses in an attempt to sort of getting everybody

          9  on.  So, I will be brief, I will ask that everyone

         10  be as brief as they possibly can be, so that we can

         11  get the benefit of everyone's views.

         12                 And thank you, Frank, always a

         13  pleasure to see you.  Always good to see people from

         14  Tully, as well.  Donna will swear you in, and then

         15  we will proceed.

         16                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  In the testimony

         17  that you are about to give, do you swear or affirm

         18  to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

         19  the truth?

         20                 ALL:  I do.

         21                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, so in

         23  whatever order you wish, just state your names for

         24  the record, and proceed with your testimony.

         25                 MR. MCARDLE:  My name is Frank
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          2  McArdle.  I am the managing director of the General

          3  Contractors Association of New York.  And I have

          4  with me today, William Ryan, who is the Director of

          5  Safety for Tully Construction, and the Chair of the

          6  Safety Committee of the General Contractors

          7  Association.  The Committee that will, in fact, deal

          8  with this issue within the Association.  I brought

          9  Mr. Ryan along, in case you did have questions, if

         10  you do, we are obviously available at all times.

         11                 You have my testimony, I don't want

         12  to take much time, other than to begin by thanking

         13  you for the courtesy that you have shown us over

         14  many years on many of these issues.  It have been

         15  most critical, you and the members of the Committee

         16  and the staff.  We want to commend the Mayor and the

         17  staff at DEP for the effort that has been made to

         18  this point, knowing that more effort will be needed

         19  in order to bring this legislation to the point

         20  where you have, a broad scale consensus that this is

         21  the way to go.

         22                 I can speak to this legislation at

         23  any point about my own experience about noise when I

         24  was the DEP Commissioner, but you don't need those

         25  stories, but they have not changed in all of the 25
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          2  years.  The same issues are here today, as they were

          3  then.  The same people call about the same kinds of

          4  problems with air circulation devices and the like,

          5  and they will be there until we deal with this

          6  effectively.

          7                 We want to commend DEP in the area of

          8  construction for moving forward from the

          9  unreasonable noise standard that has, in fact, made

         10  it so hard for people to predict construction costs

         11  in New York to the notion of noise mitigation plans

         12  developed to, in fact, address what can be addressed

         13  on sites, giving both developers, contractors,

         14  communities, understanding of the cost in time that

         15  has traded one to the other.  Sometimes things can

         16  be less noisy in a specific applications, but they

         17  prolong the length of the job.  And sometimes

         18  communities are forced to choose, and sometimes they

         19  will choose one way or the other, but they need to

         20  know what those options are.  And the program

         21  presented, at least, allows many of those to be

         22  discussed.

         23                 I would make two points, one is that

         24  as the legislation is now drafted, there is a

         25  concern we have with how the noise mitigation
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          2  planning effort is to be interpreted in the light of

          3  the words of Section 24- 228, and that particularly

          4  deals with the unreasonable noise standard, and the

          5  aggregate noise from a site question.  And that is

          6  something that we need to explore with experts.

          7  Because again, sites can have many different people

          8  involved in them at different times and the like.

          9                 We are also very concerned with the

         10  extraordinarily tight limitations on after hours

         11  work.  This is more than just a noise bill, as you

         12  understand, this is also a time of construction

         13  regulation bill, as well.  And the points that were

         14  made by Councilman Gerson need to be addressed very

         15  carefully.  Because they are points that every

         16  community wishes to address, and yet, if they are

         17  not dealt with fairly can, in fact, prolong impacts

         18  in communities, can, in fact, affect individuals in

         19  their own lives.  At least as I read it today in

         20  Section 222 and 223, there is an absolute

         21  prohibition on weekend and night work in commercial

         22  establishments in institutions.  You can do it in a

         23  one- and two- family home, but somehow you cannot do

         24  it in a hospital, you cannot do it in a museum, you

         25  cannot do it in an office building.  And yet, most
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          2  of the alteration work that is done in this City, is

          3  done off hours, very specifically to accommodate

          4  operations that want to restore activity during the

          5  day  That rather than shut the whole unit down, they

          6  bring the teams in at night, they demo out, they do

          7  what they have got to do.  Eight o'clock the next

          8  morning, work can continue.

          9                 As I read this legislation today,

         10  permits cannot be issued any more for that kind of

         11  work.  And yet, it is that which is most common in

         12  commercial and institutional establishments.  The

         13  subways for example do so much of their work on the

         14  55- hour GOs of the weekend or at night, because

         15  that is when passenger loads are the lowest and

         16  gives people the most opportunity to get work done.

         17                 So in all of this I think one of the

         18  exercises the staff has to undertake, is a real

         19  examination of what the economic consequences of

         20  these proposals are.  To make sure that in the

         21  creation of the Code that you are not barring

         22  practices, that today, for example, within an office

         23  building, within the building people are not making

         24  noise that is perceived outside of the building, or

         25  that prohibit the taking of deliveries at given
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          2  times, when the taking of that material at a certain

          3  time allows other work to go on during the day.  And

          4  we see that quiet often in New York City, where

          5  materials have to come in overnight in order to be

          6  ready for the job to proceed the next day, otherwise

          7  traffic is totally fouled up by their arrival during

          8  the morning rush, for example, I'm watching a

          9  building a 5th Avenue and 42nd Street where that is

         10  quiet common.

         11                 So again, we applaud the work.  We

         12  think the notion of moving towards noise mitigation

         13  planning is critical. We did talk to DEP, it is a

         14  plan at this point, a concept.  We obviously want to

         15  see what the detail is.  But because it affords

         16  predictability to the developer, to the agency that

         17  is trying to undertake a task, they can better

         18  understand what their costs will be down the line,

         19  which they cannot now under the unreasonable

         20  standard.

         21                 But clearly, we need to look to see

         22  what is absolutely prohibited, and why you wish to

         23  restrict that kind of construction activity at that

         24  point.  I think that would be very helpful to

         25  everybody, because thousands of construction workers
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          2  today earn their living by working those off shifts

          3  unsocial for them, but critical to the economic

          4  functioning of New York City in the day.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          7  Frank.  Now presumably during your conversations,

          8  and again, I will be brief and limiting myself.

          9  Presumably when you had consultations with DEP over

         10  this bill, you made these same points known.  Is

         11  that the case?

         12                 MR. MCARDLE:  I must confess in the

         13  narrowness of my focus, which was largely on

         14  foundation contractors and road contractors,  - -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I see,

         16  okay.

         17                 MR. MCARDLE: - -  it didn't occur to

         18  me until I am reading this today, that the impacts

         19  there would be so substantial on the building side

         20  of the business.

         21                 From our point of view, because so

         22  much of the problems are created in foundations,

         23  when people hit rock with things, and make noise and

         24  disturb people, we focused on that section.  And

         25  that is clearly, where noise mitigation makes the
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          2  most sense.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see, right.

          4                 MR. MCARDLE:  The hours of work

          5  issue, however, we find as it has been in this

          6  legislation, and as it would be more refined by

          7  Council Member Gerson, that is where I must confess

          8  for the first time today I focused and see an impact

          9  that needs further discussion.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well thank you

         11  for that. And to the extent that, for that section,

         12  or any other section, you had specific, you know,

         13  language recommendations, or you know conceptual

         14  things.  We would be more than happy to, you know,

         15  to sort go to school on you a little bit, and get

         16  the benefit of that.

         17                 MR. MCARDLE:  Absolutely, we know you

         18  will.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And as always,

         20  as we have in the past, will continue to work with

         21  you very, very collaboratively to make sure that we

         22  get the benefit of your good views, because that

         23  will best make us able to produce a product, which

         24  makes the most sense for the most people.

         25                 MR. MCARDLE:  And quiet frankly, one
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          2  of the real experts on this stuff in terms of what

          3  really happens in the field is Bill Ryan, and I

          4  bring him up so you see his face.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I appreciate

          6  that.

          7                 MR. MCARDLE:  You can call on him.

          8  He really does know the business from all sides,

          9  having been, at one time, a police officer.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         11  Ryan.  I appreciate that, and please say hi to all

         12  the good folks at Tully Construction for us.  We do

         13  appreciate their, everything that they do for our

         14  City, and they are friends of mine.

         15                 MR. RYAN:  We just have two comments.

         16    We do a large volume of the street and road

         17  construction in New York City.  And we employ over -

         18   -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  If you could

         20  speak right into the microphone.

         21                 MR. RYAN:  We employ over 500 men and

         22  women in peak season.  We cautiously support the

         23  revamping of the Noise Code.  But I am pleased to

         24  hear two words used by Commissioner Tweedy, one is

         25  balance.  Most of our work is done between 7:30 and
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          2  3:30, when we are issued a permit for night work,

          3  there is always a reason, it is not always an

          4  emergency.  The balance that we strike is a traffic

          5  jam versus the noise.  It is very difficult to do

          6  paving during the day.  We do the paving at night,

          7  it is not without cost.  There are more injuries at

          8  night, there are more auto accidents, we have to use

          9  more light, there is a greater cost to us, but there

         10  is more convenience to the City when that is done at

         11  night.  So, for that, we applaud the word balance.

         12                 The other word that we are concerned

         13  about is plainly audible.  The federal government

         14  has laws regarding noise and it is enforced by OSHA.

         15    They use a noise meter for all these, a dosimeter,

         16  and they use decibel meters and everything. And that

         17  is really the way to go with these things.  Because,

         18  obviously, an office has a bad day on a Monday

         19  morning, his limit of tolerance may be 50 decibels,

         20  whereas someone else may tolerate 65 on a Thursday.

         21  And for that reason, I really don't think that we

         22  should move toward a word "plainly audible."

         23                 But we do support the revamping of

         24  the Noise Code, and we would just like to present

         25  ourselves as a resource, because we do keep a
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          2  decibel meter at each job.  And we do record the

          3  volume of each machine before we bring it on site.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          5  thank you.  We have two new partners in our quest

          6  for a quiet City, and I appreciate that.  And we

          7  will be in touch as proceed in this.  So again, Mr.

          8  McArdle, Mr. Ryan, thank you very much for joining

          9  us, and I appreciate your patience.

         10                 We have Alan Fierstein, who is an

         11  acoustical expert, to be followed by a panel made up

         12  of Arline Bronzaft, Eric Zwerling, and Annette

         13  Zaner, if I am saying that correctly. Also joining

         14  the panel after this will be Tim Lannan will be in

         15  the following panel.

         16                 Thank you for being here today.

         17  Donna will do the honors and then you can proceed

         18  with your good testimony.

         19                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         20  right hand? In the testimony that you are about to

         21  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         22  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         23                 MR. FIERSTEIN:  I do.

         24                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         25                 MR. FIERSTEIN:  My name is Alan
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          2  Fierstein.  I am the President of Accoustilog

          3  Incorporated.  I am a hands- on acoustic consultant.

          4    I apologize for my dress today, I normally dress

          5  in ripped jeans, because I am out there for

          6  thousands, thousands of people who live in New York

          7  City, and hundreds of businesses that do business in

          8  New York City.  I have been doing for 30 years.  I

          9  solve problems, I make decibel readings, I testify

         10  in courts, all types of courts, and of course in the

         11  ECB. I probably have more single experience than any

         12  other consultant in New York, because I do all the

         13  consulting, and I have always done the consulting at

         14  my firm for 30 years, on every job.  And I do lots

         15  of small job, some big jobs, but mostly small ones.

         16                 The problem with the Noise Code as

         17  proposed by the DEP is that it has made a tremendous

         18  revamping of the system, in my opinion, in order to

         19  make it easier for them to do enforcement, easier

         20  for DEP.  And while there has been many statements

         21  made that I disagree with, regarding how it is more

         22  fair, and it is more lenient for certain types of

         23  people or businesses, I disagree with those and I am

         24  going to point out a few of them specifically.

         25                 Before I forget to say it, the most
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          2  important thing that I want you to remember from my

          3  testimony is that I believe that DEP cannot alone be

          4  the one who decides how to revamp their own draft.

          5  Because they have shown, to me, clear evidence is

          6  that enforcement is their main goal here, and not

          7  fairness or the overall importance to all of the

          8  residents of the City, specifically.

          9                 The number one complaint, as Bob

         10  Bookman said, is residential noise bothering other

         11  residents in the same building, perhaps, and that is

         12  happening for all kinds of reasons.  I can go into

         13  specifically, but I have a seven- page handout,

         14  which you have all gotten.  And I hope all the

         15  Committee members who are not here will get them

         16  also.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, here it

         18  is.

         19                 MR. FIERSTEIN:  Yes, it is not dealt

         20  with, specifically, in 397, and it could be.  Noise

         21  heard on the sidewalk, we have all heard about it is

         22  a good idea to have measurements, et cetera.  The

         23  noise on the sidewalk doesn't matter.  What matters

         24  is the noise in people's homes, and that is why you

         25  need absolute levels.  It doesn't matter if it is
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          2  noisy on 9th Avenue, as David Rabin said, if there

          3  is no one living right there.  What matters, unless

          4  of course there is a homeless person who is bothered

          5  by that noise, because that is really the type of

          6  problem that it would be.  If it is so loud on the

          7  sidewalk that it goes out and into people's windows,

          8  the Code has ways, even now and will in 397, to deal

          9  with that and to get those offenders.  But on the

         10  street is a meaningless, waste of time that will tie

         11  up the courts like you have never seen.

         12                 The problems with aggregate noise

         13  from air conditioner accumulation does not just

         14  effect restaurants or night clubs.  I have been in

         15  many, many, many buildings where you have a co-op,

         16  and everyone has got their own air conditioner on

         17  the roof, one, two, three, four, five, ten of them

         18  in a row. Those residents will get a fine, or their

         19  co-op will get a fine because their noise is

         20  exceeding some noise standard.  But to shut those

         21  units down to do the type of test that the aggregate

         22  noise provision requires is an unbelievable process

         23  compared other the relatively simple process of

         24  testing one unit at a time now.  And you will not

         25  fine in practice that there are a lot of units that
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          2  are all exactly the same level, and they just happen

          3  to fall above 45 or 50 combined, but each one of

          4  them is below 45 or 42.  Now, that doesn't happen,

          5  machines are not so perfect. And the acoustics of

          6  each different location varies tremendously in

          7  practice.  And I see this all the time, and I have

          8  seen it for 30 years.

          9                 Next, the proposal really drops the

         10  ball on another major problem that drives me nuts.

         11  Loud car stereos, there is a right way to do it, and

         12  you can't just go up to someone and say, well, I

         13  think it is too loud, I think it is plainly audible.

         14    You got to have a meter, and it is not that hard

         15  to do.  I am going to get back to this in a second,

         16  because this theme will occur a couple of more

         17  times.  I am almost done.

         18                 Certain equipment is being ban by

         19  this, certain air compressors.  Despite the fact

         20  that they may have absolutely no affect on anybody.

         21  I design mechanical rooms in basements, in sub-

         22  basements, on roofs, in areas far away from any

         23  residents, even someone working in an office.  But

         24  if the unit is more than 75 decibels, and below a

         25  certain number of CFM, it is illegal to even sell
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          2  it.  And people have these in their apartment

          3  buildings, they have compressors for pressurizing

          4  dry sprinkler systems, and for many other reasons.

          5  This will make these things illegal whether they are

          6  grandfathered or not, because it doesn't allow

          7  grandfather.  So you have to deal with the absolute

          8  noise level at the receiving source, at a reasonable

          9  receiving source, not inside some alley that doesn't

         10  matter, but in someone's home or inside someone's

         11  business where they are trying to work or live, or

         12  sleep.

         13                 Politically, maybe no on wants to

         14  deal with this hot potato, but political groups that

         15  have screaming, loud, ear damaging amplifiers on the

         16  sidewalk, or in Times Square, which I have measured,

         17  should not be allowed.  And the easy way to deal

         18  with someone charging, oh, that is police brutality,

         19  or that is selective enforcement, is to use an

         20  objective standard, again, a meter.  And that is

         21  where the people who would be receiving would be

         22  people on the sidewalk, because they would be

         23  passers-by stuck in the subway - -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  They would have

         25  a permit by the Police that gives this, you know,
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          2  decibel levels and all that.  So there is a

          3  construct that kind of, you know, deals with that.

          4                 MR. FIERSTEIN:  I would like to see

          5  it enforced properly.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I don't want to

          7  belabor it, but I am sure that they have to go to

          8  the Police to get a permit for a sound amplification

          9  device.

         10                 MR. FIERSTEIN:  Okay.  There is

         11  section, Mr. Chairman, that talks about personal

         12  audio devices.  And what I say, I may be a little

         13  dramatic in the way I say it in my sheet there, but

         14  I think someone is going to get killed, because they

         15  object to a little "hmmm-hummmm" coming out of

         16  someone's earphones that they can hear five feet

         17  away.  It is illegal under the new proposal.  It's

         18  crazy, it's crazy.  The earphones have solved the

         19  loud blooming home, portable stereo business on

         20  streets and on subways.  The earphones have solved

         21  that.  A little bit of noise, it might be bothering

         22  to some people, but it is opening a can of worms to

         23  try to make this plainly audible standard there a

         24  problem.

         25                 Now the main thing here, the overall
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          2  theme is that the DEP has now a section in

          3  commercial music to prevent bass. Bass noise is the

          4  number one complaint for most music, because it is

          5  so pervasive, it goes through ceilings and walls and

          6  floors and glass doors.  It goes into people's

          7  apartments, they cannot sleep.  They have a

          8  provision for dealing with this, called 24

          9  241(1)(b), they do not use it.

         10                 Now I am partially responsible for

         11  why they don't use it.  But, once they properly

         12  train inspectors to use measurements of the bass,

         13  which is called one- third octave band measurement.

         14  And I think they should be strengthen to include

         15  lower frequencies than the 63 lower limits that are

         16  presently in there, due to changes in music systems,

         17  and music types.  They will catch the offending

         18  bars, clubs, restaurants, and loud, ruckus,

         19  neighbors, residential neighbors.  They don't want

         20  to deal with that, so instead, they want to lower

         21  the noise level from 45 to 42.  They want to put in

         22  DBC, which creates a whole can of worms, which I

         23  suggest you read carefully, in my report. It makes

         24  noise and soundproofing out of the control of the

         25  offending establishment.  They cannot take care of
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          2  it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It is all in

          4  here?

          5                 MR. FIERSTEIN:  Yes, it is.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Wow,

          7  thank you, thank you for your comprehensive

          8  testimony.  It is clear to see that you have been

          9  doing this for 30 years, and you are an expert in

         10  it.  We are grateful to have the benefit of your

         11  views.  And as we do this, it would be, it is nice

         12  to know that we have an acoustically expert that we

         13  can, you know, consult with.  And I appreciate, you

         14  know, what you put forward.  And we have your

         15  information, and I think you can expect a call from

         16  our staff to perhaps go over with you, you know, in

         17  more detail of some of the points that you make in

         18  your testimony.  And so, Alan, thank you for being

         19  here today, we appreciate it very much.

         20                 MR. FIERSTEIN:  Thank you for letting

         21  me testify.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And the panel I

         23  called earlier, I think I am going to, I thought I

         24  was going to sneeze, but it was a false alarm.

         25  Maybe something in me that just didn't want to make
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          2  noise or whatever.

          3                 Arline Bronzaft, Eric Zwerling,

          4  Annette Zaner, Tim Lannan.  Donna will swear you in,

          5  I will be back in my seat within 60 seconds.

          6                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

          7  right hand? In the testimony that you are about to

          8  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          9  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         10                 ALL:  I do.

         11                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         13  sorry for the interruption, thank you for your

         14  patience.  I appreciate having you here today, and

         15  in whatever order you wish to proceed, state your

         16  names for the record, and give us the benefit of

         17  your views, in whatever order you wish.

         18                 MR. ZWERLING:  My colleagues have

         19  asked me to speak first, so I guess I will.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         21                 MR. ZWERLING:  Members of the

         22  Council, thank you for extending to me an invitation

         23  to testify today.  My name is Eric Zwerling.  I am

         24  Director of the Rutgers University Noise Technical

         25  Assistance Center, and the President of the Noise
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          2  Consultancy.

          3                 In the past 15 years, I have trained

          4  thousands of noise enforcement agents across the

          5  entire breath of the United States.  I have drafted

          6  or assisted in the drafting of noise ordinances for

          7  jurisdictions all across America.  And equally as

          8  important, I have received many hundreds of calls

          9  from complainants detailing virtually every noise

         10  source imaginable.

         11                 I have also worked with numerous

         12  industrial and commercial facilities in quantifying

         13  and remediating their noise emissions.  Speaking

         14  directly from experience, an unregulated noise

         15  source can have a dramatic and sometimes tragic

         16  impact on the lives of people so exposed.  Not only

         17  can people be deprived of the peaceful enjoyment of

         18  their private property, and even its very usability,

         19  but there are demonstrable, physiological,

         20  biochemical, and psychological impacts from

         21  excessive exposure for noise.

         22                 Thus, I applaud the forthright manner

         23  in which the City of New York is dealing with this

         24  pervasive pollutant by the foresightful recrafting

         25  of the City Noise Code.  This new Code exemplifies
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          2  how the idea of a healthy, political process should

          3  operate.  The concerned public working with a

          4  potentially regulated community through the good

          5  offices of their elected officials in a hearing,

          6  such as this, and dedicated public servants.

          7  Without the strong, steady, and motivating support

          8  and leadership of Mayor Bloomberg and New York City

          9  DEP's Deputy Commissioner Robert Avaltroni, we would

         10  not be here today.

         11                 There vision of protecting the City

         12  of New York has been very clear.  The dedicated

         13  staff of the DEP were tireless in preparing and

         14  researching this Code, and they reached out to

         15  numerous interested parties for input.  New York

         16  City is, indeed, lucky to have the creativity,

         17  dedication, raw talent of Gerry Kelpin and Charles

         18  Schumer working behind the scenes, as they

         19  shouldered most of the Yeoman's work in crafting

         20  this Code with the assistance of the Law and Police

         21  Department.

         22                 One of the groups that the DEP has

         23  reached out to is the League for the Hard- of-

         24  Hearing, who has been listening to complaints of New

         25  Yorkers for decades.  And through the league, we can
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          2  honestly say that thousands of New Yorkers have had

          3  their voice heard in drafting this Code.

          4                 I must say that I was honored to have

          5  assisted in some small part, and as well, and to

          6  have watched the process unfold.  It was very

          7  inclusive, and these Council hearings will ensure

          8  that all voices are heard.

          9                 Already, today's testimony has raised

         10  some excellent points.  The goal of any good Noise

         11  Code is that it should be relatively easy to

         12  interpret, relatively easy to enforce, likely to

         13  expand legal challenge, be protective in the level

         14  set and sources addressed, all while being fair to

         15  the regulated community.

         16                 Additionally, the acoustic

         17  environment in New York City is almost limitlessly

         18  diverse and complex.  Clearly, crafting a well-

         19  balanced Code is indeed a multi- variable equation.

         20  An endless debate can be had on any given detail or

         21  provision as whether to the correct balance was

         22  achieved.

         23                 All things considered, I believe that

         24  this balance has been admirably achieved in this

         25  Code, and that adopting this Code as modified
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          2  pursuant to the substantive issues raised during

          3  these discussions, will truly benefit the people of

          4  the City of New York now and long after we have all

          5  moved on.

          6                 I understand my comments have been

          7  limited to three minutes, so I am here and note that

          8  I stand ready, and look forward to working with

          9  anyone who would seek my counsel in assisting the

         10  final passage of this bill.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         13  thank you so much.  I appreciate that, and we will

         14  have the whole panel testify, and whatever comments

         15  I might have on your statement, I will make after

         16  everyone has spoken.

         17                 MS. BRONZAFT:  Arline Bronzaft,

         18  Professor Emeritus of the City University of New

         19  York, a member of the Council on the Environment,

         20  and I Chair that Committee on Noise.  People know

         21  that I have been involved for a very, very long

         22  time.  And I have listened to the testimony, and I

         23  want to thank the City Council and Eric, so

         24  eloquently, thank the people at DEP and the Mayor

         25  for allowing us to come to the hearing today.
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          2  Because without doing the first we can call draft,

          3  because there were some very good suggestions made

          4  today, and the City Council is going to work on it.

          5  But it got to the table, and that is why the Mayor,

          6  indeed, have to be applauded.  You cannot comment on

          7  a document unless that document is already writing.

          8                 And so, I want to thank all the

          9  people for their comments, and I know these will be

         10  incorporated.  But as I listened to the testimony, I

         11  heard a great deal about costs.  And I can

         12  appreciate that if I owned a restaurant, I owned a

         13  bar, I too would be concerned.  If I owned a company

         14  that was doing construction in the City, I too would

         15  be concerned.  But I happen to be a Professor, and

         16  my research is on the affects of noise to mental and

         17  physical health.  And those are the costs that we

         18  have ignored.

         19                 We have ignored the cost to health.

         20  We said that noise is a mental and physical health

         21  hazard, as the world health organization has so

         22  eloquently stipulated for several years now. But we

         23  haven't really addressed how many people in the City

         24  of New York have their health impeded because of

         25  noise.  And indeed health is effected, especially
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          2  that of children.  Children's health is adversely

          3  effected by noise, noise of the traffic, noise of

          4  overhead jets, the noise of the City is adverse to

          5  the health of children, and this is documented, as

          6  so the effect on education.

          7                 I hate to say that my study on the

          8  effects of noise to children's learning when their

          9  school was adjacent to an elevated train track was

         10  done 30 years ago.  We knew that noise was

         11  detrimental to children's learning.  And when we

         12  found that the children adjacent to that track in

         13  that school were one- year behind in reading in the

         14  sixth grade compared to children on the quiet side,

         15  we looked, and we said, wow, we have got to do

         16  something about it.

         17                 Do you know what it cost when a child

         18  is one- year behind in reading?  Where are the

         19  educational costs, haven't we factored them in?  And

         20  at that time, there were about 55 public schools

         21  adjacent to our track system, as well as private

         22  schools. And what about all the schools in the pass

         23  of the aircraft, and the helicopters or all the

         24  other noises?  Education is one of the most costly

         25  items in our budget, and our children's health and
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          2  their education, their cognition, their language

          3  development, that is a cost.

          4                 The third cost I would like to bring

          5  up, which we haven't spoken about is the cost of the

          6  Internet and the computers there are so many people

          7  working at home.  So many people work out of there

          8  home, and this is a cost to their productivity, and

          9  their ability to earn a living.  With all due

         10  respect to the Mr. Softee spokesperson, and I

         11  appreciated what both of them had to say.  Working

         12  at home and being subjective to noise does intrude

         13  to productivity.  I am a writer, I am affected by

         14  noise, and my writing is hurt by it, and it takes me

         15  more hours.  So, let's balance the cost of

         16  construction, the cost of restaurants, the cost of

         17  nightlife, with the cost to our mental and physical

         18  health, especially the cost to our children.  These

         19  are real costs, and to the many people who are

         20  working at home, and have their productivity

         21  intruded upon.  So, I had to speak to the cost,

         22  because we are balancing, and that is really very,

         23  very important.

         24                 The second thing, I can support

         25  everything I have said in terms of the adverse
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          2  effects of noise by data.  I would appreciate - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  If I could, if

          4  I could, Professor, I guess I should call you.

          5                 MS. BRONZAFT:  No, Arline.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Arline, to the

          7  extent that you have comments that you can focus

          8  directly on the legislation as before the Committee

          9  today.

         10                 MS. BRONZAFT:  Yes, okay, I am going

         11  to do that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I think there

         13  is a broad consensus that there in, that you know

         14  noise is bad, we should do whatever we can, and

         15  there are impacts to letting noise be too loud.

         16                 MS. BRONZAFT:  But you aired the

         17  costs for the past two hours on construction,

         18  restaurant, and nightlife.  I felt that the cost to

         19  education had been ignored.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, I was

         21  really more focusing on, I am trying to focus on

         22  things that are specific to this piece of

         23  legislation.

         24                 MS. BRONZAFT:  I will get specific to

         25  this piece of legislation.

                                                            150

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  This is

          3  critical.

          4                 MS. BRONZAFT:  The Department of

          5  Environmental Commission should act rapidly in

          6  carrying out certain sections of the Code.  And

          7  those that require studies of our airports, rapid

          8  transit and railroad operations, automotive vehicle

          9  alarms, and backup warning devices.  That is in this

         10  Code and that should be acted on very quickly.

         11                 Whereas the City under the Noise Code

         12  is directed to make recommendations related to State

         13  and Federal regulations and rules, as a result of

         14  these studies, the City on its own initiative, can

         15  also ameliorate transportation- related noises. For

         16  example, I told you about the study in which I found

         17  children were one- year behind in reading.  It was

         18  the Transit Authority that was able to put a rubber

         19  resilient pad along the track adjacent to the school

         20  that quieted the noise coming into the school.  And

         21  it was the Board of Education that put acoustical

         22  tiles in the ceilings of those classrooms.

         23                 So to say, that the City does not

         24  have a role in transportation- related noises is

         25  absurd, because the City does have a role.  Just as
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          2  the City had a role in terms of aircraft noise,

          3  which this body has denied after year, after year,

          4  after year, the City always has the right to do a

          5  study on how many people actually are affected by

          6  aircraft noise so that the Federal Aviation

          7  Administration can come up with their low ballpark

          8  figure.  That is within the province of the City.

          9                 Another thing that is within the

         10  province of the City, and we can address right now,

         11  is the fact that the backup alarms are very loud.

         12  And the Department of Sanitation is working on

         13  devices that are less noisy.

         14                 So, I wanted to stress the fact that

         15  the Code talks about federal and state guidelines as

         16  if they are limited to do anything in the City.  The

         17  City can do much in the areas of transportation

         18  noises.  However, I would like to add this, despite

         19  how good this Code will finally be with all the

         20  input of the wonderful people that volunteered today

         21  to work on it, it will not be very good, if it is

         22  not properly enforced, and it has to be enforced the

         23  right way.

         24                 I also find that unless the Code

         25  changes the noise levels, unless the quality of life
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          2  311 number has fewer noise complaints, then the Code

          3  isn't effective.  And so I am asking this body to

          4  set up a procedure to measure the effectiveness of a

          5  Code, to count those complaints, to see what the

          6  quality of those complaints are, how many, and what

          7  type, and then six months after this Code is

          8  enforced and a year later to see if those numbers

          9  have gone down.

         10                 The other thing, it took you over 30

         11  years to update this Code.  If we can keep tabs on

         12  these sections to see which ones are effective and

         13  which ones are not, then we should not need 30 years

         14  to make changes.  Just as Deputy Commissioner

         15  Avaltroni implied that this Code was not written in

         16  stone, even when it is passed, it will not be

         17  written in stone, because there must be flexibility

         18  to work on those sections that don't hold up.

         19                 And then one other point that I think

         20  we have to make.  We do not educate people on the

         21  dangers of noise, nor do we educate them to how

         22  important it is to lessen the noise.  I agree with

         23  the previous speaker that said neighbor noises are

         24  not included in this Code, and indeed, they are not.

         25    But what DEP can do with respect to neighbor
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          2  noises, and so can every Councilperson, and some of

          3  them do by the way, is you can send to all of your

          4  constituents brochures on the dangers of noise and

          5  the ways to lessen noise.  And every Councilperson

          6  can do that, because one of the things about noise

          7  is sometimes people don't realize how loud their

          8  noises are, and so these can be lessened.

          9                 The other thing I would like is that

         10  the Board --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Please

         12  conclude, please conclude, we have a lot of

         13  witnesses, please conclude.

         14                 MS. BRONZAFT:  The Board of Education

         15  has a responsibility to lessen noises within their

         16  schools.  If we are worried about the children's

         17  scores being too low, one of the impacting factors

         18  is the effective noise on their learning.

         19                 So I thank you, and I am willing to

         20  continue to work with you on this.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         22  much.  I appreciate that so much, Arline, thank you.

         23                 MS. ZANER:  Good afternoon.  I am

         24  Annette Zaner, and I thank you very much, Mr.

         25  Chairman, for pronouncing my name correctly.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          3                 MS. ZANER:  After all these years, it

          4  is nice to hear somebody say it right.

          5                 I am here today to testify in favor

          6  of Intro. 397. Revision of the Code is indeed too

          7  long overdue.  We have known for some time now that

          8  the quality of life, which is negatively impacting

          9  our citizenry have overwhelmingly been noise

         10  related. Noise complaints consistently appear at the

         11  top of the list of the calls received by 3- 1- 1,

         12  the City Help Phoneline.  And yet, we continue to

         13  deal with a truly outdated Code.

         14                 The proposed revision of the Code

         15  currently under consideration provides for vast

         16  improvements.  For instance, the revision currently

         17  under consideration eliminates the need in some

         18  situations for the use of highly, technical,

         19  expensive noise level meters, and stipulates further

         20  that the Police Department, as well as other

         21  agencies so designated, shall have the authority to

         22  enforce the Code's provisions.  Thereby, providing

         23  for less complicated and frequently speedier

         24  resolutions to such reported quality of life

         25  problems.
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          2                 I would like to note, however, that

          3  both in my former role as a Citizen Member of the

          4  New York City Environmental Control Board, the Noise

          5  Specialist on that Board, as well as in my previous

          6  and current status as a private citizen, I have only

          7  too often been aware of the discrepancies between

          8  the stated prohibitions noted in the old Code, and

          9  the lapses in the enforcement of those Code items.

         10  Will we experience similar enforcement problems once

         11  the new Code is passed into law?

         12                 Although, we know that noise

         13  complaints will far outnumber other quality of life

         14  complaints called into 3- 1- 1, we don't yet know

         15  which repugnant noise sources are most often

         16  complained about.  However, in the result of an on-

         17  line survey about the noise problems in New York

         18  City and in the nation, conducted by the New York

         19  City Council on the Environment and Baruch College,

         20  New Yorkers indicated that honking horns, car

         21  alarms, and car stereos most often bothered them.

         22  Inspectors from the Department of Environmental

         23  Protection do not necessarily respond to these

         24  particular noises.  Those inspectors mostly operate

         25  on an appointment basis to inspect noisy situations
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          2  that are repetitive or ongoing.  And they do it

          3  well. Rather police officers and other agents so-

          4  called upon for those infractions, do it.

          5                 My concern is not to quell free

          6  speech, such as what occurs in picket lines, nor is

          7  it to interfere with particular neighborhood

          8  togetherness, if you like.

          9                 The questions are many.  How can we

         10  be assured that the designated agent or police

         11  officer will indeed cite the horn honking offender,

         12  or that there will even be a police officer or other

         13  designated agent on the spot when illegal horn

         14  honking takes place?  Will the traffic control

         15  officer be able to take the time away from his or

         16  her ticketing or traffic directing activity to issue

         17  an appropriate violation to the drive of the car

         18  with the blasting stereo?  Can the precinct that

         19  receives a call about the car alarm that doesn't

         20  stop, after the legally designated time limit, can

         21  that precinct spare the manpower to attend to the

         22  quality of life issue?  Or are the precinct officers

         23  even trained in how to dismantle the alarm?  What if

         24  the ticket is appropriately issued, the offender

         25  appeals the violation, the Environmental Control
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          2  Board acts and supports of the issuing agency, and

          3  the matter winds up in the courts?  Can the judge be

          4  counted on to uphold the previously determined

          5  quality of life decision?

          6                 Further, though we consider noise to

          7  be a quality of life issue, it is a known health

          8  contaminant, affecting cardiovascular,

          9  neuroendocrine, immunologic, gastrointestinal,

         10  sleep, fetal development, hearing loss, learning,

         11  cognitive development and social behavior.

         12  Therefore, when this proposed Noise Code is passed,

         13  and I am most assuredly hope that it will be, we

         14  must find a way to be certain that enforcement is

         15  assured. I certainly hope that all parties

         16  responsible for carrying out the intent, as well as

         17  the letter of the law, will act in favor of the

         18  effect of the infraction on the citizenry.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         21  much, I appreciate that, you testimony.  And now,

         22  Mr. Lannan.

         23                 MR. LANNAN:  I'm Tim Lannan.  I am

         24  President of Neighbors Against N.O.I.S.E., which is

         25  a grassroots organization formed in 1996 by people
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          2  who live and work in Tribeca to combat harmful noise

          3  and other hazardous emissions form commercial

          4  buildings in the Tribeca West Historic District.

          5                 With some reservations and request

          6  for improvement, we support Intro. 397 and anything

          7  else that can be done to reduce the intolerable

          8  levels of noise we deal with on a daily basis.  And

          9  certainly we commend both the Mayor and DEP for

         10  getting the process this far, and thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair and the Committee for your efforts in

         12  balancing, what I am sure are going to be many

         13  competing interests in this.

         14                 In the interest of time, I am going

         15  to skip sort of the history of our experience, which

         16  largely deals with a Telecommunications building in

         17  the middle of a residential neighborhood, and

         18  suffice it to say that our experiences told us the

         19  current Code is locally inadequate.  And working

         20  with the building and its tenants, we also found

         21  that despite many promises to the contrary,

         22  volunteer measures are not working, and many

         23  promises have been broken, so we really need

         24  something enforceable to deal with the problems we

         25  have experienced, which did not exist 30 years when
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          2  the current Noise Code was written.

          3                 And so the current Noise Code, at

          4  least, takes a step in the right direction in terms

          5  of addressing aggregate noise generated by a

          6  building and multiple circulation devices. But it

          7  leaves, also, many loopholes, which I am sure is not

          8  the intent, and they need to be closed.

          9  Specifically, as currently proposed, Section 24- 227

         10  of the draft Noise Code proposes that with respect

         11  to circulation devices any one individual has a

         12  limit of 42 decibels, but in aggregate the sound

         13  levels should not exceed 50 decibels, which is

         14  somewhat reasonable.  However, for existing

         15  equipment the requirement is that owners achieve

         16  accumulative sound level of five decibel reduction

         17  within 12 months after this section.

         18                 So our very real concern is how this

         19  section will be applied to buildings, like 60

         20  Hudson, which has been measured in excess of 70

         21  decibels in buildings across the street.  So a

         22  literal reading of this might be taken to read that

         23  they only need to achieve a one time five decibel

         24  reduction, which means that we would live

         25  continually with 65 decibels, which is clearly
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          2  unacceptable.  So this section needs to be revised

          3  to guarantee that the total sound level limit of a

          4  building be reduced to 55 decibels, or ideally less,

          5  within a reasonable period of time.

          6                 And furthermore, buildings, like 60

          7  Hudson, have dozens of tenants, this legislation

          8  needs to be enforceable against tenants

          9  individually, as well as a group, as well as against

         10  the building, itself, and the building owners.

         11                 We also have concerns about the last

         12  sentence in subsection c, which as proposed states,

         13   "Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions until two

         14  years after the effective date of this section,

         15  subsection b shall not apply to the replacement of a

         16  circulation device that was installed on any

         17  building lot prior to the effective date of this

         18  section by a device of comparable capacity."  It

         19  seems that this might mean that if a building

         20  replaced an air conditioner the day before the new

         21  Code goes into effect, the building will not be

         22  obligated to do anything for two years, so long as

         23  the air conditioner was a comfortable capacity

         24  regardless of how much sound it generates.  So I

         25  think this section needs to be clarified to make
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          2  sure the intent is clear, and to make sure that the

          3  overall noise levels are not excessive.

          4                 Technology certainly exists.  Our

          5  experience is that buildings and tenants, and I

          6  would include in that co-ops, my co-op would be

          7  effected by this and we would be glad to comply, we

          8  really need to provide incentives.  And I think this

          9  Noise Code would be a good incentive to do that.

         10                 And I wish you well in revising it,

         11  and look forward to working with you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you all

         13  so much.  I really appreciate your being here.  Your

         14  patience in waiting so long to testify, and you

         15  know, you are not getting paid for doing what you

         16  are doing.  And so we really appreciate that.

         17                 Eric, I would like to thank you,

         18  particularly, for are not only working helping the

         19  Administration do this, but, you know, recognizing

         20  the great work of Gerry Kelpin, who has worked on so

         21  many things for so many years.  She is a great

         22  public servant, and it is great to see that

         23  recognized.  I appreciate that very much.

         24                 Arline, you inspired us all with you

         25  know how to, you know the plaque of noise and how we
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          2  have to do something about that.  And I thank you,

          3  and I look forward to your ongoing partnership.

          4                 Annette, I appreciate your testimony.

          5    And to the best of my knowledge the word

          6  neuroendocrine have never been used in any of my

          7  hearings, ever.  So that is now an lexicon of the

          8  Environmental Protection Committee thanks to you.

          9  And so I appreciate that and look forward to your

         10  ongoing partnership.

         11                 And Tim, thank you for being here.

         12  Very, very concise testimony with specific language

         13  recommendations.  You cite chapter and verse here,

         14  and we appreciate that.  And I also hope that the

         15  testimony provided by this panel on some level will,

         16  you know, give voice in a significant way to perhaps

         17  some of the public who may or may not be able to

         18  actually get to the witness stand today because of

         19  time constraints.  Although we are going to do our

         20  best to get them on.

         21                 I would also like to thank Tim for

         22  having the good taste of looking like me a little

         23  bit, you think a little bit, a little bit.  I have

         24  got to do the bow tie. You got the bow tie, I got

         25  the gray hair going.
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          2                 So thank you all very much, I

          3  appreciate your being here with us today.  I look

          4  forward to your continued partnership.

          5                 Okay, we are having a panel of David

          6  Mangeim from New York Motorcycle Coalition, Donald

          7  Lanhan, Laman, American Bikers Aimed Towards

          8  Education of New York.  David, right?  Okay, sure,

          9  you have to turn the microphone on.  Donna will

         10  swear you in, and we will roll.

         11                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  In the testimony

         12  that you are about to give, do you swear or affirm

         13  to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

         14  the truth?

         15                 MR. MANGEIM:  I do so affirm, and I

         16  thank you.

         17                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         18                 MR. MANGEIM:  My name is David

         19  Mangeim.  I am the Executive Director of the New

         20  York Motorcycle Coalition Incorporated, which is a

         21  tax exempt, non-profit corporation with deals with

         22  contentious issues.  I am the author of the Vehicle

         23  and Transit Laws for the State of New York that

         24  relate to motorcycle equipment for exhausts,

         25  motorcycle decibel standards, and the utilization of
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          2  such on the highways.  I served as an advisor to the

          3  Reagan Administration during the transition period,

          4  I have a Governor's Pen Certificate for the work I

          5  have done in relation to Noise Control for the State

          6  of New York.  I have been riding motorcycles for

          7  almost 40 years, and this particular issue of Noise

          8  Control is my level of expertise based upon 27 years

          9  of involvement with this.

         10                 As legal counsel, sitting next to

         11  you, will reminded you, and last year, March 3rd, I

         12  testified on legislation offered by Alan Gerson,

         13  which I still support him, which I understand is

         14  still pending.  And I work with the Counsel Legal

         15  Office and the Mayor's Legal Office in developing

         16  that legislation.  Unfortunately, no one consulted

         17  with me on this legislation.  And although I have

         18  read through it several times,- -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Except us.

         20                 MR. MANGEIM:  Well actually, you have

         21  asked me to come here.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         23                 MR. MANGEIM:  Okay, but not

         24  previously.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well we are
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          2  just getting started.

          3                 MR. MANGEIM:  Okay, that sounds good,

          4  I appreciate that as you know.

          5                 The legislation as designed as it

          6  relates specifically to motorcycles is not specific

          7  enough.  It is vague, it is not scientifically

          8  based, it is too subjective, and I am afraid it is

          9  going to prejudicial because there is not enough

         10  understanding of behavioral methodologies on the

         11  part of the motorcycle, the psychology of noise as

         12  it relates to those who wish to engage in that, in

         13  motorcycling.  And it certainly is not technically

         14  comprehensive because it does not deal in any

         15  respect with an understanding of the technology of

         16  exhaust system

         17                 I don't wish to be disparaging

         18  towards anyone, but the fact remains that

         19  truthfully, because of all the research I do with

         20  various organizations throughout this area and the

         21  United States, I have no hesitation in stating,

         22  there really is nobody in the City of New York who

         23  has my level of expertise.  Nobody in the DEP,

         24  nobody in the Police Department.  And I have based

         25  that upon research, based that upon speaking to
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          2  people, going and approaching officers on duty going

          3  to a precinct and talking to them.  And that is why

          4  I continue to work with this, I just wish that I

          5  would obtain the authority to do what needs to be

          6  done.

          7                 Because this is a very complex issue,

          8  because you are dealing with so many different kinds

          9  of exhausted systems. Just recently, there was the

         10  New York Motorcycle Show at the Javits Center, last

         11  week.  You walked through there - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Would you speak

         13  to the legislation, more specific, because we have

         14  people, you know we really on the, you know, okay.

         15                 MR. MANGEIM:  Okay, we are dealing

         16  with the concept of plainly audible sound, and that

         17  has been criticized a great deal here.  And I think

         18  it deserves to be criticized to be too subjective.

         19  If I am not mistaken, David Tweedy, just bought

         20  himself a Harley Davidson Sportster, I have a 1977

         21  Yamaha 650. My motorcycle, which still has the

         22  original exhaust on it, is actually quieter at 200

         23  feet than his.  Although, both of them fulfill

         24  federal, and then therefore, state standards for

         25  decibels.
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          2                 The question is who is going to

          3  determine what is audible, will it deal with the

          4  vagaries of outlaying of land, is it an amphitheater

          5  effect, are we on a flat area?  Are we dealing with

          6  wind?  It is not specific enough to avoid

          7  prejudicial judgement.  So this is something that I

          8  am very concerned about.

          9                 I am concerned about the fact that

         10  the legislation does mention enforcement.  It is in

         11  the beginning of the legislation dealing with having

         12  officers from DEP or the Police Department go into

         13  locations where there is too much noise.  We have

         14  heard this from the people involved with the

         15  entertainment industry.

         16                 Actually, it doesn't seem to indicate

         17  that anybody would go into those who enable this

         18  legislation to be required. In other words, those

         19  who sell illegal exhaust systems.  There were major

         20  manufacturers of motorcycles, Harley Davidson, in

         21  particular.  Last year they gave you a document,

         22  which was very weakly stated, which really did not

         23  indicate that they oppose noise, they just don't

         24  want to be attached to it politically. The fact

         25  remains the "Screaming Eagle" exhaust systems and
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          2  performance equipment, which they have an entire

          3  catalogue of, available for all Harley's in the most

          4  minuscule print, says, it is for racing applications

          5  only.  But the pictures of the motorcycles for which

          6  these devices are applied are all street

          7  motorcycles.  They are responsible.  And

          8  historically when they first came out with that

          9  system, because of my moral authority, the withdrew

         10  it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, but the

         12   - -

         13                 MR. MANGEIM:  But now it is back in -

         14   -  okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But the

         16  legislation either does or does not speak to the

         17  issue.

         18                 MR. MANGEIM:  It does not speak to

         19  the issue.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, this is

         21  what we got to keep - -  okay.

         22                 MR. MANGEIM:  But it should be

         23  enforced at the level of the dealership, the

         24  independent provider of motorcycle services, there

         25  should be enforcement.  People should go in and say
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          2  what do you have here?  But they need to know, and

          3  this is the major point of my documentation, they

          4  need to have somebody who is going to train them, so

          5  that they can understand.  There is a myriad of

          6  exhaust systems out there.  There are all kinds of

          7  devices that enhance noise.  Some of them are legal,

          8  most of them are not.

          9                 If you remember, I told you in March,

         10  five years ago, I went to the first precinct at

         11  their request.  And I provided them with a day's

         12  training on the street as how to recognize what is

         13  illegal, what is legal, how to determine its

         14  sonically, how to determine it visually.  That is

         15  part of Alan Gerson's legislation, as you know,

         16  which permits with proper training for an officer,

         17  DEP, or NYPD, to recognize what is illegal, even

         18  though it is not activated.  It could be sitting on

         19  the street, a straight pipe is a straight pipe,

         20  regardless, it is very simple to identify.

         21                 But there are other systems that

         22  require training. This could be done, and it is not

         23  prejudicial.  Okay, we discussed that, I still

         24  support that concept.

         25                 The concept, again, is that training
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          2  by a legitimate expert in the field is absolutely

          3  necessary for any agency of government, which

          4  intends to implement any concept that is based upon

          5  unreasonable noise, or anything else of that nature.

          6    Because if you don't recognize through training,

          7  you cannot take a musical instrument and go to

          8  Carnegie Hall and play it properly, if you have not

          9  had training.  And you cannot identify what makes

         10  noise, if you don't have someone, such as myself,

         11  who is willing to take the time and effort to see

         12  that the Police know what is legitimate.

         13                 I will assure you that in my, and I

         14  do this all the time, police officers I have spoken

         15  to, including a friend of mine who is a scooter cop

         16  around here in this area, tells me he really does

         17  not know what a straight pipe is, he said he could

         18  not recognize what a removable baffle canister

         19  system is, which is illegal under VLT Law.  This is

         20  what is necessary.

         21                 I am available to provide this

         22  training.  I have offered it to a lot of precincts,

         23  I think it is a political hot potato for them.  I

         24  think they don't like the idea of having an

         25  independent person come in and do this for them.
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          2  But if it is going to authorized by the right

          3  people, I think they will find, and so will the

          4  communities that they serve, they will find that

          5  they will have a tremendous benefit to this.

          6                 And again, as I said, the other issue

          7  is you have to go after the enablers, those who

          8  commercially provide this. The sales tax that may be

          9  obtained by installing against VLT Law and selling

         10  against VLT Law, the devices is not equal to the

         11  damage that is being done to the environment of this

         12  City.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  David, thank

         14  you very much.

         15                 MR. MANGEIM:  You are very welcome.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I appreciate

         17  the benefit of your views.  We brought you into the

         18  process, and you are on the team now.

         19                 MR. MANGEIM:  I'm here.  I appreciate

         20  that, thank you so much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank

         22  you, I appreciate that.

         23                 MR. MANGEIM:  You are very welcome.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We will be

         25  hearing from the ASPCA, Jamie Fagan, it looks like,
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          2  I hope I am saying that right. To be followed by Kit

          3  Hodge from Transportation Alternatives.

          4                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

          5  right hand? In the testimony you are about to give,

          6  do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole

          7  truth, and nothing but the truth?

          8                 ALL:  I do.

          9                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         11  Please state your name for the record, and proceed.

         12  Thank you for your patience, and there you go.

         13                 MS. FAGAN:  My name is Jamie Fagan,

         14  and I represent the Government Affairs Department of

         15  the ASPCA.  I would like to thank the Committee for

         16  this opportunity to testify.

         17                 The ASPCA understands the need to

         18  control noise levels in the City of New York,

         19  including barking dogs to improve the quality of

         20  life for people and animals alike.  However, the

         21  ASPCA can only support Intro. 397 as it applies to

         22  barking dogs, if it is amended pursuant to our

         23  recommendations.

         24                 It is the ASPCA's goal, in

         25  conjunction with Maddies' Fund, to make New York
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          2  City No Kill over the next five years.  This means

          3  that no healthy, adoptable, animal will be

          4  euthanized.  Euthanasia will be reserved only for

          5  animals that are ill and/or not adoptable for

          6  behavioral reasons, and cannot be rehabilitated.  In

          7  light of this goal, we are open to legislation that

          8  will lead the way to opening more homes to the

          9  City's homeless animals, in addition to keeping dogs

         10  in homes. As we are aware that barking dogs are a

         11  common complaint and one reason why landlords might

         12  seek to prohibit dogs from their apartments, it is

         13  our hope that we can come up with mutually agreeable

         14  amendments that are reasonable and fair to both

         15  landlords, the public at large, and barking dogs.

         16  Such provisions should include an effective system

         17  for complaints to be lodged and addressed.

         18                 It is also a priority for the ASPCA

         19  to ensure some level of impartiality for dog and

         20  owner.  We think it is reasonable to include

         21  provision that allows the dog owner after and

         22  initial warning a period of time to rectify the

         23  problem.  We would like to see safeguards

         24  established to ensure that barking dog complaints

         25  are not used by landlords or other tenants to harass
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          2  the dog owner.  There is abundant history in New

          3  York City with favorable leases being harassed so

          4  that they leave in order for landlords to rent the

          5  apartment at a higher fee.  There would also need to

          6  be some sort of independent confirmation of the

          7  problem.  No one person should have the ability to

          8  determine that a given dog violates provisions of

          9  the law.  In much the same way that dog owners

         10  provided with due process to determine if his/her

         11  dog who has been alleged to be a dangerous dog is

         12  provided a hearing under New York City's dangerous

         13  dog law, a similar process should be in place for

         14  alleged barking dogs.

         15                 Finally, similar to the dangerous dog

         16  law's recognition of "excused behavior," there are

         17  instances in which dogs barking to protect their

         18  owner, their offspring, or themselves from abuse or

         19  assault.  We urge the Committee to include language

         20  that takes such circumstance into account.

         21                 The ASPCA would be happy to work with

         22  the Committee on crafting language to address these

         23  various issues. But without these amendments, the

         24  ASPCA is unable to support Intro. 397.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

          3  much. Certainly, the barking dog section of the bill

          4  got my attention, and this certainly will inform my

          5  perspective on that.  And so thank you for speaking

          6  to this issue.  We greatly appreciate your patience

          7  for being here.

          8                 MS. FAGAN:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         10  thank you.  Kit Hodge of Transportation

         11  Alternatives, to be followed by Bob Alpern.

         12                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         13  right hand? In the testimony that you are about to

         14  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         15  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         16                 MS. HODGE:  I do.

         17                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         18                 MS. HODGE:  Thank you, Chairman

         19  Gennaro, and members of the Environmental Protection

         20  Committee for holding today's hearing.  My name is

         21  Kit Hodge.  I am the Campaign Coordinator for

         22  Transportation Alternatives, New York City's

         23  advocates for walking, bicycling and sensible

         24  transportation.  I will try to keep this very brief.

         25                 I am here today to urge the passage
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          2  of Intro. 397, which will allow the City to

          3  undertake a study of the feasibility of instituting

          4  a completely ban on the use of audible car alarms.

          5                 As you are aware, Transportation

          6  Alternatives, with the support of countless New

          7  Yorkers, has long advocated for a full ban on the

          8  use of audible car alarms.  Studies show that car

          9  alarm noise raises blood pressure, increases stress

         10  hormones and exacerbates illness.  It leads to

         11  learning problems, as children struggle to

         12  concentrate or to sleep.  It makes neighborhood less

         13  civil.  And car alarm noise actually contributes to

         14  crime.

         15                 During committee meetings held during

         16  the last two years in our study, "Alarmingly

         17  Useless: The Case for Banning Car Alarms in New York

         18  City," Transportation Alternatives has detailed the

         19  many reasons why a full ban on the use of audible

         20  car alarms in New York City is possible, popular and

         21  necessary.

         22                 Nonetheless, it's become clear over

         23  the last year that, despite council and tremendous

         24  popular support, including editorials in our city's

         25  leading newspapers, the City is not yet completely
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          2  convinced that a full ban on the use of audible car

          3  alarms is a good idea.

          4                 During the hearing on Intro. 81 in

          5  Summer 2004, a representative from the New York City

          6  Police Department testified that, though the

          7  department does not have any evidence supporting

          8  this claim, the NYPD believes that audible car

          9  alarms determined car thefts and should thus not be

         10  banned.  The NYPD has undervalued its own crime

         11  fighting efforts in its assessment of the efficacy

         12  of audible car alarms.

         13                 Though that hearing led to the

         14  passage of a partial bands on the use of audible car

         15  alarms in New York City, there are still many

         16  loopholes that allow the abuse of the alarms.

         17  Indeed, New Yorkers continue to suffer from

         18  unnecessary and obnoxious noise that keeps them

         19  awake at night and during the day.

         20                 Based on discussion with DEP's Deputy

         21  Commissioner Robert Avaltroni, we believe that the

         22  passage of the Mayor's Noise Code revision allow us

         23  to work with both the DEP and NYPD on a study that

         24  will show that audible car alarms are not

         25  significant thefts deterrents.  We look forward to
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          2  working with the agencies to study the potential for

          3  a full ban on the use of audible car alarms in New

          4  York City.

          5                 Both the Mayor and the Council have

          6  recognized the importance of mitigating unnecessary

          7  and obnoxious noise in our city, including Mr.

          8  Gennaro.  We commend the Mayor and the Council for

          9  taking a step forward towards a stronger Noise Code,

         10  including a full ban on the use of audible car

         11  alarms, through the passage of Intro. 397.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you for

         14  your advocacy on behalf to ridding the City of

         15  unnecessary car alarm noise. We, I think

         16  Transportation Alternatives and this Council are on

         17  the same page in the sense that we very much want to

         18  react to that issue.  We did so over the summer, not

         19  to the extent that you, Transportation Alternatives

         20  wanted, but, you know, to the extent that we have

         21  further work on that, you are clearly part of the

         22  equation, and we appreciate your willingness to work

         23  with the Administration on a study that will bring

         24  out the numbers that no one seems to have.  Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 A panel, okay, Bob Alpern, who I

          3  wasn't even aware that you were with us today.  This

          4  is terrific to see you here, Bob.  Last name,

          5  Vandervalk, I cannot make out the first name, Lo

          6  Vandervalk, okay.  Kathy Jolowicz, come on up, we

          7  are going to panel you with Bob, he is a great guy,

          8  no worries there.  Betty Doing, Betty Doing, Richard

          9  Bornstein, okay, and John Magetric, John still here?

         10  I know Lou, come on Lou.  Okay, we are going to do a

         11  group swear here.

         12                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         13  right hand? In the testimony that you are about to

         14  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         15  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         16                 ALL:  I do.

         17                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         19  thank you, I appreciate you all being here, you

         20  know, you have great patience, no one is getting

         21  paid, and now, of course, to add insult to injury,

         22  we are rushing you.  You know, so where is the

         23  fairness? Okay, so whatever in order you wish to go,

         24  please state your names for the record, and proceed

         25  with your good testimony.  Bob, always great to see
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          2  you, hope you and Sherry are doing well. Okay.

          3                 MR. ALPERN:  Good morning.  My name

          4  is Bob Alpern, I am a former official of the

          5  Department of Environmental Protection.  I just have

          6  a very short statement.

          7                 I think it is important that this

          8  process move forward, but I am concerned because

          9  really all rules and codes that relate to noise

         10  should be reviewed together and should be revised

         11  together for consistency.  I am particularly

         12  concerned about two codes and regulations.

         13                 One is the zoning performance

         14  standards, which in fact include provisions relating

         15  to noise.

         16                 A second is the Seeker Manual, the

         17  manual that controls environmental quality review

         18  procedures and contents in this town.

         19                 Both are relevant to all the issues

         20  that we are talking about today, and should be part

         21  of the mix of things that is on discussion.

         22                 As it happens, I am really concerned

         23  about both of these documents well beyond the realm

         24  of noise.  And I think it would be highly desirable,

         25  if the Committee in the next year focused on the
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          2  performance standards, which have been defective in

          3  concept, application, and operation for 40 years.

          4  And the Seeker Manual, in which a variety of

          5  sections needs now to be updated with supplements.

          6                 That is the end of my statement.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          8  thank you, Bob. I appreciate it.

          9                 MS. JOLOWICZ:  I am Kathy Jolowicz, a

         10  community leader on the Upper East Side for the past

         11  32 years.  I am President of the East 83rd, 84th

         12  Street Block Association, it is 16 blocks, and is 32

         13  years old.  Former President of the 19th Precinct

         14  Community Council, and present Board member and

         15  grassroots member of the East Side Tenants

         16  Coalition.

         17                 I am delighted to be here to address

         18  this issue of noise in our City and changing of its

         19  codes.  However, your initial purposes to address

         20  noise on the street and from public places, I am

         21  today to ask you to also investigate the antiquated

         22  and vague laws which rules noise from noisy

         23  neighbors from inside the home.  If a town meeting

         24  were held today on this issue, Madison Square Garden

         25  would be overflowing.
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          2                 As it stands now, offending neighbors

          3  seem to feel that they can impose themselves on

          4  other tenants, and invade their homes with their

          5  noisy activity and behavior.  They are subsequently

          6  in control of your life, they decide when and how

          7  long you may sleep, when and how long you may enjoy

          8  the peace and quiet of your home.  When confronted

          9  with their actions, they become insulted, as they

         10  feel they have the right to do as they please in

         11  their apartments, and yes, they do.  But only so

         12  long as they do not bring their activity into

         13  another person's home and life.

         14                 I began investigating these laws and

         15  discovered that, in fact, some are only assumed.

         16  First, I discovered that specific noise prevention

         17  laws are not mandatory in leases.  Yes, they are

         18  included in the three- page standard lease form

         19  written in 1988.  But those are erratically spread

         20  out in sections 7, 11, and 12, interspersed among

         21  many other boring to read clauses, and do not

         22  specifically address today's life style.  And I have

         23  given you corroborating documents.

         24                 Instead, one single paragraph

         25  capsulated in bold letters should be prominent on
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          2  page one, combining the meanings of all three

          3  paragraphs.  Interestingly enough, section 9 on page

          4  one emphatically states in capitalized bold letters,

          5  in detail, how a tenant must conduct the conduct of

          6  their pet dog in the building.

          7                 Secondly, the State's antiquated

          8  Warranty and Habitability law is egregiously vague.

          9  The opening sentence states:  "Tenants are entitled

         10  to a livable, safe, and sanitary apartment," and

         11  that is it, leaving the door wide open for more

         12  conflicting interpretations.  It should be amended

         13  with "peace and quiet in one home, 24/7."

         14  Preventive steps must be taken by the offender to

         15  shield the victim form their disturbance.  The rest

         16  of the document goes on to say how the landlord must

         17  provide water, heat, locks, et cetera.

         18                 According to Arline Bronzaft, the

         19  problem can be life- threatening.  What happens to

         20  the elderly person who must endure this kind of

         21  sleep deprivation and torment.

         22                 There is a strong need for education,

         23  conscious raising, and prevention.  So, put into law

         24  what people believe to be the law.  I would like to

         25  proposed a Task Force organized comprising those

                                                            184

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  most qualified and experienced in tenant- to tenant

          3  conflicts.  Perhaps including a housing attorney,

          4  judge, elected official, tenant leader, police, and

          5  managing agent or landlord, together with any others

          6  who dutifully try to dry up this ocean with a

          7  teaspoon.  With their combined wisdom they should be

          8  able to construct a more definitive formula that

          9  would gear the purpose more towards education,

         10  awareness, warning, and self- enforcement, which are

         11  mostly addressed after the fact. They must be

         12  stipulated as well in all leases, and should be

         13  announced in the news media stressing that if a

         14  tenant does not abide by the law, he will be subject

         15  to lawsuit and/or eviction. It should also be

         16  pointed out that the tenants land up there anyway.

         17                 I realize that this will not solve

         18  all the problems, but it would very well prevent a

         19  lot of them from happening.  Therefore, I ask that

         20  you study this issue very carefully, and it is no

         21  longer just a quality of life issue, but a proven

         22  life and death issue as well.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         25  thank you so much.  I appreciate your being here.
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          2                 MR. BORNSTEIN:  My name is Richard

          3  Bornstein.  I live on York Avenue between 62nd and

          4  63rd Street.  I started a small group called the

          5  York Avenue Noise Reduction Initiative. Sixty-

          6  second and Sixty- third Street are the entrances to

          7  FDR Drive, North and South.  I have lived there for

          8  over 20 years.

          9                 The horn honking in the City in

         10  general, but particularly in areas where the bridge

         11  and tunnel and FDR Drive is, become over the last

         12  three or four years beyond excessive. We have, over

         13  the course of the last year worked with Community

         14  Board 8 to try to move to really begin to get some

         15  enforcement. There are signs around the City that

         16  say, there is a $350 fine for honking your horn.  I

         17  would guess that there is a very limited number of

         18  those $350 fines being handed out by police

         19  officers.

         20                 The horn has now become - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It sounds like

         22  you have a parochial issue that could be dealt with

         23  by your local Council member, no?

         24                 MR. BORNSTEIN:  Well this is, from my

         25  point of view, or our point of view, a Citywide
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          2  issue, not just an issue  -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I understand

          4  that, not to challenge your testimony.  But what you

          5  are stating is something that is already covered by

          6  existing law.  It is not legal for people to honk

          7  their horns, unless it is, you know, you are talking

          8  about an enforcement issue.

          9                 MR. BORNSTEIN:  Well there is an

         10  enforcement issue, but I think that the law does not

         11  get enforced.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, but in

         13  terms --

         14                 MR. BORNSTEIN:  Right?  And $350 for

         15  a fine, is it more than enough reason for an

         16  officer, be it a traffic officer or police officer,

         17  who is overworked anyway, to not write the ticket

         18  for fear of what that person in the car may or may

         19  not do. So, nowhere, from the way I understand in

         20  the Code is there some kind of - -  I mean 15 or 20

         21  years ago we had issues where people wouldn't clean

         22  up after their dogs.  And Mayor Koch, I believe,

         23  implemented a program and created an awareness.

         24  The awareness of people honking their horns

         25  consistently is not there.  And the press does not
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          2  cover it.  There needs to be some enforcement around

          3  the City, particularly in these high- volume areas

          4  so that it gets in the press, so that people are

          5  aware that there is going to be a ticket for $110 if

          6  you honk your horn, or whatever the amount is.

          7                 I have gone the route of going

          8  through Community Board 8.  I have worked with

          9  Jessica Lapin at Speaker Miller's Office, and I am

         10  now here to try to find some resolution to really a

         11  chronic issue in the City.

         12                 So I am not sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, I

         14  appreciate that one of the efforts of the Council in

         15  this bill is to figure out, you know, how do we

         16  enforce all of the law that is already on the books.

         17    It seems that that is a common sense first step,

         18  as we try to figure out how we, before we take on,

         19  you know, a bigger, more exotic noise issues, we

         20  already have noise laws that are not being enforced,

         21  and to the extent that we get to some that, that

         22  would alleviate a lot of the burden in a lot of the

         23  City, and I think that is your point.  And so, it

         24  will be part of what we do with DEP to enforce the

         25  laws that we already have.  Which you bear excellent
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          2  witness to.

          3                 MR. BORNSTEIN:  I mean, I would just

          4  add that a $350 fine, I mean it is also, of course,

          5  a source of revenue for the City.  But a $350 fine

          6  by a traffic officer, if they are allowed, which

          7  they are not most of them to write those kinds of

          8  tickets, is just not going to happen.  They are

          9  intimidated enough doing their job.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         11  thank you, I appreciate it, you made your point, I

         12  appreciate that.  I just, you know, time commands me

         13  to sort of, you know, we need to move forward.

         14                 MR. BORNSTEIN:  Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         16  thank you very much.

         17                 MS. DOING:  Hello, I am Betty Doing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You have to

         19  speak right into the microphone, I cannot hear

         20  anything you are saying.

         21                 MS. DOING:  My name is Betty Doing.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I don't think

         23  the microphone is on.

         24                 MS. DOING:  That helps.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  There we go.
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          2                 MS. DOING:  I do represent press,

          3  does address these issues in a local paper, two

          4  local papers called, "Our Town," "West Side Spirit,"

          5  periodically, and for years more than anybody else

          6  on the planet.  I come here with many concerns, but

          7  today, because this particular noise doesn't seem to

          8  be addressed that Arline Bronzaft, I am talking

          9  about the bus noise, the interior bus noise of the

         10  new air conditioning systems, the new climate

         11  control systems that are so much louder than the

         12  standard models, or any models before.

         13                 And I don't know if this is being

         14  addressed, but it really should be.  Like the once

         15  quiet subways, the once noisy subways had been

         16  quieted, but the once quiet buses have been made

         17  noisy.  And especially the Artics, and we hope that

         18  you will address that, or call on me for any

         19  information.  It is terribly noisy and it is awfully

         20  difficult, mainly even on the drivers who experience

         21  their entire work shift.

         22                 And thank you, and every good luck.

         23  And I support everything that has been said.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you so

         25  much for bringing that issue.  No one has raised it
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          2  so far today, so I really appreciate that.  Thank

          3  you.  Lou.

          4                 MR. SONES:  Hi, thanks.  First of

          5  all, I want to thank you, Chairman Gennaro, we know

          6  each other through the effort to close Fresh Kills

          7  down and to get a good Solid Waste Program, which I

          8  think we actually accomplished.  And so I very much

          9  value the value of these hearings.  And thank you

         10  for staying so late, and staying awake.  Also, while

         11  I am thanking people, I want to thank the Mayor, and

         12  I want to thank particularly Gerry Kelpin, who has

         13  helped out the Red Hook community with really trying

         14  to get her folks down there.  We are in a very

         15  unusual situation, which I will talk about.  My

         16  statements will be brief, I only want to add things

         17  that have not been spoken to before.

         18                 I come at this from two very

         19  dichotomist backgrounds that seem to conflict, but

         20  they don't.  I am a environmental activist in Red

         21  Hook.  I run Red Hook GAGS, Groups Against Garbage

         22  Sites.  I am a member of Community Board 6, and a

         23  member of Red Hook Civic, and a member of

         24  Organization of Waterfront Neighborhoods.  I also

         25  own a bar on Atlantic Avenue.
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          2                 And I am fully in favor, in both

          3  capacities, for this Intro. 397.  And the only thing

          4  I want to speak to is, as a bar owner, we have over,

          5  my four years there, worked out with our landlord

          6  and 18 different tenants a very peaceable resolution

          7  to coexist with each other.  We turn our noise down

          8  at midnight, we asked our smokers to keep their

          9  voice down outside.

         10                 Unfortunately, I also live in,

         11  fortunately I live in Red Hook. But unfortunately,

         12  because it is a mixed- use community the reverse

         13  happens of what the fellow from Nightlife said.

         14  There could be homes in R zone, and because across

         15  the street a vacant M zone exists, a business will

         16  come in, and say, we can do whatever the heck we

         17  want to do, without respect to the R zone.  So they

         18  can make so much noise, because they say, we are an

         19  M zone.  And we have taken decibel readings where it

         20  makes it impossible for those people who live right

         21  across the street, who have been there for 100

         22  years, their families have been there for 100 years

         23  before that business arrived.  And several of them

         24  have actually had nervous breakdowns and are moving

         25  out of the neighborhood.
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          2                 And again, I want to thank Gerry

          3  Kelpin for helping us with that enforcement.  So

          4  that is the end of my statement, I just want to say

          5  that it goes both ways.  I want this to look

          6  particularly at mixed- use neighborhoods.  It is not

          7  just Red Hook, it is Greenpoint/Williamburg, it is

          8  Hunts Point, South Bronx, where you have residential

          9  zones next to industrial zones.

         10                 And one other question is, we also

         11  need to look at co-generators, which Con Ed is

         12  encouraging people to do to save on costs, but those

         13  co-generators often not only noise pollute, but they

         14  also air pollute.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Lou.

         17    We are going to call the next panel now.  I was

         18  unaware that you owned a bar.  Where is it?  This is

         19  on Crosswalk.

         20                 MR. SONES:  Here is my pitch, it is

         21  the Shabrazen Head Bar on Atlantic Avenue between

         22  Court and Borum Place.  And we cater to a lot of

         23  City officials and Court officers, and it is a great

         24  beer bar.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,
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          2  thank you, Lou.

          3  We don't believe this person is here, they were

          4  scheduled to testify, but they did not fill out a

          5  slip, Tom Burnaden, Friends Against Noise in New

          6  York.  And also, Richard Tur, T- U- R, Diana

          7  Schneider, Deborah Holt, Marc Ameruso, I saw Marc

          8  before.  Jerome Goodman, Bill Ferraro, and John

          9  Bergan.

         10                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         11  right hand? In the testimony that you are about to

         12  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         14                 ALL:  I do.

         15                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you all

         17  for being here.  I appreciate it, and just to prove

         18  once and for all that life is completely unfair, you

         19  are the most patient and, but we really have to rush

         20  you, and I really apologize for that.  We just have

         21  couple of minutes to get out of here.  I think they

         22  are definitely going to boot us by 2:10, but this

         23  panel I think holds a great promise for giving a lot

         24  of information in a short amount of time.  And I

         25  apologize in advance, but thank you.  So in whatever
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          2  order we wish to go, please state your name for the

          3  record and proceed with your testimony.  And I am

          4  going to owe you all something special, because you

          5  are being such good sports about going on last and

          6  getting rushed the hardest.  Thank you.

          7                 MR. TUR:  My name is Richard Tur.  I

          8  am the founder of a group called, "Noise Off," the

          9  Citizens Coalition Against Noise Pollution.  I am

         10  very proud to say that, because a lot of people from

         11  coast- to- coast are stepping up to the plate and

         12  they are actually getting involved in reducing the

         13  blighted of noise pollution that is affecting New

         14  York City and cities all over the country, and all

         15  over the world.

         16                 Our member include citizens, elected

         17  representatives, law enforcement professionals,

         18  educators, researchers and activists.  Our position

         19  is that some types of noise pollution can be

         20  mitigated, such as airport noise and traffic noise.

         21  Other types of noise pollution should be eliminated,

         22  such as boom cars and car alarms.

         23                 We have identified industries that

         24  market its products as a means to create noise

         25  pollution, such as hot rod exhaust systems, car
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          2  audio systems, manufacturers and installers.

          3  Collectively known as the vehicle of after- market

          4  industries are well aware that their products cause

          5  most of the noise pollution we experience, and they

          6  promote aggression and thuggery in their

          7  advertising.  Pioneer Electronics is a leading boom

          8  car manufacturer, and they use the slogan, "Disturb,

          9  Defy, Disrupt, Ignite."  A company called JBL uses

         10  the slogan, "Either we love bass, or we hate your

         11  neighbors."  Jail Audio uses the slogan, "Be Very

         12  Afraid."  These companies are members of several

         13  trade groups, including the Consumer Electronics

         14  Association, Specialty Equipment Market Association,

         15  and the Mobile and Retailers Association.

         16                 The noise pollution that most people

         17  experience is from low frequency noise.  It is a

         18  type of noise, obviously, that can be heard and

         19  felt.  This type of noise is also called - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I am going to

         21  have to ask you to summarize, if you can figure out

         22  the most salient point that you want to make.  When

         23  you woke up this morning, the thing you most wanted

         24  to tell me, that is what I want you to tell me right

         25  now.
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          2                 MR. TUR:  Very well.  A couple of

          3  issues, in the law, itself, the operation of a

          4  personal audio device from inside or outside a motor

          5  vehicle.  The stipulation here is 25 feet, it should

          6  be no more than 10 feet.  I took a tape measure, and

          7  it is 9 feet from the street to my apartment.

          8                 If people live near a stop light or a

          9  stop sign, they are going to be victim to this type

         10  of noise.

         11                 As far as motorcycles are concerned -

         12   -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I can give you

         14  like another minute, that is it.

         15                 MR. TUR:  One more minute?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yep.

         17                 MR. TUR:  Distance, the limit

         18  currently is a distance of 200 feet, it should be no

         19  more than 50 feet.  If a police officer hears a

         20  motorcycle at the distance of 200 feet, how is he

         21  going to identify and catch up to the offender?

         22                 The last thing is jake brakes.  These

         23  are engine brakes that are used on large, diesel

         24  trucks.  Where I live, it is becoming a serious

         25  problem.  And just a few years ago, half the trucks
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          2  have them, and now, over 90 percent of the trucks

          3  have them.  And the companies that own the trucks

          4  don't maintain them, and they are extremely loud.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          6  Thank you so much, thank you for being such a good

          7  sport.  We really appreciate it.

          8                 MR. TUR:  Thanks so much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, I am

         10  sorry to have to do it.  Next, please.

         11                 MS. HOLT:  Good afternoon, my name is

         12  Deborah Holt.  And I want thank the Chairman, as

         13  well as the audience out here for being so patient.

         14                 I am actually here on two accounts.

         15  I am a public school teacher.  I have been a teacher

         16  here in the City for 14 years, I have taught

         17  elementary, junior high, and high school in computer

         18  technology, performing arts, and history.  I am

         19  talking today, two- fold.  On my students behalf,

         20  who are not here, as well as my neighbors and mine.

         21                 First, let me tell you about my

         22  students.  They live up in East Harlem, Central

         23  Harlem, as well as the Bronx. And as Arline spoke

         24  about, students and the effect of noise, let me tell

         25  you what it is like on a daily basis for them, day
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          2  after day, week after week, year after year.  They

          3  are subjected to noise from social clubs, noises

          4  from sanitation, from police, from drug- related

          5  activities, constantly, their neighbors, et cetera.

          6  You can only imagine what it is like for them to

          7  come into the classroom and try to learn.

          8                 I have told about the process of how

          9  to complain to 3- 1- 1.  And unfortunately, they

         10  have the same problem as myself.  They call up, they

         11  are told that they are given a complaint number, as

         12  well as they are being informed that their complaint

         13  has been sent to their neighborhood precinct, as

         14  well as DEP.  As of today, none of them received any

         15  response.  On behalf in my district where I live, I

         16  got a letter from Speaker Miller, and I did have a

         17  representative from DEP, but unfortunately they

         18  showed up that night when it was rainy and their

         19  equipment couldn't work in the rain.  So the problem

         20  of noise still exists, whether they are a high-

         21  crime area or the 17th precinct, which is relatively

         22  a low- crime area, problems still exists.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         24                 MS. HOLT:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, here is
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          2  what we are going to do, right after you testify,

          3  you are going to talk to that man, Marc Lanagan,

          4  right there.  He is DEP and so, he will take action

          5  in your specific case.

          6                 MS. HOLT:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

          8  much.  Mr. Ameruso.

          9                 MR. AMERUSO:  Thank you.  My name is

         10  Marc Ameruso. I am a Tribeca resident, I am also an

         11  Executive Committee for First Precinct Community

         12  Council.  And for identification purposes, I am also

         13  a member of Community Board 1, Manhattan.  I will be

         14  really quick.

         15                 I wanted to cite a couple of things

         16  in Intro. 397. On page 2, you cite a paper called

         17   "Assessment of Noise Annoyance," and I would submit

         18  to you that I think a lot of the testimony you have

         19  heard, mainly from laypeople and not experts that it

         20  is more than an annoyance, it has reached the point

         21  where it is not a quality of life issue, it is a

         22  health hazard issue, and in some cases it can be

         23  considered assault.

         24                 And the particular area that I have a

         25  pet peeve with is the car stereos, which was alluded
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          2  to.  I think when your ear drums are bursting, your

          3  building is vibrating, and your body is shaking,

          4  this is a form of assault.  And it was alluded to

          5  that they might be some counter- assault to this, I

          6  think this would be the first area that is in it.

          7                 I meant what recourse does a person

          8  have when their eardrums are bursting.  And they

          9  call 3- 1- 1, this has been elevated to a 9- 1- 1

         10  call.  Now the military also use sound as a weapon,

         11  so you can also consider sound as a weapon in

         12  certain cases.

         13                 I think in the Intro. You need to

         14  define bass a little better.  Be more specific about

         15  it.  You talk a little bit about it on page 11, in

         16  personal audio devices.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It is not our

         18  bill.  It is the Administration's bill.

         19                 MR. AMERCUSO:  In the Administration

         20  bill, right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  They talk about

         22  it, we are looking at it.

         23                 MR. AMERCUSO:  I stand corrected.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         25                 MR. AMERCUSO:  In the proposal, they
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          2  use the term, "sound production device installed in

          3  or operated from motor vehicle whether or not

          4  portable."  You need to be more specific about that,

          5  that should be its own definition, its own category,

          6  as well as bass.  It is my understanding, and you

          7  have to ask the audio engineers about this, I have

          8  done a little research on how to measure bass as

          9  opposed to other type of noise.  There are meters

         10  that do that, maybe the acoustical engineers know

         11  how to do that, and set standards for that.

         12                 I would also submit that night clubs

         13  and rowdy bars kind of fit into this category too,

         14  because sleep deprivation is a form of assault, or

         15  should I dare say, torture, but it is.

         16                 The term on page 11 that I was

         17  talking about was rhythmic bass, need to define it

         18  better.  And also, painfully audible should also be

         19  wrapped up a little better, painfully audible and

         20  felt.

         21                 So it is a health hazard, and not an

         22  annoyance. We need to tighten this up to make,

         23  thought any type of legal challenge for free

         24  expressions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do we have a
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          2  statement from you?

          3                 MR. AMERUSO:  No, I just found out

          4  about this, but I can prepare something.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You know it

          6  would be helpful, because you are making these very

          7  specific recommendations.  To the extent that they

          8  could be forwarded to the Counsel to the Committee,

          9  Donna De Costanzo.

         10                 MR. AMERUSO:  Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We have worked

         12  with you before.

         13                 MR. AMERUSO:  Yes, of course.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So you know,

         15  you are a known commodity, and we wish to work with

         16  you on your specific, you know, concerns.

         17                 MR. AMERUSO:  I will certainly

         18  forward those. Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That you have,

         20  if you could do so, in writing, if that is okay.

         21                 MR. AMERUSO:  That is no problem, I

         22  meant to do that, yes.

         23                 And just to really, there are plenty

         24  of studies on the negative health effects of noise,

         25  and excessive noise.  So, you have plenty of
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          2  research, or plenty of information out there to

          3  cite, to say that noise is a health hazard and an

          4  assault in many cases.  And should be dealt with,

          5  and I think if you take that approach more as a

          6  health hazard, and it is hurting people, as opposed

          7  to an annoyance and a quality of life issue, this

          8  language will start to become more clearer and

          9  specific.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         12  much, appreciate it.  Always a pleasure to have you.

         13                 MR. AMERUSO:  Same here, thank you,

         14  Councilman, for all your hard work and your staff.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         16  Yes, Sir.

         17                 MR. GOODMAN:  I am Jerome Goodman.  I

         18  am a professional engineer, and I am Board Certified

         19  in Noise Control Engineering.  Arline Bronzaft

         20  suggested I come here.

         21                 I have looked at the revision, and I

         22  think many parts are vague and ambiguous,

         23  inconsistent and contradictory, and incapable of

         24  enforcement.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, that is a

                                                            204

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  bold statement.

          3                 MR. GOODMAN:  And I will leave some

          4  papers with you to show you where --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you have a

          6  statement that you would be able to leave for us?

          7                 MR. GOODMAN:  It is not the complete

          8  statement, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         10                 MR. GOODMAN:  Which has the

         11  contradictory and the inconsistent portions.  Now I

         12  will just go to a few little things about plainly

         13  audible.

         14                 I do business in the town of North

         15  Hempstead in Nassau County where the Noise Code has

         16  a plainly audible criteria.  And there are people

         17  who are bothered by the noise, they go to the town,

         18  the inspector comes, he says it is not bad, they get

         19  no relief.  So they call me in to make a

         20  measurement, and I find, for example, that with a

         21  lot of air conditioners that they have more noise

         22  than the area around LaGuardia Airport, and the town

         23  still does not help them.  The plainly audible

         24  criterion doesn't do them any good, and it will

         25  result in a lot of litigation.
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          2                 A lot of, a good part of my work is

          3  in litigation, where I help defend people of who are

          4  accused of making too much noise, and it is very

          5  interesting that the complaint is that they have a

          6  box that is making a noise.  But I show that that

          7  box was not making noise.  So when the plainly

          8  audible man comes, he sees a box, he is giving a

          9  ticket to the wrong person.

         10                 There is also a complete lack of

         11  instruction on how to measure noise.  This is

         12  impossible, you don't whether to measure it in 10

         13  seconds, 10 minutes, 24 hours.  You measure it, I

         14  once had a case where we had the state trying to

         15  close down my client because they measured noise in

         16  front of an empty field. So at the hearing, I put

         17  the American National Standard of Noise Measurement

         18  into evidence.  And which said you had to measure

         19  noise where somebody can hear it, and the state at

         20  that point dropped the case against my client.  So,

         21  there is nothing in here telling you how to measure

         22  noise.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Things we have

         24  to do, I think.

         25                 MR. GOODMAN:  And then - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You have a lot,

          3  good value to bring to this process.

          4                 MR. GOODMAN:  And the technology that

          5  is used in this Code is obsolete, it is backward.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Would you be

          7  able to crystallize some of your comments to the, in

          8  writing, to the Counsel to the Committee, would that

          9  be - -

         10                 MR. GOODMAN:  I have some here, but I

         11  could do an awful lot more based on what I heard

         12  today.  But I will leave this behind.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I would

         14  appreciate that.  I got the Counsel to the

         15  Committed, you know, Donna De Costanzo, we are very

         16  interested with some of your credentials and, you

         17  know, qualifications, can add to this process.  And

         18  we greatly appreciate your coming here.  And say hi

         19  to John Cayman out in North Hempstead for me.

         20                 MR. GOODMAN:  He is my neighbor.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  He is a great

         22  man.  He and his wife, Kim, are just nice people.

         23                 Yes, the last witness, you have the

         24  trophy for the patience award.  No, stay right

         25  there, push the button so the light is off, and the
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          2  microphone will be on.  See it is counter intuitive.

          3    Okay.

          4                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  I have not heard this

          5  issue covered.  First of all, I want to thank you

          6  very much for all the efforts you made - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And state your

          8  name for the record.

          9                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Diana Schneider with

         10  Residents to Opposed to Aircraft Racket,

         11  representing the Upper West Side.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.

         13                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  I have watched these

         14  hearings in great earnest, because I am definitely a

         15  noise citizen activist. And one of the things is,

         16  and I have hardly heard anything about it.  It has

         17  been brought up a couple of times, those of us who

         18  live in the Upper West Side, and those of us who

         19  live in other areas of the City, as well, are now

         20  having a big problem, and it started in 1996.  City

         21  Fright Flights, and they are all over us.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You are going

         23  to address the Chair.

         24                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Yes, I will.  And

         25  what I wanted to say is that in 2001, September
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          2  11th, the Upper West Side specifically, had 110

          3  flights an hour over us.  The NTBS said 80 could be

          4  handled safely, so they left us another 30 that

          5  could not be handled safely.

          6                 Where you allude to the fact, you say

          7  the Commission should study and propose strategies

          8  to curtail and/or reduce sound levels associated

          9  with airports.  In previous Noise Codes they alluded

         10  to airports and define them as that physical area

         11  where the planes land and take off.  So, I have

         12  given you testimony, and what I will do, I will be

         13  very succinct, bing-a bing, bing.

         14                 What I would like to do is encourage

         15  you to change that to say the verbiage and aircraft

         16  flyovers, including helicopters needs to be added.

         17  The study within 24 months needs to be done within

         18  12 months preferably from today.  The FAA is in the

         19  process of redesigning the entire air space of the

         20  country. They anticipate they will be done with the

         21  New York portion in 2007, 24 months is way too

         22  short.  The Committee cannot afford to be vague,

         23  definitive guidelines must be annunciated now to

         24  protect ourselves, and the people who live and work

         25  in the City.
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          2                 Regarding the issue of helicopter

          3  flyovers, I would urge the Council to work in

          4  concert with the Borough President's Helicopter Task

          5  Force.  We have come up with specific guidelines to

          6  address the helicopter issue.  The hovering, the no-

          7  hovering, the going over industrial areas before you

          8  get to the source, the mandating of no- scouting for

          9  stories, trying to get the media to pool, all these

         10  are things that really need to be taken into

         11  consideration and worked on.

         12                 And we have started to do so, we have

         13  had problems getting the media to come together in

         14  order to pool because of the rating situation.

         15                 I would also encourage the Council to

         16  work in conjunction with our federally elected

         17  officials to urge them to work with the FAA to

         18  reinstate and prioritized the issue of noise

         19  abatement in the air space redesign project.

         20  Initially it was right up there, and it has been

         21  dropped right out of the loop, so that we can

         22  implement over water routes and aircraft noise

         23  reduction.

         24                 Prior to September 11th, I told you

         25  how many flights we had, we are going right back to
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          2  it again.  One of things is they have added general

          3  aviation to the mix.  We have general aviation,

          4  Cessans, Gulfstreams, Cherokees, Helicopters, plane

          5  flying, you name it, its up there.

          6                 Now the NTSB, I'm wrapping up, don't

          7  worry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, we got 60

          9  seconds.

         10                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Don't worry.  The

         11  NTSB has abraded the FAA for failing to report near

         12  air collisions.  In addition to the noise pollution,

         13  in addition to the air pollution, in addition to

         14  that, we have the distinct possibility of another

         15  Park Slope right in the middle of Downtown

         16  Manhattan.  So we need to work, you need to work,

         17  please, in concert with the federal elected

         18  officials.  I will do my part, wonderful citizens

         19  will do their part, if you put this Noise Code

         20  through, take into consideration the aircraft

         21  situation, we can have some leverage to get the FAA

         22  to design the routes so they go over the water,

         23  which they can.  And if we kept the redundancy of

         24  the unnecessary flights, and do some regulations,

         25  you won't have to bang it, I think we will succeed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you so

          3  much.  Thank you so much.  I really appreciate your

          4  being here, and no one else really mentioned that

          5  topic the way you did.

          6                 I have to just state for the record,

          7  that we have received written testimony from Steven

          8  Debnof, Elenore Mulvengot of the Humane Society of

          9  New York.  Drew Robertson, Center for Automotive

         10  Security Innovation, and Donald Lanam of the

         11  American Bikers Aimed Towards Education.

         12                 Thank you all for your patience.  My

         13  apologies to the next panel for holding you up.

         14  With no one else wishing to be heard, I thank all

         15  the witnesses, I thank DEP, and this hearing is

         16  adjourned.

         17                 (Hearing adjourned at 2:19 p.m.)

         18                 (The following testimony was read

         19  into the record.)

         20

         21  Testimony of:

         22  Drew Robertson

         23  Center for Automotive Security Innovation

         24                 The Center for Automotive Security

         25  Innovation(CASI) represent several companies
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          2  offering automotive security technology that is

          3  standard in most advanced countries with autoimmune

          4  thefts problems.  Previously, CASI submitted

          5  testimony in support of Council bills that would

          6  prohibit the sale/installation of audible motor

          7  vehicle alarms.  CASI continues to support

          8  prohibitions on the installation and use of

          9  aftermarket car alarms that employed "non- safety

         10  related sirens, claxons and horns."  Though

         11  demonstrably effective in destroying a

         12  neighborhood's peace and quiet, car alarms have been

         13  proven useless in deterring car thefts.  CASI was

         14  pleased that the City Council passed Intro. 0081

         15  last year.  However, the NYPD has not enforced the

         16  new restrictions with vigor and consequently non

         17  compliant alarms continue to be sold and installed

         18  in New York. Revisions to the Noise Code represent

         19  the next best opportunity to reduce the noise

         20  pollution hazard caused by car alarms.

         21                 As the DEP and Council contemplate

         22  revisions to the Noise Code, we urge you to resist

         23  the temptation to consider only the demands of the

         24   "noisiest" interest groups.  The debate is not

         25  simply between environmental advocates and industry

                                                            213

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  lobbies.  Every noise abatement alternative should

          3  be evaluated by the largest potential total net

          4  benefits for the welfare of the citizens of New

          5  York.  Quiet streets, crime control, and a strong

          6  economy are desired outcomes that need not conflict.

          7                 Fortunately, banning car alarms will

          8  result in an immediate reduction in noise pollution

          9  with a minimal impact on automotive safety and

         10  security.  If consumers opt for truly effective

         11  silent automotive security devices such as

         12  immobilizers, we can have a quieter and safer city.

         13  And sales of modern autoimmune security devices

         14  could replace car alarms for the 12- volt businesses

         15  in New York.  Banning car alarms could be a win-

         16  win- win for New York City, and maybe the least

         17  controversial Noise Code revision.  CASI and its

         18  member companies look forward to assisting the DEP

         19  and Council in future considerations of car alarm

         20  regulations within the Noise Code.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 2:19 p.m.)
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